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PRELIMINARY PROSPECTUS
BIOTRICITY INC.
22,989,515 Shares of Common Stock

This prospectus relatés the offer and sale from time to time of up to 22,989,515 shares of our commc
stock by the persons described in this prospectus

1
8,165,483 may be issued upon exchange of the Exchangeables $hanar indirect subsidiary, 1062024 B.C.

LTD., held by the selling stockholders;

1
14,420,973 outstanding shares of our common stock; and

1
403,059 shares of our common stock underlying outstanding common stock purchase warrants.

The registration of thehares offered under this prospectus does not mean that the selling stockholders
actually offer or sell any of these shares. The selling stockholders may offer the shares of our common sto
prevailing market prices at the time of sale, at prie#ated to the prevailing market price, at varying prices
determined at the time of sale or at negotiated p

We are not offering any shares of common stock for sale under this prospectus atichaeraceive any
proceeds from sales of shares of our common stock by the selling stockholders; however, we will receiv
aggregate of approximately $364,582, assuming a U.S./Canada exchange rate of US$0.78 for CND$1.00, up
exercise of all of sutoutstanding common stock purchase warrants.

OQur common stock is quoted on the OTCQB mar ket

These are speculative securities. See fARiI sk |
consider before buying sharesanfr common stock.

We are an fiemerging growth companyo as defined
to comply with certain reduced public company reporting requirements for future filings.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commigs nor any state securities commission or other
regulatory body has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if this prospectus is truthful
or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The Date of this Prospectuss , 2016
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We are responsible for the information contained in this prospectus. We have not, and tige sel
stockholders have not, authorized anyone to give you any other information, and neither we nor any se
stockholder take any responsibility for any other information that others may give you. The selling stockholders
offering to sell, and seekimgffers to buy, shares of our common stock only in jurisdictions where offers and sals
are permitted. The information contained in this prospectus is accurate only as of the date of this prospe
regardless of the time of delivery of this prospectusf @ny sale of our common stock.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Unl ess otherwise noted, references in this prc
means Biotricity Inc., the registrant, and, unless the context otherwise requires, togtthis subsidiaries,
including i Medical |l nnovation I nc., a Canadian ¢

company prior to its acquisition by the Company on February 2, 2016.



CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD -LOOKING S TATEMENTS

This prospectus contains statements reflecting assumptions, expectations, projections, intentions or b
about future events d4hbhaki agestatemdetdsas Afbr waal
other than statements historical fact, that address activities, events or developments that we expect, believe
anticipate will or may occur in the future are forwdwdking statements. These statements appear in a number ¢
pl aces, including, eéntosobi $tcmssedntandMAnalgegmi s
Operationso and ARi sk Factors.o These statements
factors and using numerous assumptions and are subject to known and mnmisksyw uncertainties and other
factors that could cause our actual results and financial position to differ materially from those contemplated b
statements. You can identify these statements by the fact that they do not relate strictly to lustarfcanht facts,
and use words such as fAanticipate, 0 Abelieve, 0 fe
and other words of similar meaning. In particular, these include, but are not limited to, statements relating tc
following:

A

projected operating or financial results, including anticipated cash flows used in operations;

expectations regarding capital expenditures; and
A

our beliefs and assumptions relating to our liquidity position, including our ability to obtaimcfng.

Any or all of our forwardooking statements may turn out to be wrong. They can be affected by inaccure
assumptions or by known or unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors including, among others:

A

the loss of key management personmeiwtom we depend; and

our ability to operate our business efficiently, manage capital expenditures and costs (including general
administrative expenses) and obtain financing when required.

In addition, there may be other factors that could causaatual results to be materially different from the
results referenced in the forwal@bking statements, some of which are included elsewhere in this prospectt
including AManagement s Discussion and Acnmd dy sarmd ¢
Factors. o Many of these factors wildl be 1 mport al
forward-looking statement can be guaranteed. Our actual future results may vary materially from those expre
or implied in any fowardlooking statements. All forwartboking statements contained in this prospectus are
qualified in their entirety by this cautionary statement. Forvi@o#ing statements speak only as of the date they
are made, and we disclaim any obligation to updatg forwardlooking statements to reflect events or
circumstances after the date of this prospectus, except as otherwise required by applicable law.

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING INDUSTRY DATA

Unless otherwise indicated, information contained in this paigpeconcerning our company, our
business, the services we provide and intend to provide, our industry and our general expectations concernir
industry are based on management estimates. Such estimates are derived from publicly available inforn
released by third party sources, as well as data from our internal research, and reflect assumptions made
based on such data and our knowledge of the industry, which we believe to be reasonable.



PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

This summary highlights inforation contained elsewhere in this prospectus. This summary may n
contain all of the information that may be important to you. You should read the entire prospectus caref
together with our financial statements and the related notes appearing elseinhins prospectus before you
decide to invest in our common stock. This prospectus contains feloekidg statements, which involve risks
and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in such fdomé&ndg
staements as a result of certain factors, I ncl udin
sections of this prospectus.

Our Business

Biotricity is a leadingedge medical technology company focused on biometric data monitoring solution
Our aim is to deliver innovative, remote monitoring solutions to the medical, healthcare, and consumer matr|
with a focus on diagnostic and pabagnostic solutions for lifestyle and chronic illnesses. We approach th
diagnostic side of remote patientonitoring by applying innovation within existing business models where
reimbursement is established. We believe this approach reduces the risk associated with traditional medical ¢
development and accelerates the path to revenue. Irdiagstostic markets, we intend to apply medical grade
biometrics to enable consumers to gselnage, thereby driving patient compliance and reducing healthcare cos
We intend to first focus on a segment of the rdoiltion-dollar diagnostic mobile cardiac telemetmarket,
otherwise known as MCT.

To date, we are developing our Bioflux MCT technology which is comprised of a monitoring device a
software component, and are in the process of building strategic relationships to accelerat¢ogunarget
strategy angrowth.

Recent Developments

On October 18, 2016, we announced that we have received a 510(k) clearance from the U.S. Food and
Administration for the software component of our Bioflux solution. Prior toawol] we will have to finalize
additionallaboratory testing of our Bioflux product, estimated to take approximately eight weeks, and submit
product to the FDA for review which is expected to take from three to 12 months from the date the applicatic
submitted.

Corporate Overview

Our Comm@any was incorporated on August 29, 2012 in the State of Nevada. At the time of o
incorporation the name of our company was Metasolutions, Inc. On January 27, 2016, we filed with the Secr:
of State of the State of Nevada a Certificate of Amendmentwor Ar ti cl es of |l ncorp
Amendment 0) , effective as of Febrwuary 1, 2016, wt
Inc. and increased the authorized number of shares of common stock from 100,000,000 to01250000a n d i
checko preferred stock from 1,000,000 to 10,000, 0



iMedical was incorporated on July 3, 2014 under the Canada Business Corporations Act. Sensor Mot
Inc. was incorporated on July 22, 2009 under the laws of the Province of Q@anada. Sensor Mobility was
also engaged in research and development activities within the remote monitoring segment of preventative car
August 11, 2014, all the stockholders of Sensor Mobility entered into a series of rollover agreementsl®pthe sé
their shares to iMedical. Pursuant to these agreements, all the stockholders of Sensor Mobility received twic
number of shares of iMedical in exchange for their shares in Sensor Mobility. Accordingly, iMedical issu
11,829,500 shares in exchanfpr 5,914,750 shares of Sensor Mobility, which were subsequently cancelle
effective November 21, 2014. As the former stockholders of Sensor Mobility became the majority stockholder
iMedical in such transaction, it was accounted for as a reverggeenaerd was treated as an acquisition of iMedical
(legal acquirer) and a recapitalization of Sensor Mobility (accounting acquirer). As Sensor Mobility was 1
accounting acquirer, the results of its operations carried over. Consequently, the assetsilitied had the
historical operations reflected in this prospectus for the periods prior to November 21, 2014 are those of Sg
Mobility. Effective from November 21, 2014, i Med
operations ofMedical.

Our principal executive office is located at 275 Shoreline Drive, Redwood City, California, and o
telephone number is (416) 2B678. We also have executive offices at75 International Blvd., Suite 300, Toront
ON Canada M9W 6L9. Our websiggldress is www.biotricity.com. The information on our website is not part of
this prospectus.

Emerging Growth Company Status

We are an fAemerging growth companyo as defined
referred to taso tWee wWiJOBS eAdcai n an fAemerging gr owt
earliest of (i) the last day of the fiscal year in which our total annual gross revenues exceed $1 billion, (ii) the
t hat we become a Al areg @& Rael@ Under tha SeclritiésiEkcange Ach &f 1984e
which would occur if the market value of our ordinary shares that is held bgffiletes exceeds $700 million as
of the last business day of our most recently completed second fiscal qua(ii€r tlee date on which we have
issued more than $1 billion in naonvertible debt during the preceding three year period.

As an fAemerging growth company, 06 we may take
requirements that are applcd e t o ot her public companies that ar
but not limited to:

A

not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404(b) of the Saxbanast

(we will also not be subjecttotreudi t or attestation requirements of
reporting company, 0 which includes issuers that I
day of their most recently completed second fiscal quarter);

reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements
A

exemptions from the requirements of holding a nonbinding advisory vote on executive compensation
shareholder approval of any goldesrgchute payments not previously approved



Il n addition, Section 107 of the JOBS Act provi
of the extended transition period provided in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act for complyingewitbr
revi sed accounting standards. Under this provisi
certain accounting standards until those standards would otherwise apply to private companies. However, w
choosing t o fextpntded amdition peribd, and as fa result, we will comply with new or revise
accounting standards on the relevant dates on which adoption of such standards is require@rfeargiog
growth companies. Section 107 of the JOBS Act provides that owsi@leto opt out of the extended transition
period for complying with new or revised accounting standards is irrevocable



The Offering

Common stock offered by the selling
stockholders

Common stock to be outstanding after the
offering

Use of Proceeds

Risk Factors

22,989,515 shares of our common stock, of which:

1

8,165,483 shares are issuable upon the exchange of outstanding Exchar
Shares of our indirect subsidiary, 1062024 B.C. LTD., a British Colun
corporation;

il

14,420,973 outstanding shares of our common stock; and

il

403,059 shares of our common counderlying outstanding common stoc
purchase warrants.

The Exchangeable Shares may be exchanged at any time from time to tin
do not have an exercise price. The warrants may be exercised at an
through the maturity dates thereof, which rangemfrSeptember 21, 201
through October 15, 2019, at exercise prices that range from CND1.25 to $.

Up to 25,614,506 shares of common stock, based on our issued and outst
shares of common stoa@s ofDecember 8 , 2016and assuming the exchang
of all of our outstanding Exchangeable Shares that underlie the shares
registered pursuant to the registration statement of which this prospectus fc
part, and exercise of all of the 403,059 raats. Does not include the exercis
of any other warrants or options or the conversion of any convertible deber
that may be outstanding which includes 390,000 shares underlying outsta
warrants, approximately 2,637,500 shares underlying oulisigwroptions and
approximately 930,000 shares underlying outstanding convertible deber
based upon an assumed conversion price of $1t68lso does not include ai
additional 957,548 shares underlying Exchangeable Shares not included

prospeats.

We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of common stock by the st
stockholders participating in this offering; however, we will receive an aggre
of approximately $364,582, assuming a U.S./Canada exchange rat&@f78<
for CND$1.00 upon the exercise of all of such outstanding common ¢
purchase warrants. The selling stockholders will receive all of the net proc
from the sale of their respective shares of common stock in this offering.
AUse of Bpage2d ef this grospectus.

See ARi sk Factorso on page 5 of t
should carefully consider before deciding to invest in our common stock.



RISK FACTORS

An investment in our common stonkolves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the risk
described below, together with all of the other information included in this prospectus, before making
investment decision. If any of the following risks actually occur, our bissifieancial condition or results of
operations could suffer. In that case, the trading price of our shares of common stock could decline, and you
| ose all or part of your invest menLto.okYonu sShtcue fedner
a discussion of what types of statements are forM@oking statements, as well as the significance of such
statements in the context of this prospectus.

Risks Related to Our Business
We have a limited operating history upon which investors eualuate our future prospects.

We have a limited operating history upon which an evaluation of its business plan or performance
prospects can be made. The business and prospects of the Company must be considered in the light of the p
problemsgdelays, uncertainties and complications encountered in connection with a newly established busines:
creating a new industry. The risks include, but are not limited to, the possibility that we will not be able to deve
functional and scalable prodscand services, or that although functional and scalable, our products and servi
will not be economical to market; that our competitors hold proprietary rights that preclude us from marketing s
products; that our competitors market a superior onvedgnt product; that we are not able to upgrade and enhanc
our technologies and products to accommodate new features and expanded service offerings; or the failt
receive necessary regulatory clearances for our products. To successfully introducarleetdour products at a
profit, we must establish brand name recognition and competitive advantages for our products. There ar
assurances that we can successfully address these challenges. If it is unsuccessful, we and our business, fi
condition and operating results could be materially and adversely affected.

The current and future expense levels are based largely on estimates of planned operations and
revenues rather than experience. It is difficult to accurately forecast future esviemcause our business is new
and our market has not been developed. If our forecasts prove incorrect, the business, operating result
financial condition of the Company will be materially and adversely affected. Moreover, we may be unable
adjust arr spending in a timely manner to compensate for any unanticipated reduction in revenue. As a result.
significant reduction in revenues would immediately and adversely affect our business, financial condition
operating results.

We have had no revaies since inception, and we cannot predict when we will achieve profitability.

We have not been profitable and cannot predict when we will achieve profitability. We have experien
net | osses and have had no r ev ¢@touia 2009 Wea doenot anticipatea |
generating significant revenues until we successfully develop, commercialize and sell our existing and prop
products, of which we can give no assurance. We are unable to determine when we will generate signif
revenues, if any, from the sale of any of such products.



We cannot predict when we will achieve profitability, if ever. Our inability to become profitable may force us -
curtail or temporarily discontinue our research and development programs atei-oonday operations. Furthermore, there
can be no assurance that profitability, if achieved, can be sustained on an ongoing basis. As of September 30, 2046, we
accumulated deficit of $13,884,935.

There is substantial doubt on our ability to cantie as a going concern.

Our independent registered public accounting firm has issued a going concern qualification as part of its audit re
that accompanies our 2015 consolidated financial statements included in this prospectus. As stated indreunatadited
financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015 and unaudited financial statements for the quarter
September 30, 2016 , we have incurred recurring losses from operations and as at December 31, 2015 and Septerr
2016 had an accumulated deficit of $9,228,774 and $13,884,935, respectively. Our continued existence is dependent up
ability to continue to execute our operating plan and to obtain additional debt or equity financing. We do not have
established saoue of funds sufficient to cover operating costs and accordingly, there can be no assurance that the nece
debt or equity financing will be available, or will be available on terms acceptable to us, in which case we may be unak
meet our obligatios or fully implement our business plan, if at all. Additionally, should we be unable to realize our ass
and discharge our liabilities in the normal course of business, the net realizable value of our assets may be matkaally le:
the amounts recoed in our financial statements.

We may never complete the development of the Bioflux or any of our other proposed products into marketable products.

We do not know when or whether we will successfully complete the development of the Bioflux or any ott
proposed or contemplated product, for any of our target markets. We continue to seek to improve our technologies befc
are able to produce a commercially viable product. Failure to improve on any of our technologies could delay or prevent
succeshl development for any of our target markets.

Developing any technology into a marketable product is a risky, time consuming and expensive process. You skt
anticipate that we will encounter setbacks, discrepancies requiring time consuming anedestgns and changes and that
there is the possibility of outright failure.

We may not meet our product development and commercialization milestones.

We have established milestones, based upon our expectations regarding our technologies atwinidtime, use
to assess our progress toward developing our products. These milestones relate to technology and design improvem
well as to dates for achieving development goals. If our products exhibit technical defects or are unable to meet cc
performance goals, our commercialization schedule could be delayed and potential purchasers of our initial comme
products may decline to purchase such products or may opt to pursue alternative products.

We may also experience shortages of monit@nssars or bases due to manufacturing difficulties. Multiple suppliers
provide the components used in our devices. Our manufacturing operations could be disrupted by fire, earthquake or
natural disaster, a laboelated disruption, failure in supply other logistical channels, electrical outages or other reasons. i
there were a disruption to manufacturing facilities, we would be unable to manufacture devices until we have restered al
gualified our manufacturing capability or developed altereatianufacturing facilities.



Generally, we have made technological advances meeting our milestone schedules. We can give no assuran
our commercialization schedule will continue to be met as we further develop the Bioflux or any of our otbsedgrop
products.

Our business is dependent upon physicians utilizing our monitoring solution when prescribing cardiac monitoring; if we
fail in convincing physicians in utilizing our solution, our revenue could fail to grow and could decrease.

The successf our planned cardiac monitoring business is expected to be dependent upon physicians utilizing
solution when prescribing cardiac monitoring to their patients. The utilization of our solution by physicians for use in
prescription of cardiac momiting will be directly influenced by a number of factors, including:

A

the ability of the physicians with whom we work to obtain sufficient reimbursement and be paid in a timely manner for
Rrofessional services they provide in connection with thefisar monitoring solutions;

%(\)ntinuing to establish ourselves as an arrhythmia monitoring technology company;

%\ur ability to educate physicians regarding the benefits of MCT over alternative diagnostic monitoring solutions;

our demonstrating that oproposed products are reliable and supported by us in the field;

A

supplying and servicing sufficient quantities of products directly or through marketing alliances; and
A

pricing products competitively in light of the current macroeconomic environmdmth, particularly in the case of the
medical device industry, are becoming increasingly price sensitive.

If we are unable to educate physicians regarding the benefits of MCT and unable to drive physician utilization, revenue
the provision of our ahythmia monitoring solutions could fail to grow or even potentially decrease.

We are subject to extensive governmental regulations relating to the manufacturing, labeling and marketing of ou
products.

Our medical technology products and operationssatgect to regulation by the FDA, Health Canada and other
governmental authorities both inside and outside of the United States. These agencies enforce laws and regulatior
govern the development, testing, manufacturing, labeling, advertising, marketi distribution, and market surveillance of
our medical products.

Under the United States Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, medical devices are classified into one of 1
classe® Class I, Class Il or Class I depending on the degree of ris&sociated with each medical device and the extent
of control needed to ensure safety and effectiveness. We believe our current or planned products will ber@fdisalll
devices. Class Il devices are subject to additional controls, including fuidaipipty of the Quality System Regulations, and
requirements for 510(k) praarket notification.



From time to time, the FDA may disagree with the classification of a new Class Il medical device and require
manufacturer of that device to appty fapproval as a Class Ill medical device. In the event that the FDA determines that ©
Class Il medical products should be classified as Class Ill medical devices, we could be precluded from marketin
devices for clinical use within the United Statles months, years or longer, depending on the specific change the
classification. Reclassification of our Class Il medical products as Class Ill medical devices could significantly increase
regulatory costs, including the timing and expense assodcidtiedequired clinical trials and other costs.

In addition to regulations in the United States, we will be subject to a variety of foreign regulations governing clini
trials and commercial sales and distribution of our products in foreign countfiesh®V or not we obtain FDA approval for
a product, we must obtain approval of a product by the comparable regulatory authorities of foreign countries before w
commence clinical trials or marketing of the product in those countries. The approvalsprades from country to country,
and the time may be longer or shorter than that required for FDA approval. The requirements governing the condu
clinical trials, product licensing, pricing and reimbursement vary greatly from country to country.

The policies of the FDA and foreign regulatory authorities may change and additional government regulations r
be enacted which could prevent or delay regulatory approval of our products and could also increase the cost of regu
compliance. We cannot gulict the likelihood, nature or extent of adverse governmental regulation that might arise frc
future legislative or administrative action, either in the United States or abroad.

The FDA and notJ.S. regulatory authorities require that our products beufaatured according to rigorous
standards. These regulatory requirements may significantly increase our production costs and may even prevent us
making our products in amounts sufficient to meet market demand. If we change our approved manufactassg the
FDA may need to review the process before it may be used. Failure to comply with applicable regulatory requirernr
discussed could subject us to enforcement actions, including warning letters, fines, injunctions and civil penaltias, rec
seizure of our products, operating restrictions, partial suspension or total shutdown of our production, and crim
prosecution.

Federal, state and ndhS. regulations regarding the manufacture and sale of medical devices are subject to fut
changesThe complexity, timeframes and costs associated with obtaining marketing clearances are unknown. Althougl
cannot predict the impact, if any, these changes might have on our business, the impact could be material.

Following the introduction of a progdt these agencies will also periodically review our design and manufacturin
processes and product performance. The process of complying with the applicable good manufacturing practices, a
event reporting, clinical trial and other requirements cancbstly and time consuming, and could delay or prevent the
production, manufacturing or sale of our products. In addition, if we fail to comply with applicable regulatory requiiement:
could result in fines, delays or suspensions of regulatory clesanlsure of manufacturing sites, seizures or recalls of
products and damage to our reputation. Recent changes in enforcement practice by the FDA and other agencies have |
in increased enforcement activity, which increases the compliance riglef@ompany and other companies in our industry.
In addition, governmental agencies may impose new requirements regarding registration, labeling or prohibited material
may require us to modify or 4@gister products already on the market or othenwigact our ability to market our products
in those countries. Once clearance or approval has been obtained for a product, there is an obligation to ensure t
applicable FDA, Health Canada and other regulatory requirements continue to be met.



Additionally, injuries caused by the malfunction or misuse of cardiac monitoring devices, even where sl
mal function or misuse occurs with respect to one of o
more conservative regulatis on the medical cardiac monitoring industry, which could significantly increase our operatir
costs.

If we are not able to both obtain and maintain adequate levels of tpedty reimbursement for our products, it would
have a material adverse effect aur business.

Healthcare providers and related facilities are generally reimbursed for their services through payment sysi
managed by various governmental agencies worldwide, private insurance companies, and managed care organizatior
manner andevel of reimbursement in any given case may depend on the site of care, the procedure(s) performed, the
patient diagnosis, the device(s) utilized, available budget, the efficacy, safety, performance -afféativeness of our
planned products argkrvices, or a combination of these or other factors, and coverage and payment levels are determin
each payerdéds discretion. The ccover a-paeyppyers may impast tha dedisionse
of healthcare providers drfacilities regarding which medical products they purchase and the prices they are willing to p
for those products. Thus, changes in reimbursement levels or methods may either positively or negatively impact sales
products.

We have no direct corol over payer decisiemaking with respect to coverage and payment levels for our medica
device products. Additionally, we expect many payers to continue to exploreotainment strategies (e.g., comparative
and coskeffectiveness analyses, -called fA-forapyer f or manced programs i mpl ement
payers, and expansion of payment bundling schemes such as Accountable Care Organizations, and other such meth
shift medical cost risk to providers) that may potentially iotpaverage and/or payment levels for our current products or
products we develop.

The ability of physicians and other providers to successfully utilize our cardiac monitoring solution and successf
all ow payors to r ei mb arasdgroféssional teds & crifical your busimess beécause @lrysicrans @
their patients will select arrhythmia monitoring solutions other than ours in the event that payors refuse to adequ
reimburse our technical fees and physicians' professieesl f

Changes in reimbursement practices of thighrty payers could affect the demand for our products and the prices at
which they are sold.

The sales of our proposed products could depend, in part, on the extent to which healthcare providertiesdrfacili
individual users are reimbursed by government authorities, private insurers and otheartyingayers for the costs of our
products or the services performed with our products. The coverage policies and reimbursement levejsantytipiagers
whi ch can vary among public and private sources and |
prices they are willing to pay for those products in a particular jurisdiction. Reimbursement rates can also affect
acceptance ratef new technologies. Legislative or administrative reforms to reimbursement systems in the United State
abroad, or changes in reimbursement rates by private payers, could significantly reduce reimbursement for procedures
t he Comp any oOrssultpnrdenitluot eisiburesement for those products, which would adversely affect custom
demand or the price customers may be willing to pay for such products.



We may experience difficulty in obtaining reimbursement for our services from comragpayors that consider
our technology to be experimental and investigational, which would adversely affect our revenue and operating results.

Many commercial payors refuse to enter into contracts to reimburse the fees associated with medical devict
services that such payors determine to be "experimental and investigational." Commercial payors typically label me
devices or services as "experimental and investigational” until such devices or services have demonstrated produgt supe
evidencedy a randomized clinical trial.

Clinical trials have been performed on other mobile cardiac telemetry devices, proving higher diagnostic yield t
traditional event loop monitoring. Certain remaining commercial payors, however, have stated thatrtbebaleve the
data from the clinical trials justifies the removal of the experimental designation for mobile cardiac telemetry solsit@ons. /
result, certain commercial payors may refuse to reimburse the technical and professional fees associatediawith ¢
monitoring solutions such as the one expected to be offered by Biotricity.

If commercial payors decide not reimburse physicians or providers for their services during the utilization of «
cardiac monitoring solutions, our revenue could fail mgand could decrease.

Reimbursement by Medicare is highly regulated and subject to change; our failure to comply with applicable regulation:s
could decrease our expected revenue and may subject us to penalties or have an adverse impact on our business.

The Medicare program is administered by CMS, which imposes extensive and detailed requirements on me
services providers, including, but not limited to, rules that govern how we structure our relationships with physicians,
how and where we provideur arrhythmia monitoring solutions. Our failure to comply with applicable Medicare rules coul
result in discontinuing the ability for physicians to receive reimbursement as they will likely utilize our cardiac nmgnitori
solution under the Medicare paymegrogram, civil monetary penalties, and/or criminal penalties, any of which could have
material adverse effect on our business and revenues.

Consolidation of commercial payors could result in payors eliminating coverage of mobile cardiac monitorintioss or
reducing reimbursement rates.

When payors combine their operations, the combined company may elect to reimburse physicians for cal
monitoring services at the lowest rate paid by any of the participants in the consolidation. If one pbith@adicipating in
the consolidation does not reimburse for these services at all, the combined company may elect not to reimburse at an
Reimbursement rates tend to be lower for larger payors. As a result, as payors consolidate, our expaged a\
reimbursement rate may decline.
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Product defects could adversely affect the results of our operations.

The design, manufacture and marketing of our products involve certain inherent risks. Manufacturing or de:
defects, unanticipated use ofrquroducts, or inadequate disclosure of risks relating to the use of our products can lead
injury or other adverse events. These events could lead to recalls or safety alerts relating to our products (eitheowolunt
required by the FDA, Health Catte or similar governmental authorities in other countries), and could result, in certain cas
in the removal of a product from the market. A recall could result in significant costs, as well as negative publicity
damage to our reputation that couttiuce demand for our products. Personal injuries relating to the use of our produc
could also result in product liability claims being brought against us. In some circumstances, such adverse events coul
cause delays in new product approvals.

Interruptions or delays in telecommunications systems or in the data services provided to us by cellular communicatic
providers or the loss of our wireless or data services could impair the delivery of our cardiac monitoring services.

The success of Biotrigit6 s car di ac monitoring services wild|l be
and manage data and to maintain and upgrade our data processing and communication capabilities. The monitoring s
relies on a third party wireless carrtertransmit data over its data network. All data sent by our monitors via this wireles
data network or via landline is expected to be routed directly to data centers and subsequently routed to the third party
monitoring centers. We are therefore degmt upon third party wireless carrier to provide data transmission and dat
hosting services to us. If we lose wireless carrier services, we would be forced to seek alternative providers of
transmission and data hosting services, which might notdiable on commercially reasonable terms or at all.

As we expand our commercial activities, an increased burden is expected to be placed upon our data proce
systems and the equipment upon which they rely. Interruptions of our data networks, atathetdorks of our wireless
carrier, for any extended length of time, loss of stored data or other computer problems could have a material adverse
on our business and operating results. Frequent or persistent interruptions in our arrhythmiegnmeaitdices could cause
permanent harm to our reputation and could cause current or potential users or prescribing physicians to believe th
systems are unreliable, leading them to switch to our competitors. Such interruptions could resulttyn dkdifis and
litigation against us for damages or injuries resulting from the disruption in service.

Our systems are also expected to be vulnerable to damage or interruption from earthquakes, floods, fires, powe
telecommunication failures, terist attacks, computer viruses, break, sabotage, and acts of vandalism. Despite any
precautions that we may take, the occurrence of a natural disaster or other unanticipated problems could result in le
interruptions in these services. We do notychusiness interruption insurance to protect against losses that may result fro
interruptions in service as a result of system failures. Moreover, the communications and information technology indus
are subject to rapid and significant changes,@mrdability to operate and compete is dependent on our ability to update ar
enhance the communication technologies used in our systems and services.
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We could be exposed to significant liability claims if we are unable to obtain insurance at acdeptabts and
adequate levels or otherwise protect ourselves against potential product liability claims

The testing, manufacture, marketing and sale of medical devices entail the inherent risk of liability claims or proc
recalls. Product liability insance is expensive and may not be available on acceptable terms, if at all. A successful proc
liability claim or product recall could inhibit or prevent the successful commercialization of our products, cause argignific
financial burden on the Compangr both, which in either case could have a material adverse effect on our business ¢
financial condition.

We require additional capital to support our present business plan and our anticipated business growth, and such capit
may not be available oacceptable terms, or at all, which would adversely affect our ability to operate.

We will require additional funds to further develop our business plan. Based on our current operating plans,
require a minimum of $6 million to fund our planned operatinacessary to introduce Bioflux into the market. We can give
no assurance that we will be successful in raising any funds. Additionally, if we are unable to generate sufficient reve
from our operating activities, we may need to raise additional finmndagh equity offerings or otherwise in order to meet our
expected future liquidity requirements, including to introduce our other planned products or to pursue new pro
opportunities. Any such financing that we undertake will likely be dilutive teeatistockholders and you.

We intend to continue to make investments to support our business growth, including patent or other intellec
property asset creation. In addition, we may also need additional funds to respond to business opportunitibsrged,ch
including our ongoing operating expenses, protecting our intellectual property, satisfying debt payment obligati
developing new lines of business and enhancing our operating infrastructure. While we may need to seek additional fu
for sud purposes, we may not be able to obtain financing on acceptable terms, or at all. In addition, the terms of
financings may be dilutive to, or otherwise adversely affect, holders of its common stock. We may also seek additional f
through arrangemées with collaborators or other third parties. We may not be able to negotiate any such arrangement:
acceptable terms, if at all. If we are unable to obtain additional funding on a timely basis, we may be required to curt:
terminate some or all ofup business plans.

We cannot predict our future capital needs and we may not be able to secure additional financing.

We will need to raise additional funds in the future to fund our working capital needs and to fund further expans
of our business. Wmay require additional equity or debt financings, collaborative arrangements with corporate partners
funds from other sources for these purposes. No assurance can be given that necessary funds will be available fol
finance our development on actape terms, if at all. Furthermore, such additional financings may involve substantic
dilution of our stockholders or may require that we relinquish rights to certain of our technologies or products. In aedition
may experience operational difficulieand delays due to working capital restrictions. If adequate funds are not availakt
from operations or additional sources of financing, we may have to delay or scale back our growth plans.
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The results of our research and development efforts areceniain and there can be no assurance of the commercial
success of our products.

We believe that we will need to incur additional research and development expenditures to continue developme
our existing proposed products as well as research andgdeet expenditures to develop new products and services. Th
products and services we are developing and may develop in the future may not be technologically successful. In additic
length of our product and service development cycle may be grbatemte originally expected and we may experience
delays in product development. If our resulting products and services are not technologically successful, they mayenot ac
mar ket acceptance or compete effeices.i vely with our com

If we fail to retain certain of our key personnel and attract and retain additional qualified personnel, we might not be able
to pursue our growth strategy.

Our future success will depend upon the continued service of Waqg#ziddid), our Presiddrand Chief Executive
Officer. Although we believe that our relationship with him is positive, there can be no assurance that his services
continue to be available to us in the future. We do not carry any key man life insurance policies on arexistiogror
proposed executive officers.

The impact of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act remains uncertain.

In 2010, significant reforms to the health care system were adopted as law in the United States. The law incl
provisions that, @mong other things, reduce or limit Medicare reimbursement, require all individuals to have health insura
(with limited exceptions) and impose increased taxes. These factors, in turn, could result in reduced demand for our prc
and increased downwagpticing pressure. Because parts of the 2010 health care law remain subject to implementation,
long-term impact on us is uncertain. The new law or any future legislation could reduce medical procedure volumes, I
reimbursement for our products, aimdpact the demand for our products or the prices at which we sell our product
Accordingly, while it is too early to understand and predict the ultimate impact of the new law on our business, tianlegisl
and resulting regulations could have a matexthlerse effect on our business, cash flows, financial condition and results «
operations. The law includes a 2.3% tax on sales of medical devices beginning January 1, 2013, which had the eff
increasing company operating expenses by the amoune déxh Medical devices sold for export are exempt from the tax.
On December 18, 2015, President Obama signed into law the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2016, which includes a
year moratorium on the medical device excise tax, exempting medical daléseduring the period of January 1, 2016 to
December 31, 2017 from the tax. Absent further legislative action, the tax will be automatically reinstated on Janual
2018, which would again result in an increase in our operating expenses.
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We will not be profitable unless we can demonstrate that our products can be manufactured at low prices.

To date, we have focused primarily on research and development of the first generation version of the Bioflu
well as starting the prototyping of Biolieend proposed marketing and distribution. Consequently, we have no experience
manufacturing these products on a commercial basis. We may manufacture our products threpghythindnufacturers.
We can offer no assurance that either we or our manuiagt partners will develop efficient, automated, lowost
manufacturing capabilities and processes to meet the quality, price, engineering, design and production standar
production volumes required to successfully mass market our products, espdiadyowcost levels we require to absorb
the cost of free distribution of our products pursuant to our proposed business plan. Even if we or our manufacturing pa
are successful in developing such manufacturing capability and processes, w&mtmanathether we or they will be timely
in meeting our product commercialization schedule or the production and delivery requirements of potential customel
failure to develop such manufacturing processes and capabilities could have a material a@etrse efir business and
financial results.

Our profitability in part is dependent on material and other manufacturing costs. We are unable to offer any assur
that either we or a manufacturing partner will be able to reduce costs to a level whidlowiproduction of a competitive
product or that any product produced using lower cost materials and manufacturing processes will not suffer from a redt
in performance, reliability and longevity.

If we or our suppliers fail to achieve or maintairegulatory approval of manufacturing facilities, our growth could be
limited and our business could be harmed.

We currently assemble our devices in our California facility. In order to maintain compliance with FDA and otf
regulatory requirements, ouramufacturing facilities must be periodicallyegaluated and qualified under a quality system
to ensure they meet production and quality standards. Suppliers of components and products used to manufacture our ¢
must also comply with FDA regulatoryequirements, which often require significant resources and subject us and o
suppliers to potential regulatory inspections and stoppages. If we or our suppliers do not maintain regulatory approval fc
manufacturing operations, our business could beradly affected.

Our dependence on a limited number of suppliers may prevent us from delivering our devices on a timely basis.

We currently rely on a limited number of suppliers of components for our devices. If these suppliers became un
to providecomponents in the volumes needed or at an acceptable price, we would have to identify and qualify accep
replacements from alternative sources of supply. The process of qualifying suppliers is lengthy. Delays or interrupgions i
supply of our requements could limit or stop our ability to provide sufficient quantities of devices on a timely basis or me
demand for our services, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and resu
operations.
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Our opeations in international markets involve inherent risks that we may not be able to control.

Our business plan includes the marketing and sale of our proposed products in international markets. Accordi
our results could be materially and adverseliecéd by a variety of uncontrollable and changing factors relating to
international business operations, including:

1
Macroeconomic conditions adversely affecting geographies where we intend to do business;

1
Foreign currency exchange rates;

1l
Political or social unrest or economic instability in a specific country or region;

1
Higher costs of doing business in fayeicountries;

1
Infringement claims on foreign patents, copyrights or trademark rights;

1
Difficulties in staffing and managing operations across disparate geographic areas;

1
Difficulties associated with enforcing agreements and intellectual projgtg through foreign legal systems;

1
Trade protection measures and other regulatory requirements, which affect our ability to import or export our products
or to various countries;

1
Adverse tax consequences;

1
Unexpected changes in legal andulatpry requirements;

1
Military conflict, terrorist activities, natural disasters and medical epidemics; and

)|l
Our ability to recruit and retain channel partners in foreign jurisdictions.

Our financial results may be affected by fluctuations in exchlggnrates and our current currency hedging strategy may
not be sufficient to counter such fluctuations.

Our financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars, while a significant portion of our business is conducted,
substantial portion of our opaing expenses are payable, in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, specifically the Canac
dollar. Due to the substantial volatility of currency exchange rates, exchange rate fluctuations may have a positige or ac
impact on our future revenues expenses presented in our financial statements. We may use financial instrumer
principally forward foreign currency contracts, in our management of foreign currency exposure. These contracts w
primarily require us to purchase and sell certain gpraiurrencies with or for U.S. dollars at contracted rates. We may be
exposed to a credit loss in the event of-performance by the counterparties of these contracts. In addition, these financi
instruments may not adequately manage our foreign curexqpmsure. Our results of operations could be adversely affectec
if we are unable to successfully manage currency fluctuations in the future.
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Risks Related to Our Industry

Theindustry in which we operate is highly competitive and subject to rapichnological change. If our competitors are
better able to develop and market products that are safer, more effective, less costly, easier to use, or are otherwise r
attractive, we may be unable tmmpete effectively with other companies.

The medichtechnology industry is characterized by intense competition and rapid technological change, and we
face competition on the basis of product features, clinical outcomes, price, services and other factors. Competitors
include large medical devicand other companies, some of which have significantly greater financial and marketir
resources than we do, and firms that are more specialized than we are with respect to particular markets. Our competitic
respond more quickly to new or emerging teabgies, undertake more extensive marketing campaigns, have great
financial, marketing and other resources than ours or may be more successful in attracting potential customers, emp
and strategic partners.

Our competitive position will depend amultiple, complex factors, including our ability to achieve regulatory
clearance and market acceptance for our products, develop new products, implement production and marketing plans,
regulatory approvals for products under development and pratedntellectual property. In some instances, competitors
may also offer, or may attempt to develop, alternative systems that may be delivered without a medical device or a me
device superior to ours. The development of new or improved productssggeaar technologies by other companies may
render our products or proposed products obsolete or less competitive. The entry into the market of manufacturers loce
low-cost manufacturing locations may also create pricing pressure, particularly iopilegenarkets. Our future success
depends, among other things, upon our ability to compete effectively against current technology, as well as to res
effectively to technological advances or changing regulatory requirements, and upon our abiligessfallg implement
our marketing strategies and execute our research and development plan. Our research and development efforts are a
part, at solving increasingly complex problems, as well as creating new technologies, and we do not exfieaf that a
projects will be successful. If our research and development efforts are unsuccessful, our future results of operabens co
materially harmed.

We face competition from other medical device companies that focus on similar markets.

We facecompetition from primarily five companies that also focus on the ECG market that we intend to ent
CardioNet, LifeWatch, eCardio, Linecare, ScottCare and TZ Medical. These companies have longer operating historie
may have greater name recognitiord aubstantially greater financial, technical and marketing resources than us. Many
these companies also have FDA or other applicable governmental approval to market and sell their products, and
extensive customer bases, broader customer relatienahd broader industry alliances than us, including relationships witt
many of our potential customers. Increased competition from any of these sources could result in our failure to achiev
maintain an adequate level of customers and market shswpport the cost of our operations.
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Our industry is experiencing greater scrutiny and regulation by governmental authorities, which may lead to greate
governmental regulation in the future.

In recent years, the medical device industry has begadcub increased regulatory scrutiny, including by the FDA,
Health Canada and numerous other federal, state, provincial and foreign governmental authorities. This has inc
increased regulation, enforcement, inspections, and governmental investightlmmedical device industry and disclosure
of financial relationships with health care professionals. We anticipate that governments will continue to scrutinize
industry closely, and that additional regulation by governmental authorities, botgnfaed domestic, may increase
compliance costs, exposure to litigation and other adverse effects to our operations.

Unsuccessful clinical trials or procedures relating to products under development could have a material adverse effect «
our prospects.

The regulatory approval process for new products and new indications for existing products requires exter
clinical trials and procedures, including early clinical experiences and regulatory studies. Unfavorable or incondisaént cli
data from currenor future clinical trials or procedures conducted by us, our competitors, or third parties, or perceptic
regarding this clinical data, could adversely affect our ability to obtain necessary approvals and the market's view of
future prospects. Sudflinical trials and procedures are inherently uncertain and there can be no assurance that these ftriz
procedures will be completed in a timely or eeffective manner or result in a commercially viable product. Failure to
successfully complete thes@als or procedures in a timely and cesftective manner could have a material adverse effect on
our prospects. Clinical trials or procedures may experience significant setbacks even after earlier trials have shawgn pror
results. Further, preliminamgsults from clinical trials or procedures may be contradicted by subsequent clinical analysis.
addition, results from our clinical trials or procedures may not be supported by actut@rtargjudies or clinical experience.

If preliminary clinical results are later contradicted, or if initial results cannot be supported by actuaktongtudies or
clinical experience, our business could be adversely affected. Clinical trials or procedures may be suspended or tgrmina
us, the FDA or other regatiory authorities at any time if it is believed that the trial participants face unacceptable health ris

Intellectual property litigation and infringement claims could cause us to incur significant expenses or prevent us from
selling certain of our praucts.

The industry we operate in, in particular, the medical device industry is characterized by extensive intellec
property litigation and, from time to time, we might be the subject of claims by third parties of potential infringement
misappropiation. Regardless of outcome, such claims are expensive to defend and divert the time and effort of
management and operating personnel from other business issues. A successful claim or claims of patent or other intel
property infringement agash us could result in our payment of significant monetary damages and/or royalty payments
negatively impact our ability to sell current or future products in the affected category and could have a material ad\
effect on its business, cash flows dirtial condition or results of operations.
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If we are unable to protect the confidentiality of our trade secrets, our business and competitive position would be harme

We plan on relying on trade secrets, including unpatented -kimavy technology ash other proprietary information,
to maintain our competitive position. We will seek to protect these trade secrets, in part, by enteringditolosure and
confidentiality agreements with parties who have access to them, such as our employeese cmifadvarators, outside
scientific collaborators, contract manufacturers, consultants, advisors and other third parties. We will seek to protec
confidential proprietary information, in part, by entering into confidentiality and invention or intellgroperty assignment
agreements with our employees and consultants. Moreover, to the extent we enter into such agreements, any of these
may breach the agreements and disclose our proprietary information, including our trade secrets, andoiveereyle to
obtain adequate remedies for such breaches. Enforcing a claim that a party illegally disclosed or misappropriated a
secret is difficult, expensive and tirsensuming, and the outcome is unpredictable. In addition, some courts indide al
outside the United States are less willing or unwilling to protect trade secrets. If any of our trade secrets weredlbybe lav
obtained or independently developed by a competitor, we would have no right to prevent them, or those to whom
communicée it, from using that technology or information to compete with us. If any of our trade secrets were to
disclosed to or independently developed by a competitor, our competitive position would be harmed. In general, any Ic
trade secret protectiorr other unpatented proprietary rights could harm our business, results of operations and finan
condition.

If we are unable to protect our proprietary rights, or if we infringe on the proprietary rights of others, our competitigenes
and business progrts may be materially damaged.

We have filed for one industrial design patent in Canada. We may continue to seek patent protection for our de!
and may seek patent protection for our proprietary technology if warranted. Seeking patent prote&iogtly and costly
process, and there can be no assurance that patents will be issued from any pending applications, or that any claims ¢
from existing or pending patents will be sufficiently broad or strong to protect our designs or our protgtaojogy.
There is also no guarantee that any patents we hold will not be challenged, invalidated or circumvented, or that the |
rights granted will provide competitive advantages to us. Our competitors have developed and may continue to develo
obtain patents for technologies that are similar or superior to our technologies. In addition, the laws of foreigropsigdicti
which we develop, manufacture or sell our products may not protect our intellectual property rights to the same dxtent,
the laws of Canada or the United States.

Adverse outcomes in current or future legal disputes regarding patent and other intellectual property rights c
result in the loss of our intellectual property rights, subject us to significant liabilitigsrebparties, require us to seek
licenses from third parties on terms that may not be reasonable or favorable to us, prevent us from manufacturing, imp
or selling our products, or compel us to redesign our products to avoid infringing third@artiesmmt el | ect ual
result, we may be required to incur substantial costs to prosecute, enforce or defend our intellectual property monts if the
challenged. Any of these circumstances could have a material adverse effect on our busaresal &ondition and
resources or results of operations.
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Dependence on our proprietary rights and failing to protect such rights or to be successful in litigation related to sucl
rights may result in our payment of significant monetary damagesropact offerings in our product portfolios.

Our longterm success largely depends on our ability to market technologically competitive products. If we fail
obtain or maintain adequate intellectual property protection, we may not be able to prevepartie from using our
proprietary technologies or may lose access to technologies critical to our products. Also, our currently pending indu:
design patent or any future patents applications may not result in issued patents, and issued paibjest dcectaims
concerning priority, scope and other issues.

Furthermore, to the extent we do not file applications for patents domestically or internationally, we may not be
to prevent third parties from using our proprietary technologies or nsayadocess to technologies critical to our products in
other countries.

Enforcement of federal and state laws regarding privacy and security of patient information may adversely affect ou
business, financial condition or operations.

The use and disclosiof certain health care information by health care providers and their business associates t
come under increasing public scrutiny. Recent federal standards under the Health Insurance Portability and Account:
Act of 1996, or HIPAA, establish rideconcerning how individuaHidentifiable health information may be used, disclosed
and protected. Historically, state law has governed confidentiality issues, and HIPAA preserves these laws to the exten
are more protective of a patient's privacypasvide the patient with more access to his or her health information. As a resu
of the implementation of the HIPAA regulations, many states are considering revisions to their existing laws and regula
that may or may not be more stringent or busteme than the federal HIPAA provisions. We must operate our business in
manner that complies with all applicable laws, both federal and state, and that does not jeopardize the ability of ets cust
to comply with all applicable laws. We believe thatr @perations are consistent with these legal standards. Nevertheles
these laws and regulations present risks for health care providers and their business associates that provide semises to
in multiple states. Because these laws and regulagieneecent, and few have been interpreted by government regulators «
courts, our interpretations of these laws and regulations may be incorrect. If a challenge to our activities is stcmeddful, i
have an adverse effect on our operations, may equrto forego relationships with customers in certain states and ma
restrict the territory available to us to expand our business. In addition, even if our interpretations of HIPAA andestier fe
and state laws and regulations are correct, we coubhglodiable for unauthorized uses or disclosures of patient information
as a result of inadequate systems and controls to protect this information or as a result of the theft of informatio
unauthorized computer programmers who penetrate our netwarkitgeEnforcement of these laws against us could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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We may become subject, directly or indirectly, to federal and state health care fraud and abuse ldwegafations and if
we are unable to fully comply with such laws, the Company could face substantial penalties.

Although not affected at this time, our operations may in the future become directly or indirectly affected by vari
broad state and federagalth care fraud and abuse laws, including the Federal Healthcare Prograriscibdck Statute
and the Stark law, which among other things, prohibits a physician from referring Medicare and Medicaid patients t
entity with which the physician hadiaancial relationship, subject to certain exceptions. If our future operations are found
be in violation of these laws, we or our officers may be subject to civil or criminal penalties, including large monet
penalties, damages, fines, imprisonmemd axclusion from Medicare and Medicaid program participation. If enforcement
action were to occur, our business and results of operations could be adversely affected.

We may be subject to federal and state false claims laws which impose substantidiggnal

Many of the physicians and patients whom we expect to use our services will file claims for reimbursement v
government programs such as Medicare and Medicaid. As a result, we may be subject to the federal False Claims Ac
knowi ngl the fiirg afdadse daims. Violations may result in substantial civil penalties, including treble damage
The federal Fal se Claims Act also contains fdAwhistl ebl
actions on behalf of thgovernment alleging that the defendant has defrauded the government. In recent years, the numb
suits brought in the medical industry by private individuals has increased dramatically. Various states have enacted
modeled after the federal Falseadl ms Act, including figui tamod provi si ons
commercial insurers. We are unable to predict whether we could be subject to actions under the federal False Claims /
the impact of such actions. However, tiwsts of defending claims under the False Claims Act, as well as sanctions impos
under the False Claims Act, could adversely affect our results of operations.

Changes in the health care industry or tort reform could reduce the number of arrhythmia maoinig solutions ordered
by physicians, which could result in a decline in the demand for our planned solutions, pricing pressure and decrease
revenue.

Changes in the health care industry directed at controlling health care costs or perceivetlizateon of
arrhythmia monitoring solutions could reduce the volume of solutions ordered by physicians. If more health care cost col
are broadly instituted throughout the health care industry, the volume of cardiac monitoring solutions could decre
resulting in pricing pressure and declining demand for our planned services, which could harm our operating result
addition, it has been suggested that some physicians order arrhythmia monitoring solutions, even when the services ma
limited clinical utility, primarily to establish a record for defense in the event of a claim of medical malpractice against
physician. Legal changes increasing the difficulty of initiating medical malpractice cases, known as tort reform, cauld rec
the amount obur services prescribed as physicians respond to reduced risks of litigation, which could harm our opere
results.
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Risks Related to Our Securities and Other Risks

An active and visible public trading market for our Common Stock may not develop.
We do not currently have an active or visible trading market. We cannot predict whether an active market for
Common Stock will ever develop in the future. In the absence of an active trading market:

1
Investors may have difficulty buying and selling or obtaining market quotations;

1
Market visibility for shares of our Common Stock may be limited; and

1
A lack of visibility for shares of our Common Stock may have a depressive effect on the markdorpsicares of our
Common Stock.

Our Common Stock is quoted ovie-counter on a market operated by OTC Markets Group, Inc. These markets a
relatively unorganized, intatealer, ovethe-counter markets that provide significantly less liquidity thanSBAQ or the
NYSE MKT. No assurances can be given that our Common Stock, even if quoted on such markets, will ever actively trac
such markets, much less a senior market like NASDAQ or NYSE MKT. In this event, there would be a highly illiquid mar
for our Common Stock and you may be unable to dispose of your Common Stock at desirable prices or at all. Moreover,
is a risk that our Common Stock could be delisted from its current tier of the OTC Market, in which case our stock ma
guoted on marksteven more illiquid.

The market price of our common stock may be volatile.
The market price for our Common Stock may be volatile and subject to wide fluctuations in response to fac
including the following:

gur ability to successfully bring any of our proposed or planned products to market;
Ictual or anticipated fluctuations in our quarterly or annual operating results;

ghanges in financial or operational estimates or projections;

gonditions in markatgenerally;

ghanges in the economic performance or market valuations of companies similar to ours;
1

Announcements by us or our competitors of new products, acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint ventures or capital
commitments;

1
Our intellectualproperty position; and

1
General economic or political conditions in the United States or elsewhere.

In addition, the securities market has from time to time experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that are not
related to the operating perfoance of particular companies. These market fluctuations may also materially and adversely
affect the market price of shares of our Common Stock.

Because we were engaged in a transaction t hat natlemble e
to attract the attention of major brokerage firms.

Addi tional ri sks may exist since we were engaged i
merger . 0 Securities analysts of gewathedCompany sinkcecthrerz i kttle fncentives
to brokerage firms to recommend the purchase of the common stock. No assurance can be given that brokerage firms w
want to conduct any secondary offerings on behalf of the Company in the future.
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Our Company may have undisclosed liabilities and any such liabilities could harm our revenues, business, prospec
financial condition and results of operations.

Before the Acquisition Transaction, iMedical conducted due diligence on our Company custothappeopriate

for a transaction similar to the Acquisition Transaction. However, the due diligence process may not reveal all mat
liabilities of our Company currently existing or which may be asserted in the future against our Company relating tc
activities before the consummation of the Acquisition Transaction. In addition, the Exchange Agreement cont
representations with respect to the absence of any liabilities. However, there can be no assurance that our Company v
have any liabilitis upon the closing of the Acquisition Transaction that we are unaware of or that we will be successfu
enforcing any indemnification provisions or that such indemnification provisions will be adequate to reimburse us. Any <
liabilities of our Companyhat survive the Acquisition Transaction could harm our revenues, business, prospects, finan
condition and results of operations.

When the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part become effective, there will be a significant rafmber
shares of common stock eligible for sale, which could depress the market price of such stock.

We are registering for resale substantially all of the approximately 22,500,000 shares of common stock issue
issuable to the iMedical shareholders, iniadd to an additional approximately 400,000 shares underlying warrants that w
have outstanding. Although the 22,500,000 shares are subject tow@plagkeement for a period of no more than one year
from the effective date of the registration statemanérge number of shares of our common stock would become availabl
for sale in the public market, which could harm the market price of the stock.

Our largest stockholder will substantially influence our Company for the foreseeable future, includingotiteome of
matters requiring shareholder approval and such control may prevent you and other stockholders from influencing
significant corporate decisions and may result in co
decline.

Mr. Al-Siddiq beneficially owns approximately 19% of our outstanding shares of Common Stock and common st
underlying the Exchangeable Shares. As a result, coupled with his board seat, he will have the ability to influenderthe ele
of our directors and ghoutcome of corporate actions requiring shareholder approval, such as: (i) a merger or a sale of
Company, (ii) a sale of all or substantially all of our assets, and (iii) amendments to our articles of incorporaticenand byl
This concentration of wing power and control could have a significant effect in delaying, deferring or preventing an acti
that might otherwise be beneficial to our other shareholders and be disadvantageous to our shareholders with int
different from those entities anddividuals. Mr. AlSiddiq also has significant control over our business, policies and affair:
as an executive officer or director of our Company. He may also exert influence in delaying or preventing a change in cc
of the Company, even if such chanigecontrol would benefit the other stockholders of the Company. In addition, the
significant concentration of stock ownership may adve
investorsoO6 percepti onxistohaige. confl i cts of interest may
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Material weaknesses may exist when the Company reports on the effectiveness of its internal control over financi
reporting for purposes of its reporting requirements.

We wi || be required to pr otiverkss ofiméema contol@ver fidasiciak repprtong t
in our Annual Reports on Form Q] as required by Section 404 of Sarba@edey. Material weaknesses may exist when
the Company reports on the effectiveness of its internal control over financiatimgpfar purposes of its reporting
requirements under the Exchange Act or Section 404 of SarQaeg following the completion of the Acquisition
Transaction. The existence of one or more material weaknesses would preclude a conclusion that the Gontparsy m
effective internal contr ol over financi al reporting.
future Annual Reports on Form0 and coul d harm the Companyo6s reputat
stock todrop.

Our issuance of additional common stock or preferred stock may cause our common stock price to decline, which m
negatively impact your investment.

Issuances of a substantial number of additional shares of our common or preferred stock, oeptierpénat such
issuances could occur, may cause prevailing market prices for our common stock to decline. In addition, our boa
directors is authorized to issue additional series of shares of preferred stock without any action on the part of
stackholders. Our board of directors also has the power, without stockholder approval, to set the terms of any such set
shares of preferred stock that may be issued, including voting rights, conversion rights, dividend rights, preferenaes ove
comma stock with respect to dividends or if we liquidate, dissolve or wind up our business and other terms. If we is
cumulative preferred stock in the future that has preference over our common stock with respect to the payment of divi
or upon our ligidation, dissolution or winding up, or if we issue preferred stock with voting rights that dilute the votin
power of our common stock, the market price of our common stock could decrease.

Anti-t akeover provisions in the Cavenipan frustiate attenmpts roy stockholdersdto k
change the board of directors or current management and could make a-héndy acquisition of the Company difficult.
The Companybs certificate of incor por agejdelay ompnedentiay |

merger, acquisition or other change in control that stockholders may consider favorable, including transactions in w
stockholders might otherwise receive a premium for their shares. For example, our Certificate of Inconpenaiisnthe

Board of Directors without stockholder approval to issue up to 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock and to fix
designation, power, preferences, and rights of the shares and preferred stock. Furthermore, the Board of Directors
ability to increase the size of the Board and fill the newly created vacancies without stockholder approval. These provi
could Iimit the price that investors might be willing
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Ourcommons ock i s subject to the SECO6s qienlersmay expedande diffiaulty es
completing customer transactions and trading activity in our securities may be adversely affected.

The SEC has adopted regulations, which genecallyf i ne fipenny stocko to be al
price of less than $5.00 per share, subject to specific exemptions. The market price of our common stock is less than
per share and therefore woul duldsenleas wé pre listed on & hatianil Gecuaties
exchange. Under these rules, bre#tealers who recommend such securities to persons other than institutional accredi
investors must:

il
Make a special written suitability determination for the purehas

1
Receive the purchaseroés prior written agreement to th

Provide the purchaser with risk disclosure document s
and which describe t he omarsk eme |flo ra st e speu ricphearsreyr 6sst d cekg a

Obtain a signed and dated acknowledgment from the purchaser demonstrating that the purchaser has actually recei\
required risk disclosure document betddore a transactio

As our Common Stock is subject to these rules, brdkaters may find it difficult to effectuate customer
transactions and trading activity in our securities may be adversely affected. As a result, the market price of owr sect
may be depressl, and you may find it more difficult to sell your securities.

The market for penny stocks has experienced numerous frauds and abuses, which could adversely impact investors in
stock.

OTC Market securities are frequent targets of fraud or marketpoiation, both because of their generally low
prices and because reporting requirements are less stringent than those of the stock exchanges such as NASDAQ. Pat
fraud and abuse include:

1
Control of the market for the security by one or a fevkbralealers that are often related to the promoter or issuer;

1
Manipulation of prices through prearranged matching of purchases and sales and false and misleading press releases;

l

ABoil er roomd practices i nvol uicpnia projacteprs bypimexparienoed salesparsoass
1

Excessive and undisclosed fadk differentials and markups by selling brelealers; and

1

Wholesale dumping of the same securities by promoters and {gleslers after prices have been manipuléted desired
level, along with the inevitable collapse of those prices with consequent investor losses.

Our management is aware of the abuses that have occurred historically in the penny stock market.
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We have not paid dividends in the past andrdu expect to pay dividends in the future, and any return on investment may
be limited to the value of our stock.

We have never paid any cash dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends ¢
common stock in the foresd®a future and any return on investment may be limited to the value of our common stock. V
plan to retain any future earning to finance growth.

IN ADDITION TO THE ABOVE RISKS, BUSINESSES ARE OFTEN SUBJECT TO RISKS NOT FORESEEN OR
FULLY APPRECIATED BY MAN AGEMENT. ALTHOUGH WE HAVE INCLUDED ALL RISKS THAT WE
BELIEVE ARE MATERIAL AS OF THE DATE OF THIS PROSPECTUS, IN REVIEWING THIS PROSPECTUS,
POTENTIAL INVESTORS SHOULD KEEP IN MIND THAT THERE MAY BE OTHER SUCH POSSIBLE RISKS.

USE OF PROCEEDS
The shares odur common stock offered by this prospectus are being registered solely for the account of the sel
stockholders. We will not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of these shares; however, we will receive an aggrec
approximately $364,582, aswing a U.S./Canada exchange rate of US$0.78 for CND$1.00 upon the exercise of the comr
stock purchase warrants.

DETERMINATION OF OFFERING PRICE

The selling stockholders will determine at what price they may sell the shares of common stock offdnsd by
prospectus, and such sales may be made at prevailing market prices, or at privately negotiated prices.

MARKET PRICE AND DIVIDENDS ON OUR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
Market Information

Our common stock is traded on the OTCQB magketa ce under t he symbol ABTCYC
not commence trading until February 18, 2016. Prior to that, our common stock was quoted on the OTCQB marketj

under the symbol AMTSUO but there @aBecemues,20létde closing @ricet i
of our common stock as reported on the OTCQB marketplace wa8 ferdhare.

25



The following table sets forth the range of high and low bid prices for our common stock for each of the peri
indicated as regrted by such marketplaces. These quotations reflectdetder prices, without retail madp, markdown or
commission and may not represent actual transactions.

Period High Low
2016:
First Quarter (from February 18, 2016) $4.00 $2.48
Secom Quarter $3.00 $0.51
Third Quarter $3.15 $1.36
Fourth Quarter (through Decemigy 2016) $2.98 $1.71

We consider our common stock to be thinly traded and, accordingly, reported sales prices or quotations may no
true marketased valuationfmur common stock.

Holders

As of DecembeB , 2016, an aggregate @¥,131,58%hares of our common stock were issued and outstanding an
owned by approximately 53 shareholders of recddd.such shares, 458,750 are held in escrow (down from an drigina
750,000) and subject to forfeiture if we are unable to raise at least $6,000,000 in capital by May 2, 2017 (extended frol
previous deadline of November 2, 2016), subject to a pro rata release of escrowed shares on May 2, 2017 to the ext
Compary raised less than $6,000,000, based on the aggregate amount raised through the convertible debt offeri
otherwise. To the extent such shares are forfeited, we intend to either hold them in treasury or retire such shares so tt
neither issued nooutstanding. In addition, as of Decembe&d, 2016 , 9,123,031 Exchangeable Shares were issued an
outstanding, which were held by approximately 31 holders of record. The number of stockholders does not include bene
owners holding shares through noeé¢ names.

There is one share of the Special Voting Preferred Stock issued and outstanding, held by the Trustee.
Dividends

We do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future and we intend to retain all of our earnin
any, to fnance our growth and operations and to fund the expansion of our business. Payment of any dividends will be |
in the discretion of our Board of Directors, after our taking into account various factors, including our financial gonditi
operating rests, current and anticipated cash needs and plans for expansion. No dividends may be declared or paid c
Common Stock, unless a dividend, payable in the same consideration or manner, is simultaneously declared or paid,
case may be, on our shadgreferred stock, if any.

Repurchase of Equity Securities

In May 2015, iMedical repurchased 1,100,000 of its outstanding common shares at cost from a related party, w
were cancelled upon their repurchase. We have no plans, programs or othermr@masige regards to further repurchases of
our common stock.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

We adopted a new equity incentive plan effective as of February 2, 2016 to attract and retain employees, dire
and consultants. The equity incemtiplan is administered by our Board of Directors which may determine, among othe
things, the (a) terms and conditions of any option or stock purchase right granted, including the exercise price and the v
schedule, (b) persons who are to receivéooptand stock purchase rights and (c) the number of shares to be subject to e«
option and stock purchase right. The equity incentive plan may also be administered by a special committee, as determil
the Board of Directors.

The maximum aggregate mber of shares of our common stock that may be issued under the equity incentive plar
3,750,000, which, except as provided in the plan shall automatically increase on January 1 of each year for no more tf
years, so the number of shares that majsfeed is an amount no greater than 15% of our outstanding shares of comm
stock and Exchangeable Shares as of such January 1. The equity incentive plan provides for the grant of, among other ¢
(i) Aincentiveo opt i onthe lftegnal Kéventiei Code of 1986, asramended) toiowr amplby2es at
(i) nonstatutory options and restricted stock to our employees, directors or consultants.

Shown below is information as of March 31, 2016 with respect to the common stock of the Cdingpangty be
issued under its equity compensation plans.
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(c)
Number of
(b) securities remaining
Weighted- available for future
average exercise issuance under
€) price of equity
Number of securities to outstanding compensation plans
be issued upon exercise options, (excluding securities
of outstanding options, warrants and reflected in column
Plan Category warrants and rights rights (@)
Equity compensation plans approved
by security holders (1) - - 3,750,000
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders (2)
Directors, Officers and
Employees Stock Option Plan
(3) 200,500 $0.0001 -
Broker Warrants 325,275 $1.003 -
Total 525,775 3,750,000
(1)
Represents the Companybés 2016 Equity Incentive Pl
(2)

At the time of the Acquisition Transaction on February 2, 2016, each (a) outstanding option granted or is:
pursuant to iMedidads exi sting equity compensation plan wa
equivalent replacement options with a corresponding adjustment to the exercise price and (b) outstanding ws
granted or i ssued p ur s u asatton plans wasMagljdsied ad thes holdeq receivey
approximately 1.197 shares of common stock with a corresponding adjustment to the exercise price. Doe
include options to purchase an aggregate of 2,499,998 shares of our common stock granted i8iddig Al
pursuant to his employment agreement subsequent to March 31, 2016.

(3

On March 30, 2015, iMedical approved its Directors, Officers and Employees Stock Option Plan, under whic
authorized and issued 3,000,000 options. This plan was establiskedii® iMedical to attract and retain the
services of highly qualified and experience directors, officers, employees and consultants and to give such p
an interest in the success of the Company. These options now represent the right to purchasé thlgares
Companyds common stock using the same exchange r a
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MANAGEMENTG6S DI SCUSSI ON AND ANALYSIS OF FI NANCI AL (
OPERATIONS

The following Management 6s Discuadi Basahtds AVMBIADD &5
covers information pertaining to the Company up to September 30, 2016 and should be read in conjunction with the au
financial statements and related notes of the Company as of and for the year ended Decemberaid 20158 and the
unaudited financial statements and related notes for the quarter ended September 30, 2016. Except as otherwise not
financial information contained in this MD&A and in the financial statements has been prepared in accordance w
acmunting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. All amounts are expressed in U.S. dollars ul
otherwise noted.

Forward Looking Statements

Certain information containkdokinng hs tsa tMBehtch eva oot uS
historical reflect our current expectations and projections about our future results, performance, liquidity, finantiah condi
and results of operations, prospects and opportunities and are based upon information currently avagahlel tour
management and their interpretation of what is believed to be significant factors affecting our existing and proposed bus
including many assumptions regarding future events. Actual results, performance, liquidity, financial conditesulésdfr
operations, prospects and opportunities could differ materially and perhaps substantially from those expressed in, or in
by, these forwardboking statements as a result of various risks, uncertainties and other factors, including tlsose r
described in detail in the section of this prospectus

Forwardlooking statements, which involve assumptions and describe our future plans, strategies, and expectat
are generallyideni f i abl e by use of the words fAmay, 0 fishoul d, o
fifesti mate, 0 Abelieve, 0 Aintend, 0 Nnseek, 0 or Aproject
comparable terminology.

In light of these risks and uncertainties, and especially given the nature of our existing and proposed business,
can be no assurance that the forwlaaking statements contained in this section and elsewhere in this prospectus will in fe
occur. Potential investors should not place undue reliance on any fota@kihg statements. Except as expressly required
by the federal securities laws, there is no undertaking to publicly update or revise any-fookargl statements, whether as
a result ohew information, future events, changed circumstances or any other reason.

Company Overview

We are a healthcare technology company committed to the development of software and hardware solutions tc
the management of chronic health issues. We aiprduide a turnkey, wearable medical cardiac monitoring solution. To
achieve this, we are dedicated to continuing our research and development programs, honing outleviegicatpertise,
increasing our deep knowledge of biometrics, developing both gsefiaval hardware components and nurturing a cohesive
medical network.
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Critical Accounting Policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted i
United States of Adare expessed ifi UBed Gtatds ollars. Significant accounting policies ar
summarized below:

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the condensed consolidated financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requi
management to make estimates and aptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and e»
during the reporting period. Areas involvisggnificant estimates and assumptions include: deferred income tax assets a
related valuation allowance, accruals and valuation of derivatives, promissory notes and stock options. Actual results
differ from those estimates. These estimates ariewed periodically, and, as adjustments become necessary, they a
reported in earnings in the period in which they become known.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share

The Company has adopted t he Financi al Accountin
Codi fication (AASGW)i chopmircov2@i@s f or calcul ation of f
earnings per share includes no dilution and is computed by dividing net income or loss available to common stockholde
the weighted avege number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per share reflect the pote
dilution of securities that could share in the earnings of an entity. Diluted earnings per share exclude all potetitially dilt
shares if their effeds antidilutive. There were no potentially dilutive shares outstanding as at September 30, 2016.

Equipment

Equipment is recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and depreciated over the estimated useful lives
following rates and methods:

Computer & Electronicé 3 year straight line
Furniture and Fixtured 3 year straight line

Routine repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Improvements, that are betterments, are capital
cost. We apply a halfear rule in the year of qaisition.

Cash

Cash includes cash on hand and balances with banks.
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Research and Development

We are engaged in research and development work. Research and development costs, which relate primal
software development, are charged to opematias incurred. Under certain research and development arrangements w
third parties, we may be required to make payments that are contingent on the achievement of specific developm
regulatory and/or commercial milestones. Before a product receigetatory approval, milestone payments made to third
parties are expensed when the milestone is achieved. Milestone payments made to third parties after regulatory appr
received are capitalized and amortized over the estimated useful life gbgiteved product. Research and development
costs were $755,907 for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 and $1,143,453 and $832,661 for the years
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordanct WSC 740. We provide for federal and provincial income taxes payable, a
well as for those deferred because of the timing differences between reporting income and expenses for financial stat
purposes versus tax purposes. Deferred tax assets dititidéahre recognized for the future tax consequences attributable tc
differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts us
income tax purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilitiemeasured using the enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxab
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recoverable or settled. The effect of a che
tax rates is recognized as income or expense in the period afhinge. A valuation allowance is established, when
necessary, to reduce deferred income tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standards Codi ascaement Sophd ®28chibaur e
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands required disclosure about fair value measureme
assets and liabilitiesASC 82010 defines fair value as the exchange price Wwild be received for an asset or paid to
transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orde
transaction between market participants on the measurement date. A3Q &880 establisisea fair value hierarchy, which
requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuril
value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

1
Level 17 Valuation based on quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

1
Level 21 Valuation based on quoted market prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets.

1
Level 31 Valuation based on unobservabitguts that are supported by little or no market activity, therefore requiring

management 8ds best estimate of what market participant
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In instances where the determination of the fair value measurement is based on inpdiffdrent levels of the fair
value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the entire fair value measurement falls is based or
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. Our assesfsthensignificance of a
particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment, and considers factors specific tathe as
liability.

Fair value estimates discussed herein are based upon certain market assumptions enidiertimation available
to management. The respective carrying value of certaibatamcesheet financial instruments approximated their fair
values due to the shetdrm nature of these instruments or interest rates that are comparable to markEheate§inancial
instruments include cash and accounts payable. Our cash, which is carried at fair value, is classified as a Level 1 fin
instrument. Our bank accounts are maintained with financial institutions of reputable credit, therefore, iberar@dit
risk.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with ASC Topic 3d®, we, on a regular basis, review the carrying amount oflleed assets for the
existence of facts or circumstances, both internally and externally, that suggesimampalWe determine if the carrying
amount of a londived asset is impaired based on anticipated undiscounted cash flows, before interest, from the use
asset. In the event of impairment, a loss is recognized based on the amount by which tleearaoyimt exceeds the fair
value of the asset. Fair value is determined based on appraised value of the assets or the anticipated cash flows from
of the asset or asset group, discounted at a rate commensurate with the risk involved.

Stock Based Corpensation

We account for shasleased payments in accordance with the provision of ASC 718, which requires that all sha
based payments issued to acquire goods or services, including grants of employee stock options, be recognized
statement of opations based on their fair values, net of estimated forfeitures. ASC 718 requires forfeitures to be estimate
the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estim
Compensation expense feld to shardased awards is recognized over the requisite service period, which is generally t
vesting period.

We account for stock based compensation awards issued-emuayees for services, as prescribed by ASG 718
10, at either the fair value tifie services rendered or the instruments issued in exchange for such services, whichever is r
readily determinable, using the guidelines in ASC-505We issue compensatory shares for services including, but no
limited to, executive, management, agoting, operations, corporate communication, financial and administrative consultin
services.

Convertible Notes Payable and Derivative Instruments
We account for conversion options embedded in convertible notes in accordance with ASC 815. ASC 8ll% gene
requires companies to bifurcate conversion options embedded in convertible notes from their host instruments and to ac

for them as free standing derivative financial instruments. ASC 815 provides for an exception to this rule when conver
notes, as host instruments, are deemed to be conventional, as defined by ABC 815
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We account for convertible notes deemed conventional and conversion options embeddeadnventional
convertible notes which qualify as equity under ASC 815, ao@ance with the provisions of ASC 420, which provides
guidance on accounting for convertible securities with beneficial conversion features. Accordingly, our records, ag a dis
to convertible notes, the intrinsic value of such conversion optiassdoupon the differences between the fair value of the
underlying common stock at the commitment date of the note transaction and the effective conversion price embedded
note. Debt discounts under these arrangements are amortized over the bermelated debt.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2016, the Company adopted the accounting pronouncement issued by the Financial Accounting Stan
Board ("FASB") to update guidance on how companies account for certain aspectetfaskdrpayments to employees.
This pronouncement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim periods within those y
with early adoption permitted. This guidance requires all income tax effects of awards to be eecagritze income
statement when the awards vest or are settled and changes the presentation of excess tax benefits on the statemen
flows. The Company adopted these provisions on a prospective basis. In addition, this pronouncement changesnguidar

(a) accounting for forfeitures of shdnea s ed awards and (b) employersé6é accour
the employerés statutory income tax withholding obl i
impacton t he Companyb6s financi al position and/ or results

In February 2016, an accounting pronouncement was issued by the FASB to replace existing lease accol
guidance. This pronouncement is intended to provide enhanced transparency adloditgoy requiring lessees to record
right-of-use assets and corresponding lease liabilities on the balance sheet for most leases. Expenses associated witl
will continue to be recognized in a manner similar to current accounting guidancerdrtoamcement is effective for annual
and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2018, with early adoption permitted. The adoption is required to be ar
on a modified retrospective basis for each prior reporting period presériiedCompany hasot yet determined the effect
that the adoption of this pronouncement may have on its financial position and/or results of operations.

On January 1, 2016, the Company adopted the accounting pronouncement issued by the FASB which eliminate
requirementhat an acquirer in a business combination account for measurpar@t adjustments retrospectively. Instead,
an acquirer will recognize a measurempatiod adjustment during the period in which it determines the amount of the
adjustment. The adoptiamnf t hi s pronouncement did not have a mater
results of operations.

On January 1, 2016, the Company adopted the accounting pronouncement issued by the FASB to update the gu
related to the presentati of debt issuance costs. This guidance requires debt issuance costs, related to a recognized
liability, be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of the related debt Hiability r
than being presented asasset. The Company adopted this pronouncement on a retrospective basis, and the adoption di
have a material impact on the Company financial position and/or results of operations.
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In November 2015, an accounting pronouncement was issued b8t tb simplify the presentation of deferred
income taxes within the balance sheet. This pronouncement eliminates the requirement that deferred tax assets and li
are presented as current or noncurrent based on the nature of the underlyingnddisdtiitees. Instead, the pronouncement
requires all deferred tax assets and liabilities, including valuation allowances, be classified as noncurrent.
pronouncement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016, with earlyregeptigted. The Company
intend to adopt this pronouncement on January 1, 2017, and the adoption is not expected to have a material impact
financial position and/or results of operations.

In May 2014, an accounting pronouncement was issued by AlsB Ko clarify existing guidance on revenue
recognition. This guidance includes the required steps to achieve the core principle that a company should recognize re
when it transfers promised goods or services to customers in an amount that refleotssttieration to which the company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. This pronouncement is effective for fiscal years and i
periods beginning after December 15, 2017, with early adoption permitted. The guidance thermge of one of two
retrospective transition methods. The Company has not yet selected a transition method nor has the Company determir
effect that the adoption of the pronouncement may have on its financial position and/or results of operations.

Results of Operations

From our inception in July 2009 through to September 30, 28idiricity has generated a deficit of $13,884,935.
We expect to incur additional operating losses through the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016 and beyonly, gsiacipal
result of our continuing anticipated research and development costs and due to anticipated initial limited sales afxthe Bic
our planned first product. When we approach final stages of the anticipated commercialization of the Bioflux, ave wall h
devote and expect to continue to devote significant resources in the areas of capital expenditures and researc
development costs.

Three and Nine Month Period Ended September 30, 2016 as Compared to Three and Nine Month Period Ende
September 302015

Operating Expenses
Total operating expenses for the three and nine month period ended September 30, 2016 were $1,403,60
$2,780,447 compared to $1,226,564 and $3,693,587 for the three and nine months period ended September 30, 2(

furtherdescribed below.

General and administrative expenses

Our general and administrative expenses increased for the three months ended September 30, 2016 by $254,
$1,155,016 compared to $900,358 during the three months ended September 30, 201&edbe was, in part, due to
increased level of activities and due to $196,142 expense related to stock options granted in 2016. Our geners
administrative expenses for nine months ended September 30, 2016 decreased by $777,328 to $2,024,540 comp:
$2,801,868 during the nine _months ended September 30, 2015. The decrease was due to reduced expenses re
employee stock options. We had incurred $1,849,916 of employee stock options expenses in 2015.
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Research and development expenses

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2016, we incurred research and development exper
$248,048 and $755,907, respectively, compared to $326,206 and $891,719, incurred in there and nine months
September 30, 2015, respectively

Accreton expense

During the three months ended September 30, 2016, we incurred accretion expense of $473,552 compared to ¢
incurred in the comparable prior year period. During the nine months ended September 30, 2016, we incurred acc
expense of $66655 compared to $3,014 incurred in the comparable period in 2015. Increased levels of borrowings in 2
relating to our ugo $2.5 million private placement of bridge notes resulted in higher debt discount and related accret
expense.

Change in faivalue of derivative liabilities

We recorded a loss of $465,832 due to changes in fair value of our derivative liabilities during the three mo
ended September 30, 2016 compared to gain of $2,679 during the three months ended September 30, IO Tnd~or t
months ended September 30, 2016, we recorded a loss of $1,208,059 compared to a gain of $2,679 in comparable pe
2015.

Net Loss
As a result of the foregoing, the net loss for the three months ended September 30, 2016 was $2,342,4d8@omps

a net loss of $1,226,899 during the three months ended September 30, 2015. For the nine months ended September 3
the net loss was $4,656,161 compared to a net loss of $3,693,922 in 2015.

Translation Adjustment

Translation adjustment for ththree and nine month period ended September 30, 2016 were a loss of $80,101 ar
loss of $271,210, respectively, as compared to a loss of $31,388 and a gain of $28,257, respectively, for the three an
months ended September 30, 2015. This translatifjustment represents loss resulted from the translation of currency in th
financial statements from our functional currency of Canadian dollars to the reporting currency in U.S. dollars.
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Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2015 Compared To Fiscalrnded December 31, 2014
Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015 were $5,130,003 compared to $1,706,2
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, as further described below.

For the fiscal year endeDecember 31, 2015, we incurred research and development expenses of $1,143,
compared to research and development expenses of $832,661 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014. The incr
research and development expenses relates primarilying Bdditional members of our research and development team a
well as accelerating our research and development activities as we approach the commercialization of our first product.

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015, we incurred generaldamaistrative expenses of $3,986,550,
compared to general and administrative expenses of $873,541 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014. The in
relates primarily to the stock based compensation of $2,257,953 recorded during the fiscal yeard2@d5ncrease in
professional and consulting fees of $254,048 due to acceleration in our activities in connection with our plan
commercialization of our first product.

Net Loss

Net loss for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015 amounted t& 8528 esulting in a loss per share of $0.24,
compared to $1,706,202 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, resulting in a loss per share of $0.09. The incre
the net loss from the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 to the fiscal year eceleth&e31, 2015 is primarily due to the
increase in stock based compensation and acceleration of our research and development and commercialization activ
2015.

Translation Adjustment

Translation adjustment for the year ended December 31, 201%(8&813) as compared to translation adjustment
of $3,050 for the year ended December 31, 2014. This translation adjustment represents loss resulted from the transla
currency in the financial st at e me mandsllarstoieneporling ciireocy in 0.S.
dollars.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We are a development stage company and have not yet realized any revenues from our operations. Our wc
capital deficiency was $2,513,317 as of September 30, 20dfhared to a working capital surplus of $105,821 at December
31, 2015. The increase in working capital deficiency was due to our operational losses during the nine months ¢
September 30, 2016 and due to short term borrowings to fund our operationg. tharnine months ended September 30,
2016, our operating activities used cash of approximately $1,759,000 compared to approximately $1,424,000 used duril
nine months ended September 30, 2015.
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During the nine months ended September 30, 2018, operations, after adjusting for nroash items, used
approximately $2,140,000 of cash. Changes in working capital items provided approximately $381,000 of cash durin
nine months ended September 30, 2016. During the nine months ended Septe@®rl3d,, our Companyaod
adjustment for nomash items, used approximately $1,477,000 of cash and working capital items provided approxima
$53,000 of cash.

During the nine months ended September 2016, we commenced a bridge offemmyeotilcle promissory notes
and issued to various investors note in the aggregate face value of amounting to $1,655,000, resulting in net proce
$1,524,200. These notes have a maturity date of 12 months and carry an annual interest rate of 10%dgeT hNotBs
principal is paid in cash and all outstanding accrued interest is converted into common stock based on the average
|l owest 3 trading days volume weighted average price (
matuity.

In August 2016, we converted notes in the aggregate face value of $1,368,978, issued in 2015, into 912,652 she
common shares. The fair value of the common shares was $2,907,912 and $1,538,934 was allocated to the related de
liabilities and the balance to the carrying value of the notes.

We issued an aggregate of 131,365 shares of our common stock upon exercise of warrants and received $105,
exercise cash proceeds.

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated finandehetats have been prepared on a going concern
basis. We incurred a comprehensive loss of $4,656,161 during the nine months ended September 30, 2016, have accul
losses totaling $13,884,935 and have a working capital deficit of $2,513,317 at Se@6m@t6. These factors, among
others, indicate that the Company may be unable to continue as a going concern. The condensed consolidated fir
statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of these uncertainties.

As we proceed with the commercialization of the Bioflux product development we have devoted and expect
continue to devote significant resources in the areas of capital expenditures and research and development cos
operations, marketing and sales expemes.

We expect to require additional funds to further develop our business plan, including the anticipa
commercialization of the Bioflux and Biolife products. Based on our current operating plans, we will require approxima
$6 million to completehe development of Bioflux including marketing, sales, regulatory and clinical costs to first introduc
this product into the market place. We expect to require an additional approximately $4 million to also complete
development of our Bioflux produand increase penetration in new and existing markets and expand our intellectt
property platform, which we anticipate would lead to profitability. Since it is impossible to predict with certainty tige timi
and amount of funds required to launch theflBioand Biolife product in any other markets or any of our other proposed
products, we anticipate that we will need to raise additional funds through equity or debt offerings or otherwise in ord
meet our expected future liquidity requirements. Anghsiinancing that we undertake will likely be dilutive to existing
stockholders. We are currently in discussion to raise additional equity financing of which we can give no assuranc
success.
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In addition, we expect to also need additional furtdsespond to business opportunities and challenges, including
our ongoing operating expenses, protecting our intellectual property, developing or acquiring new lines of business
enhancing our operating infrastructure. While we may need to seek aalditioding for such purposes, we may not be able
to obtain financing on acceptable terms, or at all. In addition, the terms of our financings may be dilutive to, or othen
adversely affect, holders of our common stock. We may also seek additionattfuoutsh arrangements with collaborators
or other third parties. We may not be able to negotiate any such arrangements on acceptable terms, if at all. If we are
to obtain additional funding on a timely basis, we may be required to curtail or terregmaé or all of our proposed product
lines.

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

During the nine months ended September 30, 2016, we used cash in operating activities of $1,759,275 compa
$1,424,348 for the nine months ended September 30, 20Sincrease was due to increased operational loss in 2016.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015, we used cash in operating activities of $1,963,975 compar
$1,381,785 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014. For each of the fisesddezhDecember 31, 2015 and December
31, 2014, the cash in operating activities was primarily due to research, product development, business develop
marketing and operations.

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financingtavities was $1,629,700 for the nine months ended September 30, 2016 comparec
$1,272,546 for the nine months ended September 30, 2015. For the nine months ended September 30, 2016 and 20151
provided by financing activities was primarily duethe issuance of convertible promissory notes and exercise of warrants.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $1,996,628 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015 compar
$1,715,695 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014. For theyiiscadnded December 31, 2015, the cash provided by
financing activities was primarily due to the issuance of convertible promissory notes and exercise of warrants.

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities
The Company did not use any net cash in investitigiies in any of the periods indicated in this prospectus.
Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have no ofbalance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect ol

financial condition, changes in financ@dndition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditur:
or capital resources.
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BUSINESS
Summary

Biotricity is a leadingedge medical technology company focused on biometric data monitoring solutions. Our aim
to ddiver innovative, remote monitoring solutions to the medical, healthcare, and consumer markets, with a focus
diagnostic and postiagnostic solutions for lifestyle and chronic illnesses. We approach the diagnostic side of remote pat
monitoring by aplying innovation within existing business models where reimbursement is established. We believe 1
approach reduces the risk associated with traditional medical device development and accelerates the path to revenue.
diagnostic markets, we intdrio apply medical grade biometrics to enable consumers tmaakige, thereby driving patient
compliance and reducing healthcare costs. We intend to first focus on a segment of thélionitlollar diagnostic mobile
cardiac telemetry market, other@iknown as MCT.

To date, we are developing our Bioflux MCT technology which is comprised of a monitoring device and softw:
component, and are in the process of building strategic relationships to acceleratéoamagcet strategy and growth.

History

Our Company was incorporated on August 29, 2012 in the State of Nevada. At the time of our incorporation
name of our company was Metasolutions, Inc. On January 27, 2016, we filed with the Secretary of State of the Ste
Nevada a Certificate of Aemn d me n t to our Articles of Il ncorporation
February 1, 2016, whereby, among other things, we changed our name to Biotricity Inc. and increased the authorized n
of shares of common stock from 100,000,0® 125, 000, 000 and #Abl ank checkdc¢
10,000,000.

iMedical was incorporated on July 3, 2014 under the Canada Business Corporations Act. Sensor Mobility Inc.
incorporated on July 22, 2009 under the laws of the Proving@ntdrio, Canada. Sensor Mobility was also engaged in
research and development activities within the remote monitoring segment of preventative care. On August 11, 2014, ¢
stockholders of Sensor Mobility entered into a series of rollover agreemetite feale of their shares to iMedical. Pursuant
to these agreements, all the stockholders of Sensor Mobility received twice the number of shares of iMedical in exchang
their shares in Sensor Mobility. Accordingly, iMedical issued 11,829,500 shaggshiange for 5,914,750 shares of Sensor
Mobility, which were subsequently cancelled, effective November 21, 2014. As the former stockholders of Sensor Mob
became the majority stockholders of iMedical in such transaction, it was accounted for aseamevger and was treated as
an acquisition of iMedical (legal acquirer) and a recapitalization of Sensor Mobility (accounting acquirer). As Sen
Mobility was the accounting acquirer, the results of its operations carried over. Consequently, tlamddisditities and the
historical operations reflected in this prospectus for the periods prior to November 21, 2014 are those of Sensor Mol
Effective from November 21, 2014, the financial statements include the assets, liabilities and opelidMiedis alf

Our principal executive office is located at 275 Shoreline Drive, Redwood City, California, and our telephao

number is (416) 218678. We also have executive offices at 75 International Blvd., Suite 300, Toronto, ON Canada M¢
6L9. Our webs# address is www.biotricity.com. The information on our website is not part of this prospectus.
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The Acquisition Transaction

On February 2, 2016 we completed our acquisition of iMedical through our indirect subsidiary 1062024 B.C. LTD
company ek sting wunder the | aws of Exchangeeo )o,vi asedes$ crBirbhad
(col l ecti vel yAcgusitior Ffrangsadiodt) a as t he A

In connection with the closing of the Acquisition Transaction, we experienced a chaagerof, as:

1
our sole former director resigned and a new director, who is the sole director of iMedical, was appointed to fill the vacanc

1
our prior Chief Executive Officer and sole officer, who beneficially owned 6,500,000 shares of our common stock, resig
from all positions and transferred all of his shares back to us for cancellation;

1

the former management of iMedical were appointed as our management; and

1

the former shareholders of iMedical entered into a transaction whereby their existing common fsiideslical were
exchanged for either: (a) shares in the capital of Exchangeco that are exchangeable for shares of our common stock
same ratio as if the shareholders exchanged their common shares in iMedical at the consummation of the Acqui
Transaction for 0 u r ExchangeabterShaed pclor ( t((hg ®Bhares of our C
exchange of all such Exchangeable Shares) would equal in the aggregate a number of shares of our common sto
constitute 90% of our issueddnutstanding shares as of the date of the closing date of the Acquisition Transaction.

Immediately prior to the closing of the Acquisition Transaction, we transferred all of thexisting business,
properties, assets, operations, liabilities anddgalb of the Company, to W270 SA, a Costa Rican corporation, pursuant tc
an Assignment and As sAssigmhentoand A8sgmptoa rAgreement(( t hée fdi d no't
consideration for such transfer other than to permit the facilitation ofAtuiisition Transaction.Accordingly, as of
immediately prior to the closing of the Acquisition Transaction, we had no assets or liabilities.

On February 2, 2016, we entered i nto aCuallcok X ¢ h an gBe
Columbiacorporation and our wholly owned subsidiary, Exchangeco, iMedical and the former shareholders of iMedical |
fiExchange Agreemeat) , whereby Exchangeco acquired 100% of the

account the Exchangeable Shamansaction (as defined below). After giving effect to this transaction, we commence
operations through iMedical through our 100% ownership of Exchangeco (other than the Exchangeable Shares) and Cal
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Effective on the closing of the Acquisitiomansaction:

(a)

the Company issued approximately 1.5&ares of its common stock in exchange for each common share of iMedical held |
iMedical shareholders who in general terms, are not residents of Canada (for the purposkxofmtdax ActCanady)

( t WNenElfigible Holder® ) ;

(b)

shareholders of iMedical who in general terms, are Canadian residents (for the purposexofteerax AcfCanada)) (the
fiEligible Holder® ) received approximately 1.197 Eexccihexanangedadds eaeh ¢

common share of i Medical h e | Ekchdngeable ISkae fTrangaetioyy;, (a) and
(c)

each outstandi nQ@ptiomwpt itoon p(ueracchha sa&n cfo mmon shares in i M
exchanged,without any further action or consideration on the part of the holder of such option, for approximate
l.197economical ly equi val enReplaceneht®pgtienne wi t ahptainonsvee adeh aa
price of the Replacement Qg to reflect the exchange ratio of approximately 1.197:1;

(d)

each outstandi Marranba r rtaon tp u(recahcahs ea cfio mmon shares i n i Me

terms thereof, such that it entitles the holder to receive approximal€lyshares of the common stock of the Company for
each Warrant, with an inverse adjustment to the exercise price of the Warrants to reflect the exchange ratio of approxir
1.197:1;

(e)

each outstandi ng a ddvise Warraniv p r urahasdpcorineol shares anniMedical was adjusted, in
accordance with the terms thereof, such that it entitles the holder to receive approximately 1.197 shares of the commor
of the Company for each Advisor Warrant, with an inverse adjustment to tluesexanice of the Advisor Warrants to reflect
the exchange ratio of approximately 1.197:1; and

V)

the outstanding 11% s ecur EahvedibdelDeberitude) e syveoe abMedistald, (e
adjustment provisions thereof, asdafrom closing, so as to permit the holders to convert (and in some circumstances per
the Company to force the conversion of) the Convertible Debentures into shares of the common stock of the Compan
25% discount to the purchase price per shaoeiimext offering.

Pursuant to the rights and privileges of the Exchangeable Shares, the holders of such Exchangeable Shares m
the right to: (i) receive dividends equal to, and to be paid concurrently with, dividends paid by the Company tieth@hol
its common stock; (ii) wvot e, through the Trusteebs Vv
matters that the holders of Common Stock of the Company are entitled to vote upon; and (iii) receive shares of Con
Stock of the Company upon the liquidation or insolvency of the Company or upon the redemption of such Exchange
Shares by Exchangeco. The Exchangeable Shares do not give the holders thereof any economic, voting, or other
rights over either Exchangeoo iMedical.

As part of the Exchangeable Share Transaction, we entered into the following agreements, each dated Febru
2016:

1

Voting and Exchange Trist Ageemedi g r eve meénn tE x(cthfaem g @ c o, Call c
Company of TXustaéa)d;a gridhe i

1

Support AgrSapparidgrdemeptt) hevi i h Exchangeco and Call co.
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Pursuant to the terms of theust Agreement, the parties created a trust for the benefit of its beneficiaries, which a
the holders of the Exchangeable Shares, enabling the Trustee to exercise the voting rights of such holders until such t
they choose to redeem their Exchaaigle Shares for shares of the common stock of the Company, and allowing the Trust
to hold certain exchange rights in respect of the Exchangeable Shares.

As a condition of the Trust Agreement and prior to the execution thereof, we filed a CertifiEssigriation with
the Nevada Secretary of State, effective February 2, 2016, designating a class of our preferred shares as the Special
Preferred Stock (the nASpeci al Voting Preferred Sdathec k
Trustee.

The Special Voting Preferred Stock entitles the Trustee to exercise the number of votes equal to the numb
Exchangeable Shares outstanding on afonene basis during the term of the Trust Agreement. The Trust Agreemen
further setgout the terms and conditions under which holders of the Exchangeable Shares are entitled to instruct the Tr
as to how to vote during any stockholder meetings of our company.

Pursuant to the terms of the Trust Agreement, we granted the Trusteehthte riggquire the Company to purchase
the Exchangeable Shares from any beneficiary upon the occurrence of certain events including in the event that w
bankrupt, insolvent or our business is wound up. The Trust Agreement continues to remain intilottoe earliest of the
following events: (i) no outstanding Exchangeable Shares are held by any beneficiary under the Trust Agreement; ar
each of iMedical and us elects to terminate the Trust Agreement in writing and the termination is apprdved by
beneficiaries.

Pursuant to the terms of the Support Agreement, we agreed to certain covenants while the Exchangeable Share
outstanding, including: (i) not to declare or pay any dividends on our common stock unless Exchangeco simultane
declaes or pays an equivalent dividend for the holders of the Exchangeable Shares; (ii) advising Exchangeco in advar
any dividend declaration by the Company; (iii) ensure that the record date for any dividend or other distribution declare
the shares athe Company is not less than seven days after the declaration date of such dividend or other distribution;
taking all actions reasonably necessary to enable Exchangeco to pay and otherwise perform its obligations with respect
issued and outstaing Exchangeable Shares; (v) to ensure that shares of the Company or other property are deliver:
holders of Exchangeable Shares upon the liquidation or insolvency of the Company, the holders' election to caus
Company to issue shares of its conmrgiock in exchange for the Exchangeable Shares, or as otherwise set out in
agreement and in the rights and restrictions of the Exchangeable Shares; and (vi) reserving for issuance and keeping a\
from our authorized common stock such numbehafas as may be equal to: (A) the number of Exchangeable Shares issu
and outstanding from time to time; and (B) the number of Exchangeable Shares issuable upon the exercise of all rig
acquire Exchangeable Shares from time to time.

The Support Agrement also outlines certain restrictions on our ability to issue any dividends, rights, options
warrants to all or substantially all of our stockholders during the term of the agreement unless the economic equivale
provided to the holders of Exchgeable Shares. The Support Agreement is governed by the laws of the Province of Ontari

In conjunction with the closing of the Acquisition Transaction, an aggregate of 6,500,000 shares of our comr
stock were deemed cancelled, all of which were heldupyformer President and Chief Executive Officer.
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Following the Acquisition Transaction, as of the date of the closing of the Acquisition Transaction, there were
equivalent of approximately 25,000,000 shares of our common stock issued anddmgstainwhich preexisting
stockholders hold 2,500,000 and former iMedical shareholders hold: (a) an equivalent of 9,123,031 shares of our cor
stock through their ownership of 100% of the Exchangeable Shares and (b) 13,376,947 shares of our contitentltock

As a result, our prAcquisition Transaction stockholders hold approximately 10% of our issued and outstandil
shares of Common Stock (which could be decreased to approximately 7.2%), and the former stockholders of iMedical
approximately90% of our issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock (which could be increased to approxime
92.8%) either directly or indirectly through their ownership of 100% of the Exchangeable Shares.

Furthermore, up to 458,750 shares of our common stockviirat outstanding prior to the Acquisition Transaction
are held in escrow (down from an original 750,000) and are subject to forfeiture in the event we are not able to rais
million by May 2, 2017, which was extended from the previous deadline of NeveéinR016. The 458,750 escrowed shares
are subject to a pro rata reduction on May 2, 2017 to the extent we raised less than the $6,000,000, based on the ag
amount raised through the convertible debt offering or otherwise.

Any shares of our commastock and any Exchangeable Shares, in either case that were issued in the Exchange
Share Transaction, are subject to the following dopkschedule (unless such schedule is accelerated at the discretion of ¢
board of directors, with the written coms@f Highline Research Advisors, LLC, an adviser as further described below):

1
10% shall be released upon effectiveness of the registration statement in Boprofosed to be filed with the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission, allowing fortekead e of such shar eS1Hlisgd provi de

1
25% shall be released on the 6 month anniversary of effectiveness ef thidirfg);

1
50% shall be released on the 9 month anniversary of effectiveness ef théirf§); and

)l
the remaining 3% shall be released on the 12 month anniversary of effectiveness et thidirf).

iMedical entered into a placement agent agreement dated October 31, 2015 with Highline Research Advisors LLC, a fc
affiliate of Merriman Capital, Inc., pursuant to isth, among other things, they agreed to assist iMedical with going public by
merger with a public company. The above consent was required to prevent us from unilaterally waiving-tipe locl
requirements, which was a condition to the Acquisition Transautitime event Highline was subsequently retained to raise
funds on our behalf after the closing of the Acquisition Transaction.
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Description of Business
Company Overview

Through December 31, 2015 and until the Acquisition Transaction we wereeggy éntelligence company that
sought to provide comprehensive energy efficiency solutions to the commercial market. Following the close of
Acquisition Transaction, we became a lead#tge medical technology company focused on biometric data mogitorin
solutions. Our aim is to deliver innovative, remote monitoring solutions to the medical, healthcare, and consumer mar
with a focus on diagnostic and palagnostic solutions for lifestyle and chronic illnesses. We approach the diagnostic side
remote patient monitoring by applying innovation within existing business models where reimbursement is established.
believe this approach reduces the risk associated with traditional medical device development and accelerates the
revenue. In postliagnostic markets, we intend to apply medical grade biometrics to enable consumersmanagh,
thereby driving patient compliance and reducing healthcare costs. We intend to first focus on a segment obili@maulti
dollar diagnostic mobile caralt telemetry market, otherwise known as MCT.

To date, we have developed our Bioflux MCT technology which is comprised of a monitoring device and softw
component, verified our business model, and built strategic partnerships to acceleratmovadet strategy and growth.

We have established a research partnership with the University of Calgary to determine the predictive valu
electrocardiogram (ECG) readings in preventative healthcare applications. The study is designed to identify nogehpatte
ECG readings that may be translated into probability models for use in the development of proprietary algorithms
diagnostic applications, and to determine if ECG readings have predictive value for use in preventative healtf
applications, suchs sekmanaged care. The research is partly funded by the National Research Council of Canada. As
of the collaboration, we have the right to license any intellectual property discovered, created or reduced to practice |
performance of the coklror at i on t hat was <c¢created ©tbelwisé, we dwy all intelectuél n i
property resulting from the collaboratiohe term of the collaboration is until December 31, 2020.

Market Overview

Chronic diseases are the number boeden on the healthcare system, driving up costs year over year. Lifestyl
related illnesses such as obesity and hypertension are the top contributing factors of chronic conditions includirandiabete
heart disease. Government and healthcare orgamigatire focused on driving costs down by shifting to evidbased
healthcare where individuals, especially those suffering from chronic illnesses, engagermiansgjfément. This has led to
massive growth in the connected health market, which is prdjezteach $59 billion by 2020 at a compound annual growth
rate (CAGR) of 33.4%. Remote patient monitoring (RPM), one of the key areas of focus-foasaffement and evidence
based practice, is growing at a CAGR of 49%, with an estimated 36 milliomgsatiging such solutions by 2020. Currently,
over 50% of hospitals are already using RPM solutions to improve risk management and care quality.
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The number one cost to the healthcare system is cardiovascular disease (CVD), responsible for 16n eve
healthcare dollars spent in the US. By 2030, CVD is expected to have an impact of over $1 trillion in medical expense:
lost productivity. With CVD also being the number one cause of death worldwide, early detection, diagnosis,
management of chran cardiac conditions are necessary to relieve the increasing burden on the healthcare infrastruc
Diagnostic tests such as ECGs are used to detect, diagnose and track certain types of cardiovascular conditions. We
that the rise of lifestyle tated illnesses associated with heart disease has created a need to develidpctiostdiagnostic
mechanisms to fill a hole in the current ECG market.

The global ECG market is expected to be worth $28 billion in 2021 and is growing at a CAGR of HeBfactors
driving this market include an aging population, an increase in chronic diseases related to lifestyle choices, impr
technology in diagnostic ECG devices, and high growth rates of ECG device sales.

As of 2015, the United States accounted dpproximately 36% of the global ECG market. Assuming this rate
remains unchanged, the US portion of the ECG market is expected to be worth approximately $10 billion in 2021 at
comprised of three major segments: resting {stoess) ECG systems, sigdsCG systems, and event monitoring systems.

We believe that MCT is the preferred diagnostic choice of physicians and cardiologists, as it increases the quali
care and reduces patient risk. The MCT diagnostic is a robust, continuous, remote mgosidoition for cardiac arrhythmia,
and it often eliminates the need for expensive overnight monitoring in a hospital. However, the MCT devices curre
available are based on outdated technologies which often require a patient to wear a device we buokygiddter
performing market research, and are not readily accessible.

In the US, MCT tests are primarily conducted through outsourced Independent Diagnostic Testing Facilities (IDT
that are reimbursed at an average rate of $850 per diagnostichiergt.are currently five competitors we are aware of within
the US MCT diagnostic market, which we believe has effectively restricted MCT services to outsourced clinics and loc
physicians out of the MCT market with no ability to receive financial ransdgment for MCT diagnostics.

We intend to enter our MCT diagnostic device and software solution and compete in the market and emplo
insourcing business model. This proposed business model is applicable to a significantly larger portion of #addbtal a
mar ket , which include hospitals, physiciansd offices
reduced operating overhead by offering our solution on gopayse basis, enabling a more efficient market penetration and
distribution strategy.

Our vision is to revolutionize the MCT market by providing a convenient;aftettive, integrated MCT solution,

inclusive of both software and hardware for the providers and the patients. The solution is designed as a platfor
encompass all segments of the event monitoring market, and future market growth.
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Market Opportunity

ECGs are a key diagnostic test utilized in the diagnosis of cardiovascular disease, the number one cause of
worldwide. The global ECG markét projected to be worth $28 billion in 2021, and, assuming the U.S. continues to ho
approximately 36% of the global market based on 2015 numbers, approximately $10 billion would be attributed to the
ECG market. In the US in 2012, there were 26.6ionilpeople living with cardiovascular disease with an additional 2.5
million people being diagnosed every year. The increasing market size is attributed to an aging population and an infl
chronic diseases related to lifestyle choices.

The US ECG madt is divided into three major product segments:

1. Event monitoring systems;
2. Stress ECG systems; and
3. Resting (norstress) ECG systems.

Event monitoring systems are projected to grow the fastest due to a shift ftomspital/clinic monitoring to
outpatient monitoring. This shift is expected to help reduce health care costs by limiting the number of overnight hos
stays for patient monitoring. We believe that physicians prefer event monitoring systems over resting and stress ECG sy
becaus¢ hey provide better insight to the patientds condi

The event monitoring market is divided into the Holter, Event Loop and Mobile Cardiac Telemetry (MCT) prodt
segments, of which Holter and Event Loop are the current mi&eé¢rs. Amongst event monitoring systems, we believe
that the preferred choice of physicians and cardiologists is MCT, because of its ability to continuously monitor patient
reakt i me , thereby reducing a pat i aeviceS baverbuiip krrhyahmid detectopshands i
reattime communication, which allow physicians to prescribe the device for a longer period of time; thereby enabl
prolonged data collection and delivering a more complete picture for diagnosis.

We beliee that Holter and Event Loop solutions compromise patient safety because they lack the ability to alert
patient in the event of an emergency. With Holter and Event Loop monitoring, ECG data is not uploaded or transmitte
reaktime. Comparatively, ithe patient were monitored through an MCT device withige ECG data transfer and cellular
network access, then in the event of cardiac distress, the monitoring center would immediately send communication 1
patient.

Despite our belief that MCTsithe optimal solution and the preferred system, the MCT Market is the smalle:
segment of event monitoring systems with an estimated size of approximately $918 million. This is because
reimbursement revenues associated with MCT incentivizes the dungiolation providers to earn the fees independent of
the physician. This creates a critical problem in the marketplace where physicians have the choice to either us
Holter/Event monitor, or lose money and prescribe an MCT. An additional optioninsuiohuge costs to build out MCT
capabilities in order to prescribe MCT. As a result, we believe that physicians will mostly prescribe MCT testsrigk high
patients only, where reéilme communication is critical.
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In order to properly administéihe MCT test, a healthcare provider must have access to three essential component

1.

The MCT device;

2.

An ECG reporting software that is capable of reading the data recorded from the device; and

3.
A monitoring center that collects the ECG data andaedg to the patient in case of an alarm detection.

In addition, we believe that there is a shortage in the number of MCT solutions available, as the current M
diagnostic providers essentially control all of the current MCT devices and software. SidceeNlfires an FDAleared
device (meaning for our purposes that it can be used to review medical ECG data from ECG device®afdAECG
reporting software, and remote monitoring capabilities, very few companies have attempted to creaacampHsing
solution due to regulatory and development timelines. We believe that there are currently only 5 MCT solutions within
market, of which there are both solution providers and device manufacturers. There also exists overlap amongst the pro
anddevice manufacturers, leading to further confusion and marketplace complexities.

Of the five MCT systems currently available in the market, three are owned by solution providers (IDTFs) w
employ an outsourcing business model and we believe are unwilisg)l to physicians. The other two MCT providers we
believe are willing to sell their solution at prohibitively high prices for devices plus upfront software costs and ef@er tes
for monitoring. One of these MCT devices does not have scalable sgftarad the other lacks monitoring software,
requiring a customer to acquire third party software and incur integration expenses. In these two scenarios, the phy
would have to incur upfront costs that would take time to recoup before profits &zedeal
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The limited number of competitors makes this an attractive market for new entrants. However, entry into the me
requires a hardware device coupled with ECG software and access to a monitoring center. Two of the five MCT players
donesoby building their own monitoring infrastructure,
MCT device. However, this is capital intensive and we believe cost prohibitive for most hospitals and clinics. These bar
are in our opinionhe key reasons as to why Holter and Event Loop have maintained a significant portion of the $4.66 bill
US event monitoring market.

The Bioflux MCT solution and business model attempts to address these complications with its compledg, turn
solution,which consists of all three essential components: anteasgar GSMenabled cardiac monitoring device, ECG
reporting software, and introduction and access to a-gairty 24/7 ECG monitoring center. As of the date of this
prospectus, we are in discumss with existing thirgparty monitoring centers to provide such monitoring services if
requested by customers, but no definitive agreement or relationship has as of yet been entered into. Bioflux emplo
insourced business model, as the entire BioHabution is expected to be free to doctors and revenue is expected to t
derived from insurance reimbursable ECG reads. We expect that service providers such as physicians, clinics and/or ho
can request as many devices as they require, at no oogtjqu they are utilized. This creates a revenue model based o
usage, with reimbursement to the service provider with amounts then paid to us as a technology vendor and to the mon
center for their services.

Our Bioflux MCT solution is comprisedf @ uniquely designed monitoring device and an ECG reporting software
component. We believe the Bioflux solution will:

1
provide recurring reimbursements to doctors, hospitals and IDTFs;

1
provide a revenue model that fits within the established insurance billing practices;

1
provide builtin cellular connectivity, enabling immediate alert to user in the event of an amogrge

1
provide motion tracking to detect exercise, activity, and disorientation; and

1
incorporate technology that is futaready, in that its form and function enables opportunities adjacent to the MCT market.

Following Bioflux, we intend to introduce rdizalgrade monitoring into the consumer market via our proposed
Biolife solution, which we are designing to improve healthcare with technology that aids chronic disease prevention. Bi
is expected to be designed to empower individuals by creatinpliance optimized user experience that combines ECG
data and social media interactivity with a lifestyle log. Design and development is already underway, and we are expect
launch Biolife sometime in 2017, subject to additional funding.

Market Straegy

The Bioflux MCT device is expected to be depl oy-ed
peruse basis. The MCT diagnostic read currently is a reimbursable service from payers such as Medicare and insL
companies. In the tited States, billing codes for an MCT diagnostic read are currently available under the Americ
Medical Association Current Procedural Terminal, with a current average reimbursement rate of $850 per read (a re
between 3 and 14 days long).
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Welel i eve t ha tperise stfategy, xwilhsno feexfgr device purchases, is a significant and disruptiv
departure from the pricing and reimbursement strategies of the five existing competitors in the MCT market, which u
6cl gaedlend md dimghostitsowhdve the entire procedure and reimbursement is restricted to an outsour
model. The physicians, clinics, hospitals and IDTFs do not receive any financial incentive to switch to the MCT diagno
from other noAMCT devices (i.e. Holteand Event Loop recording monitors).

Bi ofluxdés pricing reimbursement strategy i s expec
emulate our strategy, which would be enabled by planneddsivmanufacturing and the planned usefaldif each devise.

The payperuse strategy expected to be employed by us provides a financial incentive for the healthcare provide
switch devices or technologies (i.e. from Holter and Event Loop) and other cardiac diagnostic solutions. This stra
simultaneously incentivizes major medical di stributor
clinics, hospitals, and IDTFs.

On October 18, 2016, we announced that we have received a 510(k) clearance from the U.S. Fawg and
Administration for the software component of our Bioflux solution. We do not expect to require further clearance from
FDA for the final software product expected to be delivered to us by CardioComm by the end of 2016, as all key compoi
of the ®oftware critical for regulatory review have been submitted to the FDA and all that remains to be delivered
CardioComm are graphics and other design elements. Prior4mutplive will have to finalize additional laboratory testing
of our Bioflux produt, estimated to take approximately eight weeks, and submit the product to the FDA for review whick
expected to take from three to 12 months from the date the application is submitted, but could take longer.

Assuming we have successful results fromlaboratory testing and obtain 510(k) clearance from the FDA, in early
2017, we expect to rethut our first devices to cardiologists, physicians, research scientists and other opinion leaders
2018, we expect to begin widespread distribution with thditiad of a major channel distributor to enable a market
penetration of approximately 2,213 physician offices (out of approximately 221,235 physician offices in the U.S.),
hospitals (out of approximately 5,754 hospitals in the U.S.), and 30 IDTFsf@@00 estimated IDTFs in the U.S.).

Through informal discussions with a limited number of cardiologists and electrophysiologists, we believe that
insourcing business model will be successful and will lead teusats and payers switching to our M@&vice from
existing modalities, and accepting ongoing fees related to providing the technology platform, data charges and suj
however, none of such cardiologists or electrophysiologists have committed to do so, and we have no definitive agreel
in place with any endsers and payorsiAccordingly, we can give no assurance that any of them will in fact follow through
as they indicated or that our business model will prove successful once launched.

Product and Technology

Bioflux is an advanced, iagrated ECG device and software solution for the MCT market. The Bioflux device i
comprised of a wet electrode and worn either on a lanyard around the neck or on a belt clip around the waist. The B
ECG reporting software will allow doctors and lab®s vi ew a patientds ECG data fo
Both the device and software are in accordance with MCT billing code standards, compliant with arrhythmia devices
alarms as defined by the FDA, and require 510(k) clearance, whidiebasbtained with respect to the software.
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The Bioflux device has been developed, among other things, with the following features:

1
GSM mobile chip for global cellular network compatibility;

1
Touchscreen LCD viewer; and

l
Extended battery pack for an additional 48 hours of battery life.

The Bioflux platform has a builh cellular chipset and a redine embedded operating systarich allows for our
technology to be utilized as an Internet of Things (IoT) platform. This technology can be leveraged into other applicat
and industries by utilizing the platform and OS side of Bioflux.

Our ECG software component is a customizeldt&m based on what we believe is the only FDA cleared ECG
vi ewer software for use i n MCT, from Cardi oComm Sol ut
is based on, is already installed and utilized by approximately 300 hospidatalhnenters, and we believe we can leverage
this familiarity to gain access to decision makers at such hospitals and call centers and introduce the Bioflux deyice qt
and efficiently into the marketplace. We are integrating the ECG reporting sefivithr the Bioflux device for a seamless
user experience.

Future Markets

It is widely reported that chronic ilinesses related to lifestyle diseases are on the rise, resulting in increased healt
costs. This has caused a major shift in the US headthmarket, emphasizing a need for evidence based healthcare syste
focused on overall health outcomes. Patient compliance is a critical component in driving improved health outcomes, v
the patient adheres to and iiompUnfertoeately, poortpatient comppahce s one of the
most pressing issues in the healthcare market. One of the key contributing factors to this is the lack of a feedbaak mect
to measure improvement and knowledge. Studies show that poor patigiiacee costs the US healthcare system $100 to
$300 billion annually, representing 3% to 10% of total US healthcare costs.

The above trends point to a need for preventative care solutions that are clinically relevant and designed fo
consumer to proote compliance. Current consumer products are simple gadgets with limited, if any, clinical relevance. T
forces patients to rely on clinical visits to gauge improvement, with time between visits being spent on following «
implementing physician reconmandations. Research has shown that the latter is closely linked-tmmtiance due to the
lack of feedback to patients.
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We expect that Biolife, our planned second product, will be focused on filling this need by developing a clinice
relevant, peventative care and disease management solution for the consumer. A key underlying component of Bioli
expected to be the ability to measure patient improvedenith clinical accurac§ which will drive feedback and eventual
patient compliance. This pmach is implemented in our development process by focusing on a disease/chronic illn
profile, as opposed to a customer profile. We are focused on cardiovascular disease for its first preventative care sc
since Bioflux is aimed at the same hea#dgment. This will enable us to leverage the knowledge and expertise gained wi
Bioflux and apply it to Biolife.

Preventative Care

The preventative care market (also referred to as the health and wellness market) is currently estimated at
billion in 2015. The preventative care market segments include: core diagnostic market and therapeutics ($42 bill
personalized medical care ($100 billion) and nutrition and wellness ($310 billion).

With the knowledge and expertise gained during the develapofiehe Bioflux MCT solution, we have developed a
secondary device, Biolife, aimed at the preventative consumer healthcare market. Biolife is a health and lifestyle sol
comprised of an ECG monitoring device, an app, and social media support. Biolife | track, simplif
health pattern score by aggregating medical grade ECG data with a lifestyle log. The idea is to pretinae fiesdback and
a social support system, so that the individual is motivated to be proactive abairttimg adverse cardiac complications.

Biolifebs target mar ket are individuals between 4
chronic health illnesses who want the support of making lifestyle changes to have a better difality of

We are currently prepared to enter future markets for users that are interested in:

1
Selfmanagement of cardiovascular disease and other related chronic diseases;

1
Users seeking lifestyle and wellness applications for remote ECG monitoring; and

1
Users seeking a predictive and prognostic solution using ECG (known as Heart Rate Variability).

Adjacent Chronic Healthcare Markets and Prenatal Care

In the next two years, we intend to expand our reach with megtiadé solutions for diabetes, slegmea, fetal
monitoring, and other adjacent healthcare and lifestyle markets.

Bi onat al is a proposed solution for monitoring th
approximately 60,000 fetal deaths per year. First time motrerat the greatest risk for still births, approximating 20% of
840,000 pregnanci es. Bi onat al 6s f et al ECG monitoring

900,000 pregnancies.
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Event Monitoring

The Holter and Event dop monitors are significantly simplified versions of an MCT device without a cellular
connectivity solution. Holter and Event Loop monitors require data to be downloaded manually, for test periods of 24 h

to 30 days. With just a few adjustmentstoghe f t war e, Bi ofluxés MCT device is ¢
an Event loop monitor, which would open up the entire Holter and Event Loop monitor markets which are estimated t
$3.7 billion in 2020. C allarkchipses, the Biaflux MCTBdevicé dam bedosie ag3linolldavice

that is applicable to the global event monitoring market. Bioflux intends to offer this complete solution to its three tal
markets: physicians, clinics/hospitals and IDTFs, which included$ioflux MCT device, Bioflux ECG reporting software,
and access to a third party ECG monitoring center. There will fo@stado any of our customers for the device itself, and the
entire revenue is derived from the gagruse service.

Competition

The medical technology equipment industry is characterized by strong competition and rapid technological cha
There are a number of companies developing technologies that are competitive to our existing and proposed products,
of them, when compared twur Company, having significantly longer operational history and greater financial and oth
resources.

Within the US event monitoring systems market, the MCT product segment is comprised of 5 main competit
These competitors have increased markesgiree and distribution primarily through existing IDTFs. The existing
competitors have maintained a competitive advantage within the market by controlling the distribution of all available M
devices and software solutions. The five primary competitatseiMCT market are:

7

CardioNet We believe that CardioNet, LLC, a subsidiary of BioTelemetry, Inc. (NASDAQ:BEAT), has the largest netwo
of IDTFs within the MCT market. CardioNet is considered a complete solution provider as it produces and disdrioutes
MCT device, software solution, and MCT monitoring centers. The company acquired its MCT device through the acquis
of a MCT manufacturer, Braemar. Upon acquisition of Braemar, CardioNet offered limited support to other clients utiliz
Braema 6 s technol ogy. This resulted in CardioNet i ncrea
mar ket penetration. We believe that Cardi oNet 6s busi
opposed to selling MCT &dtions to other IDTFs or service providers, which enables a perpetuadgibfee as opposed to
one time device or software sales. Equity research analysts categorize CardioNet as a clinical health provider, becaus
business model, rather thanaas me di c a | device company. As such, we bel
low multiples associated with that type of business, and, as a clinical health provider, CardioNet has significant oderhea
fixed costs associated with monitagi centers and health professionals.

7

LifeWatch AG LifeWatchAG (SIX Swiss Exchange:LIFE) is a public company with primary operations in Switzerland, th
United States and Israel. LifeWatch operates a large network of IDTFs. LifeWatch is smaller tel@tardioNet, yet we
believe it follows the same business model. To this end, LifeWatch has developed its own MCT device and software soll
as well as established MCT monitoring centers.
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7

eCardio. eCardio is a private company, based in HoustonT e x a s . eCardiobs device is r
device company, TZ Medical . eCardio has integrated T.
MCT solution. Similar to LifeWatch and CardioNet, we believe eCardilovf's the same business model of offering the
MCT service and acting as a clinical health provider.

7

Linecare Li necare is a private company, based in Clear wat e
care, but it also has franchises in diagnostic care, including the MCT product segment of the ECG monitoring ma
Linecare has ol | owed a similar approach as eCardi o, wher e t

solution to offer a complete MCT service. Similarly, it acts as a clinical health provider and offers its MCT service as
outsourced offering tde physician.

7

ScottCare ScottCare is a private company in the US and a subsidiary of Scott Fetzer Company, a division of Berks
Hathaway. ScottCare provides equipment for cardiovascular clinics and diagnostic technicians. ScottCare has built its
MCT device ad software solution. Unlike the others, ScottCare offers its solution in an insourced model, where
physician has the opportunity to bill. This model requires the physician to purchase a minimum number of devices ¢
approximate average cost of $2,080d their software at a cost of $25,000 to $40,000. After this initial upfront cost
ScottCare charges an additional per test fee for monitoring. We believe the above model creates a long return on inve:
for the physician. In our opinion, this hasuted in little market penetration for ScottCare as compared to the others.

7

TZ Medical TZ Medical is a medical device company that focuses on manufacturing a variety of medical devices. We dc
consider TZ Medical to be a direct competitor as theydpce an MCT device that is available for purchase, such as fc
eCardio as described above. However, we do not believe that TZ Medical has a software solution, requiring any new e
to either acquire or build out a software solution and then integ¢inatewith the TZ Medical device. This creates a
requirement for a large upfront capital investment. As a result, we believe this approach only works for organizatigns loc
to become MCT solution providers with the same business model as the others.

We believe that our Bioflux MCT solution will successfully compete because:

1
it is designed as a platform to encompass all segments of the event monitoring market;

1
of the insourcing business model which we believe is applicable to a significantlypartien of the total available market
and enabling a more efficient penetration and distribution strategy; and

1
for the other reasdoivar MetscOp berdt ermirtt y .ed under i
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Intellectual Property

We primarily rely on trade secret protectifor our proprietary information. No assurance can be given that we cal
meaningfully protect our trade secrets. Others may independently develop substantially equivalent confidential
proprietary information or otherwise gain access to, or disclosdrarle secrets.

We have acquired for the MCT market, a customized version of what we believe is the only FDA cleared E
reporting software for use in MCT, from CardioComm Solutions Inc. The software is exclusive for the MCT market, exc
that CardioConm may continue to work with its pexisting relationships in respect of existing MCT Solutions, including
TZ Medical, although we do not believe that any of sucheprei st i ng rel ationships hawv
software in their hardware solutis at this time.The exclusivity is indefinite unless earlier terminated in accordance with the
terms of the agreement, including by CardioComm if we fail to remain current in the payment of applicable royalty f
Once CardioComm delivers to us the fisaftware, currently expected by the end of 2016, and we receive 510(k) clearan
from the FDA, we will be required to pay a royalty fee equal to a $20.00 ECG -caatiofee, on a per patient and an as
collected basis, managed through the software, geovthat the minimum annual royalty fee shall be $75,000 for the first
year and $150,000 per annum thereafter.

We have and generally plan to continue to enter into-distiosure, confidentially and intellectual property
assignment agreements with all nemployees as a condition of employment. In addition, we intend to also generally ent
into confidentiality and noli scl osure agreements with consultants, n
and others to attempt to limit access tee wand disclosure of our proprietary information. There can be no assuranc
however, that these agreements will provide meaningful protection or adequate remedies for our trade secrets in the e\
unauthorized use or disclosure of such information.

We also may from time to time rely on other intellectual property developed or acquired, including patents, techr
innovations, laws of unfair competition and various other licensing agreements to provide our future growth and to builc
competitive psition. We have filed an industrial design patent in Canada, and we may decide to file for additional patent
we continue to expand our intellectual property portfolio. However, we can give no assurance that competitors will
infringe on our patentroother rights or otherwise create similar or +wgininging competing products that are technically
patentable in their own right.

Currently, we do not have any registered copyrights; however, we may obtain such registrations in the future.
Research andDevelopment

Our research and development programs are generally pursued by engineers and scientists employed by us in T
on a fulltime basis or hired as per diem consultants or through partnerships with industry leaders in manufacturing
designand researchers and academia. We are also working with subcontractors in developing specific components ¢

technologies.

The primary objective of our research and development program is to advance the development of our existing
proposed product$p enhance the commercial value of such products.
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Prior to our acquisition of iMedical in the Acquisition Transaction and for the transition period ended December
2015 and the fiscal year ended August 31, 2015, we did not incur any reseadgdvelopment costs. We incurred research
and development costs of $755,907 for the nine months ended September 30, 2016. iMedical incurred researc
development costs of $1,143,453 for the year ended December 31, 2015 and $832,661 for the yearesnded 31e@014.

Government Regulation
General

Our proposed product is subject to rekDAd)atama bayr it
federal and state agencies, as well as by foreign governmental agencies. These agenadswsfant regulations that
govern the development, testing, manufacturing, labeling, advertising, marketing and distribution, and market surveillan
the our medical device products.

In addition to the below, the only regulations we encounter areetidations that are common to all businesses,
such as employment legislation, implied warranty laws, and environmental, health and safety standards, to the ¢
applicable. We will also encounter in the future induspgcific government regulationsathwould govern our products, if
and when developed for commercial use. It may become the case that other regulatory approvals will be required f
design and manufacture of our products and proposed products.

U.S. Regulation

The FDA governs the falwing activities that Biotricity performs, will perform, upon the clearance or
approval of its product candidates, or that are performed on its behalf, to ensure that medical products distril
domestically or exported internationally are safe and éffedbr their intended uses:

A product design, and development;

A product safety, testing, labeling and storage;
A record keeping procedures; and

A product marketing.
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There are numerous FDA regulatorgquirements governing the approval or clearance and subseque

commer ci al mar keting of Biotricityds products. Th
A the timely submission of product listing and establishment registration information, along with associatetirestath
user fees;
A continued compliance with the Quality System Regulation, or QSR, which require specification develope

manufacturers, including thirgarty manufacturers, to follow stringent design, testing, control, documentationhend
quality assurance procedures during all aspects of the manufacturing process;

A labeling regulations and FDA prohibitions against the promotion of products for uncleared, unapprovéddbad affe
or indication;
A clearance papproval of product modifications that could significantly affect the safety or effectiveness of the de

that would constitute a major change in intended use;

A Medical Device Reporting regulations (MDR), which require that manufastkesp detailed records of investigatio
or complaints against their devices and to report to the FDA if their device may have caused or contributed to &
serious injury or malfunctioned in a way that would likely cause or contribute to a desghiaurs injury if it were to

recur;

A adequate use of the Corrective and Preventive Actions process to identify and correct or prevent significant
failures of products or processes or in trends which suggest same;

A postapproval restrictions or conditions, including pasiproval study commitments;

A postmarket surveillance regulations, which apply when necessary to protect the public health or to provide ac

safety and effectiveness data for the devicel

A notices of correction or removal and recall regulations.

Unless an exemption applies, before Biotricity can commercially distribute medical devices in t
United States, it must obtain, depending on the classification of the detioey, prior 510(k) clearance, 510(k)
de-novo clearance or premarket approval (PMA), from the FDA. The FDA classifies medical devices into one
three classes based on the degree of risk associated with each medical device and the extent of regudiory c
needed to ensure the devicebs safety and effectiwv

A Class | devices, which are low risk and subject to only general controls (e.g., registration and listing, medice
labeling compliance, MDRs, Quality System Regulations, aodipitions against adulteration and misbranding) a
in some cases, to the 510(k) premarket clearance requirements;

A Class Il devices, which are moderate risk and generally require 510(k) or 510{&ya@remarket clearance befol
they maybe commercially marketed in the United States as well as general controls and potentially special cont
performance standards or specific labeling requirements; and

A Class Ill devices, which are devices deemed by the FDA to posecthiest risk, such as ligustaining, lifesupporting
or implantable devices, or devices deemed not substantially equivalent to a predicate device. Class Il devices
require the submission and approval of a PMA supported by clinical trial data.
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Biotricity expects the custom software and hardware ofpitsducts to be classified as Class II. Class I
devices are those for which general controls alone are insufficient to provide reasonable assurance of safel
effectiveness and theres isufficient information to establish special controls. Special controls can includ
performance standards, posarket surveillance, patient histories and FDA guidance documents. Premarket revi
and clearance by the FDA for these devices is generallgngidished through the 510(k) or 510¢e
novopremarket notification process. As part of the 510(k) or 510(k)a¥® notification process, the FDA may
require the following:

A Development of comprehensive product description and indicatonsé.

A Compl etion of extensive preclinical tests and pre
Laboratory Practice (GLP) regulations.

A Comprehensive review of predicate devices and developmenttohdasupporting the n
equivalence to one or more predicate devices.

A If appropriate and required, certain types of clinical trials (IDE submission and approval may be required for cor
a clinical trial in the US).

Clinical trials involve use of the medical device on human subjects under the supervision of qualif
investigators in accordance with current Good Clinical Practices (GCPs), including the requirement that
research subjects provide informed consenttfieir participation in the clinical study. A written protocol with
predefined end points, an appropriate sample size anrdepganined patient inclusion and exclusion criteria, is
required before initiating and conducting a clinical trial. All clinicalestigations of devices to determine safety
and effectiveness must be conducted in accordanc
regulations that among other things, govern investigational device labeling, prohibit promotion of 1
investigational device, and specify recordkeeping, reporting and monitoring responsibilities of study sponsors
study investigators. I f the device presents a 0fAs
device sponsor to submit dDE application, which must become effective prior to commencing human clinica
trials. The IDE will automatically become effective 30 days after receipt by the FDA, unless the FDA denies
application or notifies the company that the investigatiomibad and may not begin. If the FDA determines that
there are deficiencies or other concerns with an IDE that requires modification, the FDA may permit a clinical
to proceed under a conditional approval. In addition, the study must be approved! lgnalucted under the
oversight of, an Institutional Review Board (IRB) for each clinical site. If the device presentssmmnificant risk
to the patient, a sponsor may begin the clinical trial after obtaining approval for the trial by one or more IF
without separate approval from the FDA, but it must still follow abbreviated IDE requirements, such as monitot
the investigation, ensuring that the investigators obtain informed consent, and labeling anekeepormgl
requirements.
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A Assuming successful completion of all required testing, a detailed 510(k) premarket notification or 54k de
submitted to the FDA requesting clearance to market the product. The notification includes all relevant de
pertinent preclinicalmd c¢cl i ni cal trial s, together with detai
controls and proposed labeling, and other relevant documentation.

A A 510(k) clearance letter from the FDA will authorize commercial marketing ofléhéce for one or more specifi
indications for use.

A After 510(k) clearance, Biotricity will be required to comply with a number of-plestrance requirements, includin
but not limited to, Medical Device Reporting and complaint handhng, if applicable, reporting of corrective actior
Also, quality control and manufacturing procedures must continue to conform to QSRs. The FDA periodically i
manufacturing facilities to assess compliance with QSRs, which impose extensive mbhadstantive, and recor
keeping requirements on medical device manufacturers. In addition, changes to the manufacturing process a
regulated, and, depending on the change, validation activities may need to be performed. Accordingly, neaau
must continue to expend time, money and effort in the area of production and quality control to maintain con
with QSRs and other types of regulatory controls.

After a device receives 510(k) clearance from FDA, any modification that smxldicantly affect its safety

or effectiveness, or that would constitute a major change in its intended use or technological characteri
requires a new 510(k) clearance or could require a PMA. The FDA requires each manufacturer to make
determiration of whether a modification requires a new 510(k) notification or PMA in the first instance, but tl
FDA can review any such decision. I f the FDA di se
clearance or PMA for a particular changkee FDA may retroactively require the manufacturer to seek 510(k]
clearance or PMA. The FDA can also require the manufacturer to cease U.S. marketing and/or recall the mot
device until additional 510(k) clearance or PMA approval is obtained.

TheFDA and the Feder al Trade Commi ssion, or FTC,
products to ensure that the claims it makes are consistent with its regulatory clearances, that there is scientifi
to substantiate the claims anatlproduct advertising is neither false nor misleading.

To obtain 510(k) clearance, Biotricity must submit a notification to the FDA demonstrating that its propos
device is substantially equivalent to a predicate device (i.e., a device that was inrcamdigribution before
May 28, 1976, a device that has been reclassified from Class Ill to Class | or Class Il, or ecleHdék) device).
The FDAGs 510( k) cl earance process generally tak
subnitted but also can take significantly longer. If the FDA determines that the device or its intended use is
substantially equivalent to a predicate device, the device is automatically placed into Class Ill, requiring
submission of a PMA. Biotricitgubmitted a 510(k) notification to the FDA with respect to its custom software ir
June 2016, and it intends to submit a 510(k) notification to the FDA with respect to its hardware in the fol
quarter of 2016.

There is no guarantee that the FDA will gr&iotricity 510(k) clearance for its pipeline products, and failure
to obtain the necessary clearances for its products would adversely affect its ability to grow its business. Dela
receipt or failure to receive the necessary clearances, or thee falwomply with existing or future regulatory
requirements, could reduce its business prospects.
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Devices that cannot be cleared through the 510(k) process due to lack of a predicate device but wou
considered low or moderate risk may be elgifor the 510(k) daovo process. In 1997, the Food and Drug
Administration Modernization Act, or FDAMA added the de novo classification pathway now codified in sectic
513(f)(2) of the FD&C Act. This law established an alternate pathway to classifyeweeesl into Class | or Il that
had automatically been placed in Class Il after receiving a Not Substantially Equivalent, or NSE, determinatia
response to a 510(k) submission. Through this regulatory process, a sponsor who receives an NSE determi
may, within 30 days of receipt, request FDA to make abaded classification of the device through what is
called a Ade novo request.o In 2012, section 513({
and Drug Administration Safety andnovation Act (FDASIA), in order to provide a second option for de novo
classification. Under this second pathway, a sponsor who determines that there is no legally marketed device
which to base a determination of substantial equivalence can suldeitnavo request to FDA without first
submitting a 510(k).

In the event that Biotricity receives a Not Substantially Equivalent determination for either of its candidate:
response to a 510(k) submission, the device may still be eligible for the 8&0{&Yyo classification process.

Devices that cannot be cleared through the 510(k) or 510¢kode classification process require the
submission of a PMA. The PMA process is much more time consuming and demanding than the 51
notification process. AA must be supported by extensive data, including but not limited to data obtained fro
preclinical and/ or clinical studies and data rel
satisfaction the safety and effectiveness of the deviceAf t er a PMA appl i cat-depth i
review of the information generally takes between one and three years and may take significantly longer. I
FDA does not grant 510(k) clearance to its products, there is no guarantee theityBratt submit a PMA or that
i f it does, that the FDA would grant a PMA approc
affect Biotricityobés business.

We also need to establish a suitable and effective quality management systengestetitibhes controlled processes
for our product design, manufacturing, and distribution. We plan to do this in compliance with the internationally recogni
standard 1SO 13485:2013 Medical DevideQuality Management Systenis Requirements for Regulato Purposes.
Following the introduction of a product, the FDA and foreign agencies engage in periodic reviews of our quality system:
well as product performance and advertising and promotional materials. These regulatory controls, as well as arig chan
FDA policies, can affect the time and cost associated with the development, introduction and continued availability of
products. Where possible, we anticipate these factors in our product development processes. These agencies pos:s
authorityto take various administrative and legal actions against us, such as product recalls, product seizures and othe
and criminal sanctions.

Foreign Regulation

In addition to regulations in the United States, we will be subject to a variety of foegiglations governing clinical
trials and commercial sales and distribution of our products in foreign countries. Whether or not we obtain FDA approva
a product, we must obtain approval of a product by the comparable regulatory authorities ofcfmraiges before we can
commence clinical trials or marketing of the product in those countries. The approval process varies from country to col
and the time may be longer or shorter than that required for FDA approval. The requirements goverconglube of
clinical trials, product licensing, pricing and reimbursement vary greatly from country to country.
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The policies of the FDA and foreign regulatory authorities may change and additional government regulations
be enacted which couldgrent or delay regulatory approval of our products and could also increase the cost of regulat
compliance. We cannot predict the likelihood, nature or extent of adverse governmental regulation that might arise
future legislative or administrativeeon, either in the United States or abroad.

Manufacturing and Suppliers

As we have focused primarily on research and development of the first generation version of the Bioflux, as we
starting the prototyping of Biolife and proposed marketing dattildution, we are not yet at a stage to commence volume
production of our products. We currently assemble our devices at our Redwood City, California facility. In order to main
compliance with FDA and other regulatory requirements, our manufactadiiigies must be periodically revaluated and
gualified under a quality system to ensure they meet production and quality standards. Suppliers of components and pr
used to manufacture our devices must also comply with FDA regulatory requirenvéids, often require significant
resources and subject us and our suppliers to potential regulatory inspections and stoppages.

We are still evaluating our manufacturing strategy and goals and have not yet identifigghttyirchanufacturers.
However, we Wl be required to develop efficient, automated, {o@st manufacturing capabilities and processes to meet the
quality, price, engineering, design and production standards or production volumes required to successfully mass mark
products, especiallgt the lowcost levels we require to absorb the cost of free distribution of our products pursuant to c
proposed business plan.

We currently rely on a number of principal suppliers for the components that make up our products and prop
products, inaiding Digikey Corporation and Mouser Electronics for electronics and connectors, Stolmann for Blueto
modules, Yongan Innovations for batteries, Dongguan Bole RP&M Cp. Ltd. for plastics, Unimed Medical for ECG cab
and Medico Systems for touganel LCD displays. We believe that the raw materials used or expected to be used in c
planned products can be acquired from multiple sources and are readily available on the market.

Employees

We currently have 5 fullime employees and 20 consultants wholesed in our offices located in Toronto, Canada
and Silicon Valley, California. These employees overseetaldgy operations of the Company and with the consultants,
support management, engineering, manufacturing, and administration. We have no uriopipgees.

Based on funding ability, we currently plan to hire 5 to 10 additionatifak employees within the next 12 months,
whose principal responsibilities will be the support of our sales, marketing, research and development, and cli
developnent activities.

We consider relations with our employees to be satisfactory.
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Legal Matters

From time to time, we may become involved in various lawsuits and legal proceedings, which arise in the ordir
course of business. However, litigatiorsighject to inherent uncertainties, and an adverse result in these or other matters r
arise from time to time that may harm business.

We are not currently a party in any legal proceeding or governmental regulatory proceeding nor are we curre
aware ofany pending or potential legal proceeding or governmental regulatory proceeding proposed to be initiated agair
that would have a material adverse effect on us or our business.

Description of Property

Our principal executive office is located in $eal premises of approximately 3,500 square feet at 275 Shorelin
Drive, Redwood City, California. We also have executive offices at leased premises of approximately 5,000 square feet
International Blvd., Suite 300, Toronto, ON Canada MOW 6L9. Wesbelthat these facilities are adequate for our needs,
including providing the space and infrastructure to accommodate our development work based on our current operating
We do not own any real estate.
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MANAGEMENT

Effective as of the closing dhe Acquisition Transaction, Kazi Hasan, at that time our sole director and executiv
officer, resigned as Chief Executive Officer and director and Waqga&iddiq was appointed the sole director of the
Company to fill the vacancy. In addition, our Boafdirectors appointed Wagaas-8lddiq to serve as our President, Chief
Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors, effective immediately upon the closing of the Acquisiti
Transaction.

Name Age Position
Wagqaas AlSiddiq (1) 31 President, Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board of Directors
Dr. Norman M. Betts 62 Director
David A. Rosa 52 Director
Kazi Hasan (2) 69 Former Chief Executive Officer and Director
Peter McGoldrick (3) 51 Former Presient, Chief Executive Officer, Treasurer, Chairman of the

Board of Directors and Chief Financial Officer

1)

Mr. Al-Siddiq was appointed &resident, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors ot
February 2, 2016.

(2)

Kazi Hasan was appointed as Chief Executive Officer and director on December 29, 2015, and subsequ
resigned from his position as Chief Executive Officer and director on February 2, 2016.

(3)

Mr. McGoldrick was appointed as President, Chief Executivec®ff{CEQ), Treasurer, Chairman of the Board of
directors and Chief Executive Officer (CFO) on August 29, 2012 and resigned from his executive and dire
positions on December 29, 2015.

Wagqaas AlISiddiq: President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairmamthe Board of Directors.Waqgaas AlSiddiq
is the founder of iMedical and has been its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer since inception in July 2014. Prior to
from July 2010 through July 2014, he was the Chief Technology Officer of Sensor tiidbdi, a Canadian private
company engaged in research and development activities within the remote monitoring segment of preventative care ar
was acquired by iMedical in August 2014. Mr.-8iddiq also during this time provided consulting servieéh respect to
technology strategy.

Mr. Al-Siddiq serves as a member of the Board of Directors as he is the founder of iMedical and his current exec

position with the Company. We also believe that MSAddiqg is qualified due to his experienceaas entrepreneur and
raising capital.
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Dr. Norman M. Betts: Director.Dr. Betts has been a director of the Company since April 27, 2016. He is a
associate professor, Faculty of Business Administration, University of New Brunswick and a Chartenautaftd-ellow.
Dr. Betts serves as a director of Tanzanian Royalty Exploration Corporation, a mineral resource company with explor
stage properties, the common shares of which are | i st
NYSE MKT LLC wunder the symbol ATRX. 0 He is also a d
(TSX:TMB), an integrated forest products company with operations principally located in Canada and France; L
Independent Director of the Board Adex Mining Inc. (TSXV:ADE), a Canaddased mining company; and 49 North
Resources Inc. (TSXV: FNR), a Saskatchewan focused resource investment company. Dr. Betts was also appointed
Board of Directors of the Bank of Canada and currently servesmasmber of the audit and finance committee and the
pension committee. Additionally, Dr. Betts was a member of the New Brunswick Legislative Assembly from 1993 to 2(
and held three different cabinet posts, including minister of finance from 1999 to P@0Was awarded a PhD in
Management from the School of Business at Queenbd6s Uni

We believe Dr. Betts is qualified to serve as a director due to his extensive accounting, financial management
board of director and governance experience

David A. Rosa: Directaor Mr. Rosa has been a director of the Company since May 3, 2016. He was the President
CEO of Sunshine Heart Inc., aneaslt age medi c al device company trading
October 2009 through Novemb@015. From 2008 to November 2009, Mr. Rosa served as chief executive officer
Milksmart, Inc., a company that specializes in medical devices for animals. From 2004 to 2008, Mr. Rosa served as the
president of global marketing for cardiac surgengl &ardiology at St. Jude Medical. He is a member of the Board of
Directors of QXMedical, LLC, a Montredlased medical device company, and other privdtelg companies.

We believe Mr. Rosa is qualified to serve as a director due to his senior lepdegsgiience in the medical device
industry, and his expertise in market development, clinical affairs, commercialization and public and private financing.

Kazi Hasan: Former Chief Executive Officer and DirectoMr. Hasan is our former Chief Executive floér and
sole director as of December 29, 2015. Mr. Hasan has a Master's Degree in Manufacturing Engineering and an MBA
Boston University. He started his career working as a Consulting Engineer for URS Corp., followed by working as a Sec
Analystfor Prescott, Ball & Turban (since acquired by Kemper). Mr. Hasan has been an entrepreneur and media cons
since 2000, but has been retired from active employment since prior to 2010. Mr. Hasan fesigraddof his executive
officer and board pdsons as of February 2, 2016.
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Peter McGoldrick Former Founder, President, Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Treasurer, Chairman of the
Board of Directors and Chief Financial Officer Mr. McGoldrick is our former President, Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board. Mr. McGoldrick began his career in the energy industry in 1986 with Long Island Lighting Comp:
(or LILCO). We believe Mr. McGoldrick is currently employed by PSEG Long Island, a subsidiary of Public Servic
Enterprise Group Incoguated (PSEG), a publicly traded diversified energy company with annual revenues of $10 billic
PSEG operates the Long | sl and Power Aut h-gearicanyabtsWetealievan s
Mr. McGoldrick manages and overseesws e r a | critical aspects of PSEG6s ser
Senior Work Coordinator, Distribution Support. Mr. McGoldrick has held that position in varying levels of responsibili
since before 2009. Mr. McGoldrick obtained Biachelors of Science in Business Management from Long Island Universit)
in 1990, his Masters of Business Administration from Dowling College in 1995. Mr. McGoldrick received his Accountil
certification from Hofstra University in 2006. Mr. McGoldrick reségl from all of his executive officer and board positions
as ofDecember 29, 2015

There are no family relationships among any of our current officers and directors.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The following table set forth certain information as te ttompensation paid to the executive officers of the
Company during the transition period ended December 3
years ended August 31, 2015 and 20dfurther includes the compensation ptdMr. Al-Siddiq as an executive officer of
iMedical during the transition period and the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Non-Equity
Name and Incentive
Principal Stock Option Plan All Other
Position® Year Salary Bonus Awards Awards Compensation Compensation Total
Wagqaas Al . . .
Siddig @ 2015T $ 60,000 $ 63,000 i i | $ $2,400 $125,400
Chief $ . ) R
Executive 2015 144,859 $ - i $2,190,158 i $ $7,200 $2,342,211
Officer 2014 $ 106,874 | $ | 36,000 i i i $ i $142,874
(4K)azi Hasan 2015T i i i i i $ i i
Former CEO 2015 T [ [ 1 1 $ ] i
2014 T [i [i [i i $ i i
Peter
McGoldrick 2015T $ T i i T i $ T i
®)
Former CEO 2015 $ 18,000 [i [i [i i $ i $ 18,000
2014 $ 18,000 i i i i $ 18,000
(1) _ _
See AManagement o above for information on the da
behalf of the Company.
(2)

Mr. Al-Siddiq was appinted asPresident, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors of thi
Company on the closing of the Acquisition Transaction on February 2, 2016. Until }8rddilj entered into his
employment agreement with the Company on April 12162the was paid as a consultant. A reconciliation
between the compensation paid to Mr-3\tldiq as set forth in the table and the information disclosed in Note 1.
to the financial statements for the 2014 and 2015 fiscal years found on-gag# Ehis pospectus, is as follows:

Fiscal Years Ended:
December 31,

December 31, 2015 2014
Payments to related party as per footnote 11 $ 249,145 $ 198,611
Less payments to Geoffrey Smith (46,920) (53,946)
202,225 144,665
For the transition period September 1, 2015 to
December 31, 2015 (123,000)
For the period September 1 to December 31, 20 65,634 (65,634)
For the period September 1 to December 31, 20 63,843
For the fiscal year ended August 31 $ 144,859 $ 142,874
For the fiscal years endedigust 31:
Salary $ 144,859 $ 106,874
Bonus - 36,000
$ 144,859 $ 142,874
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3)

For assumptions made in such valuation, setes 2 and 9 to our audited financial statements included in thi:
prospectus. All of such options were exercised by WSildig in 2015.
(4)

Mr. Hasan resigned from his executive and director positions on February 2, 2016.

(5)

Mr. McGoldrick resigned fsm his executive and director positions on December 29, 2015.

Outstanding Equity Awards

The following table provides information about the number of outstanding equity awards held by our nan
executive officers at December 31, 2015.

Option awards Stock awards
Equity
incentive
plan
awards:
Market
Equity or
'”‘;‘T;‘:]"’e payout
awards: | value of
Equity Market Number | unearned
incentive Number value of of shares,
plan . of shares or | unearned units or
awards: shares units of shares, h
Number of Number of Number of or units stock units or Qt er
securities securities securities of stock that have other rights
underlying underlying underlying that not rights that have
unexercised | unexercised unexercised Option have vested as | that have not
options options unearned exercise Option not of not
) ) options price expiration vested 12/31/15 | vested vested
Name exercisable | unexercisable #) ($) date #) ($) #) (%)
Waqaas - - -
Al-Siddiq
Kazi Hasan - R R
Peter - - -
McGoldrick

Employment Agreements

We entered into an employment agreement with Waqa&sd@liqg on April 12, 2016, to serve as our Chief
Executive Officer, on an indefinite basis subject to the termination provisions describecagreement. Pursuant to the
terms of the agreement, Mr.-8liddiq will receive an annual base salary of $240,000 per annum, to be reviewed annually k
the Board of Directors. If we successfully secure an aggregate $6 million or more pursuant tmoreeasm's length, third
party debt or equity financings, Mr.Ai ddi gés annual base s al aiSiddigsshalsoleligible n c |
to receive a minimum annual bonus of 50% of annual base salary for the prior year based on hidl ipeifadorance and
the achievement of corporate objectives as determined by the Board.
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Pursuant to the agreement, we granted as of July 12, 2016 to {8rddif| options to purchase 2,499,998 shares of
our common stock, representing 10% of our outiitapshares at such date, at an exercise price per share of $2.20- Mr. A
Siddig shall be entitled to participate in our benefit plans generally made available to employees in accordance with the
of such plans.

We may terminate Mr. ABi d d i g §reent etnapyl time for just cause without payment of any compensatior
either by way of anticipated earnings or damages of any kind, except for annual base salary and vacation pay accru
owing up to the effective mean (a)amateridl reachibynMriBiddiqrof the fiedms of t
the agreement; (b) a conviction of or plea of guilty or nolo contendere to any felony or any other crime involving dishon
or moral turpitude, (c) the commission of any act of fraud or distypnastheft of or intentional damage to our property, (d)
willful or intentional breachof Mr. ASi ddi q6és fi duciary duties, (e) the vi
time or (f) any act or conduct that would constitute cause atoomntaw.

fMr.AlI-Si ddi gbs empl oyment is terminated by wus for- an
Siddig with: (a) a severance payment equal to 12 months of his then annual base salary plus an amount equal to t
annual bonos paid to him; (b) all annual base salary and vacation pay accrued and owing; and (c) a continuation of
contributions necessary to mai nt ain hi s Executi veds
employment standards legislation all group insurance and benefit or pension plans or programs provided to hi
immediately prior to the termination of employment.

The agreement contains customary-eompetition and nosolicitation provisions pursuant to which Mr.-8iddiq
agrees noto compete and solicit with us. Mr. Aliddig also agreed to customary terms regarding confidentiality, ownershij
of intellectual property and negtisparagement.

This summary is qualified in all respects by the actual terms of the employment agredmanisiiled as Exhibit
10.7 to our Form 1K for the transition period from September 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015.

Corporate Governance

The business and affairs of the Company are managed under the direction of our Board of Directors, whic
compried of Wagaas ASiddig, Dr. Norman M. Betts and David Rosa.

Term of Office

Directors are appointed to hold office until the next annual general meeting of stockholders or until removed fi
office in accordance with our bylaws. Our officers are appoibyeaur Board and hold office until removed by our Board.

All officers and directors listed above will remain in office until the next annual meeting of our stockholders, a
until their successors have been duly elected and qualified. Our bylaws piwatidgficers are appointed annually by our
Board and each executive officer serves at the discretion of our Board.
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Director Compensation

Our directors are reimbursed for expenses incurred by them in connection with attending board meetirgibleare el
for stock option grants but they do not receive any other compensation for serving on the board at this time. We pl:
compensate independent directors in the future.

In connection with the appointment of Dr. Betts in April 2016, we granted wart@purchase 40,000 shares of our
common stock, at an exercise price per share of $2.00. In connection with the appointment of Mr. Rosa in May 201¢
granted warrants to purchase 40,000 shares of our common stock, at an exercise price per share of $2.0

Board Committees

Our board of directors does not currently have any committees, such as an audit committee or a compens
committee. However, the board of directors may establish such committees in the future. However, our board of director
establish an audit committee and a compensation committee (and any other committees that are required) if the Cot
seeks to be listed on a national securities exchange.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics Policy

We adopted a Code of Business Conduct Bthics as of April 12, 2016, that applies to, among other persons, ou
principal executive officers, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, and persons performil
similar functions. Our Code of Business Conduct andcEtisi available on our website www.biotricity.com.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

The Company has not had a class of securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) or 12(g) of the Sect
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended fhE x c hange Act 0) and therefore our exe
than 10% of our equity securities have not been subject to the reporting requirements of Section 16(a) of the Exchang
On or prior to the effective date of the reasibn statement of which this prospectus forms a part, we intend to register und
the Exchange Act under Section 12(qg).
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Director Independence

We use the definition of ii ndependenceodo of The NA
Listi ng Rule 5605(a)(2) provides that an fAindependent d
or any other i ndividual having a relationship, whi ch
exercise of indgendent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a director. The NASDAQ listing rules provide tha
director cannot be considered independent if:

1
The director is, or at any time during the past three years was, an employee of the company;

1

The director or a family member of the director accepted any compensation from the company in excess of $120,000 c
any period of 12 consecutive months hiit the three years preceding the independence determination (subject to cert:
exclusions, including, among other things, compensation for board or board committee service);

1
A family member of the director is, or at any time during the past threewaarsan executive officer of the company;

1
The director or a family member of the director is a partner in, controlling stockholder of, or an executive officertiof an er
to which the company made, or from which the company received, payments irrrér@ ou any of the past three fiscal

years that exceed 5% of the recipientdés consolidated
certain exclusions);
1

The director or a family member of the director is employed as ecuéxe officer of an entity where, at any time during the
past three years, any of the executive officers of the company served on the compensation committee of such other enti

1
The director or a family member of the director is a currentparfnero he company6és outside au

past three years was a partner or employee of the com

Under such definitions, both Dr. Betts and Mr. Rosa are independent directors.
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OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table shows the beneficial ownership of our Common Stock as of Dec@md@t6 held by (i) each
person known to us to be the beneficial owner of more than five percent of our @@twes; (i) each director and director
nominee; (iii) each executive officer; and (iv) all directors, director nominees and executive officers as a group.

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC, and generally wvalundepower
and/or investment power with respect to the securities held. Shares of Common Stock subject to options and wa
currently exercisable or which may become exercisable within 60 days of December 8 , 2016 are deemed outstandir
beneficidly owned by the person holding such options or warrants for purposes of computing the number of shares
percentage beneficially owned by such person, but are not deemed outstanding for purposes of computing the perc
beneficially owned by any oth@erson. Except as indicated in the footnotes to this table, the persons or entities named F
sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of our Common Stock shown as beneficially owned by them.

The following table assumes 26,254,62@rsls are outstanding as of Decem®er2016 , consisting of 17,131,589
shares of Common Stock and 9,123,031 Common Stock equivalents through the Exchangeable Shares. The perce
below assume the exchange by all of the holders of Exchangeable Shidledioél for an equal number of shares of our
Common Stock in accordance with the terms of the Exchangeable Shares. Unless otherwise indicated, the address
beneficial holder of our Common Stock is our corporate address.

% of Shares of Common

Shares of Common Stock Stock Beneficially

Name of Beneficial Ower Beneficially Owned Owned
Wagqaas AlSiddiq(1) 5,198,447 19.44%
Isa Khalid Abdulla AtKhalifa 2,814,594 10.72%
Riazul Huda (2)(3) 2,142,515 8.16%
Caldwell ICM Market Stategy Trust (2) (4) 1,522,193 5.80%
Ansari American Holdings, LLC (5) 1,436,322 5.47%
Norman M. Betts (6) T T
David A. Rosa (6) T T
All directors, director appointees and executive
officers as a group (3 person) 5,198,447 19.44%

* Less than 1%

1)

Includes an option to purchase an aggregate of 486,111 shares of our common stock granted-®iddiq Al
pursuant to his employment agreement. Excludes an additional 2,013,887 shares underlying such option th
nat exercisable within 60 days of the date of this prospectus.

(2)

Such shares are held as Exchangeable Shares for tax purposes. The Exchangeable Shares have the fc
attributes, among others:

1

Be, as nearly as practicable, the economic equivalent of the Common Stock as of the consummation o
Acquisition Transaction;

1
Have dividend entitlements and other attributes corresponding to the Common Stock;

1
Be exchangeabl e,on &tCommoo 8tockandder 6s opti

1
Upon the direction of our board of directors, be exchanged for Common Stock on the 10 year anniversary o

Acquisition Transaction, subject to applicable law, unless exchanged earlier upon the occurrence of certain evi
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The holders of the Exchangeable Shares, through the Special Voting Preferred Stock, will have voting rights
other attributes corresponding to the Common Stock.

3)

Of such shares, 837,855 are held indirectly by 1903790 Ontario Inc., of which Ma. isliuhe sole owner and
director.

(4)

Includes warrants to acquire 325,258 shares of our common stock. Brendan T.N. Caldwell has voting
dispositive control over these shares. Its address is 150 King Street West, Suite 1702, P.O. Box 47, Tor
Ontaio M5H 1J9.

(5)

We believe that Mohsin Ansari has voting and dispositive control over these shares.

(6)

Does not include 40,000 warrants that are not exercisable within 60 days of the date of this prospectus,
exercise price per share of $2.00.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS, PROMOTERS AND CERTAIN CONTROL PERSONS

As of February 2, 2016, as part of the Acquisition Transaction and the resignation of Mr. Hasan as our C
Executive Officer, we cancelled an aggregate of 6,500,000 shares of the @ofmgan c o mmon st ock bei
him.

On August 11, 2014, all the stockholders of our predecessor, Sensor Mobility, including$ddA), entered into a
series of roll over agreements for the sale of their shares to iMedical. Pursuant to teeseeats, all the stockholders of
Sensor Mobility received twice the number of shares of iMedical in exchange for their shares in Sensor Mobi
Accordingly, iMedical issued 11,829,500 shares in exchange for 5,914,750 shares of Sensor Mobility, which v
subsequently cancelled, effective November 21, 2014. As a result, the former stockholders of Sensor Mobility, including
Al-Siddig, became the majority stockholders of iMedical. MrSKIdiq was also the Chief Technology Officer of Sensor
Mobility from July 2010 through July 2014.

In May 2015, iMedical repurchased 1,100,000 of its outstanding common shares at a price per share of CDN$O.
from 2427304 Ontario Inc., which is beneficially owned by Geoffrey Smith, a former board member. Thesevetares
cancelled upon their repurchase.

During April 2014, Sensor Mobility entered into agreements for the issuance of warrants against consulting serv
with two of its then stockholders, David Liepert and Emrana Holdings, who own 287,264 and 17%f¥) cfhthe
Company, respectively, and issued 179,550 (150,00@\gueisition Transaction) warrants entitling those stockholders to
purchase one common share against each warrant at an exercise price of $0.38 ($8cdisitien Transaction) per
warrart to be exercised within one year from the issuance date. The fair value of these warrants amounting to $137,22.
included in general and administrative expenses.

During July 2014, Sensor Mobility issued 169,974 (142,000Agprpuisition Transaction) ammon shares for
consulting services to its stockholders, Atik Nakrawala, Naveed Malik and Idris Elbarki, who own 2,393, 502,713 and 71
shares of the Company, respectively. The fair value of these shares amounting to $66,179 ($0.39 per share ($0.4
Acquisition Transaction)), determined based on the then private placements, was recorded as consulting expenses, wh
included in general and administrative expenses during the year ended December 31, 2014 with corresponding cre
common stock athadditional paid in capital.
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In addition, we paid consulting fees to a stockholder, 2427304 Ontario Inc., which is beneficially owned by Geoff
Smith, a former board member who owns 957,548 shares of the Company, amounting to $46,920 antb®83c9¢dars
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

SELLING STOCKHOLDERS

This prospectus relates to the registration of an aggregate of 22,989,515 shares of our common stock, of which:

1
8,165,483 shares are issuable upon the exchange sthrding Exchangeable Shares of our indirect subsidiary, 106202

B.C. LTD., a British Columbia corporation;

1
14,420,973 outstanding shares of our common stock; and

1
403,059 shares of our common stock underlying outstanding common stock purchase.warrants

Each Exchangeable Share and the warrants may be adjusted, as provided under the terms of such instrume
stock splits, stock dividends and other similar transactions.

The selling stockholders identified in this prospectus may offer the sharas @framon stock at prevailing market
prices at the time of sale, at prices related to the prevailing market price, at varying prices determined at the dimeadf sal
negotiated prices. See APlan of Distributiono for add

Unless othewise indicated, we believe, based on information supplied by the following persons, that the pers
named in the table below have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of common stock that
beneficially own. The information presnt ed i n the columns under the headin
assumes the sale of all of our shares offered by this prospectus. The registration of the offered shares does nongnean 1
or all of the selling stockholders will, as@igcable, exchange any or all of their Exchangeable Shares, or exercise any or
of their warrants, or that they will offer or sell any of the shares of common stock upon any such exchange or exercise.

Unless otherwise indicated elsewhere in this prasige none of the selling stockholders have within the past three
years had any position, office or other material relationship with the Company or any of its predecessors or affiliates.
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Name of Selling
Stockholder

1634792 Ontario Inc.
12

1903790 Ontario Inc.
(1)A)

Aamar Khwaja (1)
Abdulla Silim (1)

Ali Bokhari (1)

Atik Nakrawala (1)
Brianne Elizabét Hanson
1)

Caldwell ICM Market
Strategy Trust (1)(4)
Cassandra Jane Hanson
1)

Christopher Sims
Professional
Corporation()(5)

David Liepert (1)
Emrana Holdings
Incorporated (1)(6)
George Nikopoulos (1)
Idris Elbakri (1)

Jay Khemchandani (1)
Jennifer Cook (1)

John Dushinski (1)

The Siddiqui Family Trust
1))

Madeline Nancy Hanson
1)

Naveed Malik (1)
Pervez M. and Jeroo Patel
(1)

Redwood Pension Class (1
(8)

Riazul Huda (1)

RKH Ltd (1) (9)

Sinna Mozifian (1)

Syed Mohsinur Reza (1)
Tarek Fakhuri (1)

Taylor Ross Hanson (1)
Thomas John Finch (1)
Vaani Sigamany (1)

Asif Mustafa

Fareeha AlSiddiq

Farhan Huda

Isa Khalid Abdulla A}
Khalifa

Jeff Woo

Jimmy Jun Gu
Mohammad Siddiqui
Rizwana Siddiqui

Ansari American Holdings,
LLC (10)

Sohaira Zahid Siddiqui
Spencer LaDow

Syed Ahsan Aslam
Wagqaas AlSiddiq

Number of
Shaes
Beneficially
Owned

389,004

837,855
179,540
11,969
11,969
2,393

83,785
1,522,193

23,938

167,571
287,264

179,540
143,632
71,816
23,938
478,774
179,540

179,540

119,693
502,713

418,927

678,4@
1,304,660
394,988
167,571
131,662
47,877
119,693
5,984
23,938
59,846
718,161
143,632

2,814,594
149,616
14,961
718,161
718,161

1,436,322
718,161
1,053,303
119,693
4,712,336

Common Stock

Shares Beneficially Owned After Offering

Offered by the
Selling
Stockholder

389,004

837,855
179,540
11,969
11,969
2,393

83,785
1,522,193

23,938

167,571
287,264

179,540
143,632
71,816
23,938
478,774
179,540

179,540

119,693
502,713

418,927

478,774
1,304,660
394,988
167,571
131,662
47,877
119,693
5,984
23,938
59,846
718,161
143,632

2,814,594
149,616
14,961
718,161
718,161

1,436,322
718,161
1,053,303
119,693
4,712,336

Number

Percent




Schnarr Hldings
Corporation (11) 166,667 166,667
Faolan & Katherine Delany 6,667 6,667
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Jennifer Cook 133,334 133,334 - -
Greg Symons & Debbie

Ignagni 23,334 23,334 - -
Jayshree Khemchandani 66,667 66,667 - -
Albatech 20,000 20,000 - -
Dan's Doors and Glass

Limited (12) 24,844 24,844 - -
M.T. Berger 36,420 36,420 - -
Kim & Bonnie McKenzie 24,692 24,692 - -
Susan Rogers 21,124 21,124 - -
Thomas Scanlan 24,806 24,806 - -
Malaka ElAlaily 15,866 15,866 - -
David and Kerrie Curran

Jong 16,850 16,850 - -
1069754 @tario (13) 24,719 24,719 - -
Sohaira Siddiqui 50,000 50,000 - -
Hero Ventures Ltd (14) 133,334 133,334 - -
Julie M. Osborne 6,667 6,667 - -
David Slorach 13,334 13,334 - -
Derek Slorach 6,667 6,667 - -
Alison Slorach 13,334 13,334 - -
Wayne Douglas Cockburn

(15) 16,667 16,667 - -
The Asylum Inc. (16) 66,667 66,667 - -
Apurva Udavant 3,736 3,736 - -
Leanne Dolan 3,113 3,113 - -
Syed Razzaqi 124,517 124,517 - -
Tom Elias (17) 77,801 77,801 - -
TOTAL 23,189,141 22,989,515

* Less than 1%
(1)
Represents shares of our common stock that may be issued to the selling stockholder upon the exchar
Exchangeable Shares held by such selling stockholder, onfareoee basis.
(2)
John Sanchez has voting and dispositmetiol over these shares.
3)
Riazul Huda has voting and dispositive control over these sh@teh person is a former director of iMedical.
(4)
Represents (a) 1,196,935 shares of our common stock that may be issued to the selling stockholder upc
exchange of Exchangeable Shares held by such selling stockholder, offica-one basis and (b) 325,258 shares
underlying warrants. The warrants may be exercised at any time through their maturity dates ranging 1
September 21, 2017 through October 19,28t exercise prices that range from CND 1.25 to $2.00. Brendan T.N
Caldwell has voting and dispositive control over these shares.
(5)
Christopher Henry Sims has voting and dispositive control over these shares.
(6)
Nayyar Razvi has voting and disposgtigontrol over these shares.
(7)
M. Kamran Siddiqui has voting and dispositive control over these shares. Mr. Siddiqui has represented to us tt
is an affiliate of a brokedealer, and purchased such securities in the ordinary course of businesshentine of
the purchase thereof, he had no agreements or understandings, directly or indirectly, with any person to dist
such securities.

(8)



Peter Shippen, President and Portfolio Manager has voting and dispositive control over these shares.
Se)lfer Hanson has voting and dispositive control over these shares.

S&g)believe that Mohsin Ansari has voting and dispositive control over these shares.

C(-:-]ig‘l A. Schnarr has voting and dispositive control over these shares.

I(Eltj%\)/ard P. Micheli bs voting and dispositive control over these shares.

IE/Iligilael Wurstlin has voting and dispositive control over these shares.

74



(14)

Colin Webster has voting and dispositive control over these shares.

(15)

Mr. Cockburn has represented to us thatshan affiliate of a brokedtealer, and purchased such securities in the

ordinary course of business and, at the time of the purchase thereof, he had no agreements or understal
directly or indirectly, with any person to distribute such securities.
(16)

Ron Angellotti has voting and dispositive control over these shares.
(17)
Represents shares of our common stock that may be issued to the selling stockholder upon the exercise of cc

stock purchase warrants held by such selling stockholder. Thanvamay be exercised at any time through its
maturity date of October 1, 2017, at an exercise price per share of $1.00.
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DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES
General

Our authorized capital stock consists of 125,000,000 shares of common stock, with a paf $a1061 per share,
and 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, with a par value of $0.001 per share. As of D&ce@®®8, there were
17,131,589 shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding, of which 458,750 are held in escrow and subject to fori
(See ABuUWsieneAscsqui sition Transactiono above for a desc
9,123,031 Exchangeable Shares issued and outstanding. Of the shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding (or t
be issued upoexchange of the Exchangeable Shares), approximately 23,668,995 of such shares are or would be rest
shares under the Securities Act, subject to registration pursuant to the registration statement of which this prosgeztus f
part. There is currdly one share of the Special Voting Preferred Stock issued and outstanding held by one holder of rec
which is the Trustee in accordance with the terms of the Trust Agreement. None of these restricted shares are eligik
resale absent registration an exemption from registration under the Securities Act. As of the date hereof, the exempti
from registration provided by Rule 144 under the Securities Act is not available for these shares pursuant to Rule 144(i).

Common Stock

Pursuant to Article lof the Amended and Restated-Byvs of the Company, each holder of Common Stock and
securities exchangeable into Common Stock that vote with the Common Stock are entitled to one vote for each sh:e
Common Stock held of record by such holder with resfeall matters to be voted on or consented to by our stockholders
except as may otherwise be required by applicable Nevada law. Unless the vote of a greater number or voting by cla:
required by Nevada statut e, ontohits bylewsnipall mattérs othérrthai tlielelecsion of f
directors, the affirmative vote of a majority of the voting power of the capital stock (or securities exchangeable incaccord
with their terms into capital stock of the Company) present iropeos represented by proxy at the meeting and entitled to
vote on the subject matter shall be the act of the shareholders. Furthermore, except as otherwise required by la
Companybés Articles of 1l ncor por atyaglorality of the woting gower af thes capitad |
stock (or securities exchangeable in accordance with their terms into capital stock of the Company) present in pers
represented by proxy at the meeting and entitled to vote on the election of directors.

The stockholders do not have meptive rights under our Certificate of Incorporation to acquire additional shares c
Common Stock or other securities. The Common Stock is not be subject to redemption rights and carry no subscripti
conversion righg. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the stockholders will be entitled to share in corporate asset
a pro rata basis after the Company satisfies all liabilities and after provision is made for each class of capital riock h
preference ovethe Common Stock (if any). Subject to the laws of the State of Nevada, if any, of the holders of &
outstanding series of preferred stock, the Board of Directors will determine, in their discretion, to declare divideatale advic
and payable to the holdeof outstanding shares of Common Stock. Shares of our Common Stock are subject to tran
restrictions.
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Blank-Check Preferred Stock

We are currently authorized to issue up to 10,000,000 shares of blank check preferred stock, $0.001 par valu
share, of which one share has currently been designated as the Special Voting Preferred Stock (as described belov
Board of Directors has the discretion to issue shares of preferred stock in series and, by filing a Preferred StockrDesig
or similar instrument with the Nevada Secretary of State, to establish from time to time the number of shares to be includ
each such series, and to fix the designation, power, preferences and rights of the shares of each such Series ¢
gualifications limitations and restrictions thereof.

Special Voting Preferred Stock

The Board authorized the designation of a class of the Special Voting Preferred Stock, with the rights and prefere
specified below. For purposes of deferring Canadian tax ligsilitiat would be incurred by certain of our shareholders,
iMedical and its shareholders have entered into a transaction pursuant to which the eligible holders, who would
otherwise received shares of common stock of the Company pursuant to the ideqglisinsaction, received Exchangeable
Shares. The right to vote the Common Stock equivalent of such Exchangeable Shares shall be conducted by the vote
Special Voting Preferred Stock issued to the Trustee.

In that regard, we have designated oreretof preferred stock as the Special Voting Preferred Stock with a par valu
of $0.001 per share. The rights and preferences of the Special Voting Preferred Stock entitle the holder (the Trustes
indirectly, the holders of the Exchangeable Sharetetdollowing:

1
the right to vote in all circumstances in which holders of our common stock have the right to vote, with the common stoc

one class;

1

an aggregate number of votes equal to the number of shares of our common stock that are igbeabtdders of the
outstanding Exchangeable Shares;

1

the same rights as the holders of our common stock as to notices, reports, financial statements and attendance
stockholder meetings;

1
no entitlement to dividends; and

)l
a total sum of $1.00 upowindup, dissolution or liquidation of the Company.

The Company may cancel the Special Voting Preferred Stock when there are no Exchangeable Shares outst:
and no option or other commitment of iMedical of its affiliates, which could require iMealiged affiliates to issue more
Exchangeable Shares.

As set forth above, the holders of the Exchangeable Shares, through the Special Voting Preferred Stock, have \

rights and other attributes corresponding to the Common Stock. The Exchangeadsep&hade an opportunity for Eligible
Holders to obtain a full deferral of taxable capital gains for Canadian federal income tax purposes in specified cirsumstar
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Registration Rights

We have agreed to register the shares of common stock ares sif Common Stock underlying the Exchangeable
Shares issued to the iMedical shareholders in the Acquisition Transaction by means of filing a registration statement wif
SEC. We will pay all costs and expenses incurred by us in complying with egataiis to file the registration statement,
except that the selling holders wild/l be responsi bloe f
other compensation to selling agents and similar persons. The registration dtatembeich this prospectus forms a part
satisfies such registration obligations.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Action Stock Transfer Corporation is the transfer agent for our shares of common stock. Its address is 2469 E.
Union Blvd., Suite 214, Saltake City, UT 84121; Telephone: (801) 27@88.

Penny Stock

Our Common Stock is subject to provisions of Section 15(g) and Ruk® HBghe Exchange Act, commonly
referred to as the fApenny st ock r ul wansactioBsircpennystocklabd Rule
1509 (d) incorporates the definiti o-bofthd ExdhgngerAntyThesSE©® gekedallyt
defines a penny stock to be any equity security that has a market price less than $5.08,mrigbeirto certain exceptions.
The Company is subject to the SEC6s penny stock rul es

Since the Common Stock will be deemed to be penny stock, trading in the shares of our common stock is subje
additional sales practice requirements on braleskrs who sell penny stock to persons other than established customers a

accredited investors. AAccredited investorso are per
$200,000 or $300,000 together with their spouse. For transaaavered by these rules, brokiealers must make a special
suitability determination for the purchase of such se

prior to the purchase. Additionally, for any transaction involvingeany stock, unless exempt the rules require the delivery,
prior to the first transaction of a risk disclosure document, prepared by the SEC, relating to the penny stock marleet. A br
dealer also must disclose the commissions payable to both the-teaer and the registered representative and current
guotations for the securities. Finally, monthly statements must be sent disclosing recent price information for the p
stocks held in an account and information to the limited market in penny s@mksequently, these rules may restrict the
ability of brokerd e al er to trade and/or maintain a market iin ou
stockholders to sell their shares of common stock.
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

Each seling stockholder of the securities offered hereby and any of their pledgees, assignees and simecesso
interest may, from time to time, sell any or all of their securities covered hereby on the principal trading marketharany c
stock exchange, market tvading facility on which the securities are traded or in private transactions. These sales may b
fixed or negotiated prices. A selling stockholder may use any one or more of the following methods when selling securiti

A

ordinary brokerage transtions and transactions in which the broker dealer solicits purchasers;

A

block trades in which the broker dealer will attempt to sell the securities as agent but may position and resell athertion
block as principal to facilitate the transaction;

purchases by a broker dealer as principal and resale by the broker dealer for its account;

an exchange distribution in accordance with the rules of the applicable exchange;
A

privately negotiated transactions;
A

settlement of short sales entered interatie effective date of the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part;
A

in transactions through broker dealers that agree with the selling stockholders to sell a specified number of suclatsacuriti
stipulated price per security;

through the writing or settlement of options or other hedging transactions, whether through an options exchange or other

a combination of any such methods of sale; or
A

any other method permitted pursuant to applicable law.

The selling stockholdersay also sell securities under Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (or
Securities Act), if available, rather than under this prospectus.

Broker dealers engaged by the selling stockholders may arrange for other brokers dealersigateantisales.
Broker dealers may receive commissions or discounts from the selling stockholders (or, if any broker dealer acts as age
the purchaser of securities, from the purchaser) in amounts to be negotiated, but, except as set forttememistpthis
prospectus, in the case of an agency transaction not in excess of a customary brokerage commission in complianc
FINRA Rule 2440; and in the case of a principal transaction a markup or markdown in compliance with FHRB£0IM

In connetion with the sale of the securities or interests therein, the selling stockholders may enter into hedc
transactions with brokedealers or other financial institutions, which may in turn engage in short sales of the securities in
course of hedginghe positions they assume. The selling stockholders may also sell securities short and deliver tt
securities to close out their short positions, or loan or pledge the securities todwalegs that in turn may sell these
securities. The selling stkisolders may also enter into option or other transactions with bdwaers or other financial
institutions or create one or more derivative securities which require the delivery to suchdeadkeror other financial
institution of securities offerebly this prospectus, which securities such bralealer or other financial institution may resell
pursuant to this prospectus (as supplemented or amended to reflect such transaction).
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The selling stockholders and any brekiealers or agents thateanvolved in selling the securities may be deemed to
be Aunderwriterso within the meaning of the Securitie
received by such brokelealers or agents and any profit on the resale of theises purchased by them may be deemed to
be underwriting commissions or discounts under the Securities Act. Each selling stockholder has informed the Compan
it does not have any written or oral agreement or understanding, directly or indiretilyanyi person to distribute the
securities. In no event shall any brokieraler receive fees, commissions and markups which, in the aggregate, would exce
eight percent.

We have agreed to pay certain fees and expenses incurred by us incident totthéaegitthe securities.

Because selling stockholders may be deemed to be @
be subject to the prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act including Rule 172 thereundeiorin aulgit
securities covered by this prospectus which qualify for sale pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act may be sold
Rule 144 rather than under this prospectus. The selling stockholders have advised us that there is no underwri
coordnating broker acting in connection with the proposed sale of the resale securities by the Selling Stockholders.

We have agreed to keep this prospectus effective until the earlier of (i) the date on which the securities may be r
by the selling stocktiders without registration and without regard to any volume or marfreale limitations by reason of
Rule 144, without the requirement for us to be in compliance with the current public information under Rule 144 under
Securities Act or any otherleuof similar effect or (ii) all of the securities have been sold pursuant to this prospectus or Rt
144 under the Securities Act or any other rule of similar effect. The resale securities will be sold only through repistere
licensed brokers or deateif required under applicable state securities laws. In addition, in certain states, the resale secur
covered hereby may not be sold unless they have been registered or qualified for sale in the applicable state or an exe
from the registratiolor qualification requirement is available and is complied with.

Under applicable rules and regulations under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (or the Excl
Act), any person engaged in the distribution of the resale securities may ndtaseously engage in market making
activities with respect to the common stock for the applicable restricted period, as defined in Regulation M promulg
under the Exchange Act, prior to the commencement of the distribution. In addition, the setlkinglsiers will be subject
to applicable provisions of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations thereunder, including Regulation M, which
limit the timing of purchases and sales of securities of the common stock by the selling stockholdecthmr grgrson. We
will make copies of this prospectus available to the selling stockholders and have informed them of the need to dgliver a
of this prospectus to each purchaser at or prior to the time of the sale (including by compliance with Ruiéel 7@e
Securities Act).
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LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the shares of common stock covered by this prospectus will be passed upon by Ruskin Mot
Faltischek, P.C., Uniondale, New York.

EXPERTS

The financial statements of the Company at Decerhe2015 and 2014 appearing in this prospectus have beel
audited by SRCO Professional Corporation, an independent registered public accounting firm, as set forth in their r
thereon appearing elsewhere herein, and are included in reliance upon sutchivep on the authority of such firm as an
expert in accounting and auditing.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We have filed with the SEC under the Securities Act a registration statement on -Horefaing to the common
stock to be sold in thisffering. The registration statement, including the attached exhibits and schedules, contains additic
relevant information about us and our capital stock. This prospectus does not contain all of the information set forth i
registration statement drthe exhibits and schedules thereto. For further information about us and our common stock,
should refer to the registration statement, including the exhibits and schedules thereto. Statements contained i
prospectus as to the contents of anyti@an or other document referred to are not necessarily complete and in each instan
if such contract or document is filed as an exhibit, reference is made to the copy of such contract or other docuraent fil
an exhibit to the registration statemesaich statement being qualified in all respects by such reference. You may inspec
copy of the registration statement and the exhibits and schedules thereto without charge at the Public Reference Room
SEC at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C.4205/ou may obtain copies of all or any part of the registration statemen
from such office at prescribed rates. You may also obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Rool
calling the SEC at -800-SEGO0330. In addition, the SEC maiima an Internet website, which is located at
http://www.sec.gov, that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information regarding issuers the
electronically with the SEC. You may access the registration statement, of whighrthss pect us i s a |
Internet website.
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SRCO Professional Corporation
Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

Park Place Corporate Centre
15 Wertheim Court, Suite 409
Richmond Hill, ON L4B 3H7

Email: sohail raza@srco.ca
WWW.SIC0.Ca

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Biotricity, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance
Decanb e r 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidat ¢
(deficiency) equity, and cash flows for each of the years in theytecar peri od ended Decembe
management is respsible for these consolidated financial statements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on th
consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company AccountinghOBeesid (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whet
consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor we
engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of inter
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstandes, but |
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiven
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amoun
disclosures in theansolidated financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provi
reasonable basis for our omn.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, ttatebnsoli
financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the consolidated results of its operigions &
consolidated cash flows for each of the years in theywes period ended December 31, 2015, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have bgeEmgdessuming that the Company will continue as a going
concern. As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has incurred recurring losse:
operations and has an accumulated deficit that raise substantial doubt @bability to continue as a going
concernnManagement 6s plans regarding these matters are al
not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

As explainedm Notes 1 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements, these accompanying consolidated financial statel
have been prepared to reflect recapitalization of ca
reflect the legal gaital of the accounting acquiree pursuant to Exchange Agreement dated February 2Pr28idusly,
separate financial statements of the legal acquirer (Biotricity, Inc.) were prepared without these adjustments on whic
issued our unqualified opiniorated April 12, 2016.

/s/ balance Professional Corporatio

CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS

Authorized to practise public accounting by tl

Richmond Hill, Ontario, Canada Chartered Professional Accountants of Onta
August 22, 2016



Biotricity, Inc.
BALANCE SHEETS
(Expressed in US dollars)

As at As at
December 31,| December 31,
2015 2014
$ $
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash 410,601 448,599
Harmonized sales tax recoverable 36,291 71,336
Deposits and other receivables 72,202 -
Total current assets 519,094 519,935
EquipmentNote 5] - -
TOTAL ASSETS 519,094 519,935
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilitjdkte 6] 413,273 176,039
Total current liabilities 413,273 176,039
Convertible promissory not¢hlote 7] 783,778 -
Derivative liabilities[Note 8] 561,220 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,758,271 176,039
STOCKHOLDERS' (DEFICIENCY) EQUITY
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 1,000,000 authorized as at Decen®@t3and
December 31, 2014, 1 share issued and outstanding as at December 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014, respectivg§ote 9] 1 1
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 100,000,000 authorized as at December 31, 201!
December 31, 2014. 15,876,947 issaed outstanding common shares as at Decemb
31, 2015 andl12,905,394 issued and outstanding shares as at December 31, 2014, i
exchangeable shares of 9,123,031 as at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 20
respectively [Note 9] 25,000 22,028
Additional paidin-capital 7,982,598 4,347,478
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income (18,002) 17,311
Accumulated deficit (9,228,774) (4,042,922)
Total stockholders' (deficiency) equity (1,239,177) 343,896
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' (DEFIC IENCY) EQUITY 519,094 519,935

CommitmentgNote 12]

Subsequent evenfillote 13]

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

On behalf of the Board:




Biotricity, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(Expressed in US dollars)

Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2015 2014
$ $
REVENUE - -
EXPENSES
General and administrative expenféates 9 and 11] 3,986,550 873,51
Research and development expersiese 12] 1,143,453 832,661
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 5,130,003 1,706,202
Accretion expensfNote 7] 59,875 -
Change in fair value of derivative liabilitifdote 8] (4,026) -
NET LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES (5,185,852) (1,706,202)
Income taxe$Note 10] - -
NET LOSS (5,185,852) (1,706,202)
Translation adjustment (35,313) 3,050
COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (5,221,165) (1,703,152)
LOSS PER SHARE, BASIC AND DILUTED (0.24) (0.09)
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF COMMON AND
EXCHANGEABLE SHARES OUTSTANDING 21,852,834 19,747,949

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Biotricity, Inc.

CONSOLI DATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHGEGQUERSOG (DEFI CI ENCY)
(Expressed in US dollars)
II I
Addition Accumulate
Preferred stock Common stock al Accumulated d
paid-in- other deficit
comprehensiv
Shares Amount Shares Amount capital e Total
(loss) income
$ $ $ $ $ $
Recapitalization of capital
retroactively adjusting the
accounting ac(
legal capital to reflect the 1 15,088219 15,088 | 2,409,557 14,261 | (2,336,720) 102,187
legal capital of the
accounting acquiree as at
January 1, 2014[Notes 1
and 9]
Issuance of shares for cash 3 1,400,490 1,400 543,878 3 3 545,278
[Note 9] d
Issuance of shares for 3 169,974 170 66,009 3 3 66,179
servicegNote 9] d
Issuance of warants for
servicegNote 9] ) 8 8 5 400,335 8 8 400,335
Acquisition of net liabilities
and shares outstanding
5 s} 3,950,100 3,950 (241,298) 0 0 (237,348)

reverse merger
[Notes 1 and 9]
Issuance of shares and
warrants for casfNote 9] 5 o] 1,24Q092 1,240 1,102,989 6] 6] 1,104,229
Exercise of warrants for
cash{Note 9] 5 s} 179,550 180 66,008 0 0 66,188
Translation adjustment s 5 5 5 5 3.050 5 3,050
Net loss 5 3 3 5 3 5 | @706202)| (1,706,202)
gg‘&”ce' December 31, 1 22,028,425 22,028 | 4,347,478 17,311 | (4,042,922) 343,896
Exercise of warrants for 3 897,750 898 706,298 3 3 707,196
cash[Note 9] d
9C]ancellanon of shardslote s 3 (1,316,700) (1,317) 1,228 s} e} (89)
Stock based compensation
[Note 9] 5 s} s} 5 2,257,953 0 0 2,257,953
Issuance of warrants for
servicegNote 9] 5 s} s} 5 672,749 o o 672,749
Cancellation of warrants
[Note 9] s} 8 8 3 S 0 0 0
Exercise of stock option
plan[Note 9] 5 3 3,390,503 3,391 (3,108) o} o} 283
Translation adjustment 5 5 5 s 5 (35,313) 5 (35,313)
Net loss 5 3 3 5 8 8 (5,185,852) | (5,185,852)
Sg'g‘ce' December 31, 1 24,999,978 25,000 | 7,982,598 18,002) | (9.228,774)| (1,239,177)
(a) Retroactively adjust to reflect the effect of the recapitalization as
explained in Notes 1 and 9.

(b) Outstanding common stock as at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 include 9,123,031 exchangeable

explained in Note 9.

See accompanying notiesconsolidated financial

statements




Biotricity, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Expressed in US dollars)

Year ended Year ended
December 31,| December 31,
2015 2014
$ $
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss (5,185,852) (1,706,202)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activiti
Stock based compensation 2,257,953 -
Depreciation - 9,051
Issuance of shares for consulting services - 66,179
Accretion expers 59,875 -
Change in fair value of derivatives liabilities (4,026) -
Issuance of warrants for services 672,749 400,335
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Harmonized sales tax recoverable 25,437 (73,578)
Deposits and otherceivables (77,740) -
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 287,629 (77,570)
Net cash used in operating activities (1,963,975) (1,381,785)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of shares, net - 1,649,507
Proceed$rom issuance of convertible promissory notes, net 1,289,149 -
Proceeds from exercise of warrants 707,196 66,188
Proceeds from exercise of stock option 283 -
Net cash provided by financing activities 1,996,628 1,715,695
Effect of foreigh currency translation (70,651) (1,067)
Net increase in cash during the year 32,653 333,910
Cash, beginning of year 448,599 115,756
Cash, end of year 410,601 448,599
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements




Biotricity, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014
(Expressed in US dollars)

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Biotricity, Il nc. (formerly Met as$Solundeitmedass of thenState)of
Nevada on August 29, 2012.

i Medi cal l nnovations | nc. (Ai Medical 6) was incorp
Canada.

Sensor Mobility I nc. (ASensor 0} thewaavs of then Rravince ofrOatérie, d

Canada. Sensor was engaged in research and development activities within the remote monitoring segme
preventative care.

On August 11, 2014, all the stockholders of Sensor entered into a series of roll ogereagsefor the sale of their
shares to iMedical in accordance with section 85 (1) of the Income Tax Act (Cardl@uant to these
agreements, all the stockholders of Sensor received twice the number of shares of iMedical in exchange for
shares inSensor. Accordingly, iMedical issued 14,159,911 (11,829,500-Pxehange Agreemerit as defined
below under paragraph 7) shares in exchange for 7,079,955 (5,914, 76QcRamge Agreement) shares of
Sensor, which were subsequently cancelled as a resutafjamation. The amalgamation became effective from
November 21, 2014, pursuant to approval by Canada Revenue Ademoediately prior to the Amalgamation,
Biotricity had net liabilities of $237,348 and 3,950,100 (3,300,00eERolhange Agreement) otésding shares of
common stock, which are presented in the consolidated financial statements.

As the former stockholders of Sensor became the majority stockholders of iMedical after amalgamation,
transaction has been accounted for as a reverse memngewas treated as an acquisition of iMedical (legal
acquirer) and a recapitalization of Sensor (accounting acquirer). As Sensor was the accounting acquirer, the r
of its operations carried oveConsequently, the assets and liabilities and te®ical operations reflected in the
consolidated financial statements for the periods prior to November 21, 2014, are those of Sensor and are rec
at historical costbasiEf f ecti ve from November 21, 2014,thetadsats, C
liabilities and operations of iMedical.

Both the Company and iMedical are engaged in research and development activities within the remote monit
segment of preventative care. They are focused on a realizable healthcare business mioaelaihaexisting
market and commercialization pathway. As such, its efforts to date have been devoted in building technology
enables access to this market through the development of a tangible product.

On February 2, 2016, the Company entered imo aEx c hange Agreement (the |

1061806 BC LTD. (ACall coo) , a British Columbia ¢
February 2, 2016), 1062024 B.C. LTD., a company existing under the laws of the Province of(Rriistbia
(AExchangecoo), i Medi cal l nnovation |l nc. , a com

shareholders of iMedical, whereby Exchangeco acquired 100% of the outstanding common shares of iMec
taking into account certain shares parsuto the Exchange Agreement as further explained in Note 9 to th
consolidated financial statements. These subsidiaries were solely used for the issuance of exchangeable sh
the reverse merger transaction and have no other transactions or bakdteegiving effect to this transaction,

the Company acquired all of i Medical ds assets and
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As a result of the Share Exchange, iMedical is now a wiodiged subsidiary of the Company. This saction

has been accounted for as reverse merdes. the former stockholders of iMedical became the majority
stockholders of the Company after amalgamation, this transaction has been accounted for as a reverse merg
was treated as an acquisition dietCompany (legal acquirer) and a recapitalization of iMedical (accounting
acquirer). As iMedical was the accounting acquirer, the results of its operations were carricdamsaqguently,

the assets and liabilities and the historical operations redléctihe consolidated financial statements are those of
iMedical and are recorded at historical cost basis.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared to reflect recapitalization of capital retroac
adjusting the aiMedzal)hetal camtal @ cefieat ithe kegaléeapital of the accounting acquiree
(Biotricity) pursuant to Exchange Agreement dated February 2, 2016 as explained in above paragraphs and N
to the consolidated financial statements.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION, MEASUREMENT AND CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with accol
principles generally accepted in the United Stat
dollars( AUS DO ) .

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and itsowhellly subsidiary.
Significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

3. GOING CONCERN

The consolidated financial statements haeerbprepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates tt
realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. The Company has inct
recurring losses from operations and as at December 31, 2015 and Decembed 3ihd2@dcumulated deficit of
$9,228,774 and $4,042,922, respectively. Management anticipates the Company will attain profitable status
improve its liquidity through continued business development and additional debt or equity investment in
CompanyManagement is pursuing various sources of financing.

On October 31, 2015, the Company engaged an agent to act as exclusive financial advisor to the Company
respect to assisting the Company in its capital raising efforts as well as assistingnijp@ngan the review of

potential financing alternatives available to it and to provide recommendations with respect to the options avalil
to it for meeting its capital needs. Under the engagement agreement, the agent will represent the Company
sde or lead placement agent, underwriter, bamkner or similar representation in its efforts to obtain financing of
up to $12 million in the form of a private placement, public offering, whether in one or a series of transactions,
private or public @ering of equity, convertible debt or equity, equity linked securities or any other securities.

The Companyds continued existence is dependent u |
obtain additional debt or equity financinghere can be no assurance that the necessary debt or equity financi
will be available, or will be available on terms acceptable to the Company, in which case the Company ma
unable to meet its obligations. Should the Company be unable to reaéizsats and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business, the net realizable value of its assets may be materially less than the amounts reco
the financial statements. The financial statements do not include any adjustments rel&igngetoverability of
recorded asset amounts that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue in existence.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Cash

Cash includes cash on hand and balances with banks.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to n
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of con
assets and liabilities at thate of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
expenses during the reporting period. Areas involving significant estimates and assumptions include: def
income tax assets and related valuation allowance, ac@undlsaluation of warrants and stock options. Actual

results could differ from those estimates. These estimates are reviewed periodically, and, as adjustments bg
necessary, they are reported in earnings in the period in which they become known.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share

The Company has adopted t he Financi al Accountir
Codification (-hASWhi)cH opli @vi2deeds f or cal cul ation ¢
Basic earnings per share limdes no dilution and is computed by dividing net income or loss available to commc
stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earning
share reflect the potential dilution of securities that cahlare in the earnings of an entity. Diluted earnings per
share exclude all potentially dilutive shares if their effect is-@dihitive. There were no potentially dilutive shares
outstanding as at December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of the Canadian based company is the Canadian dollar and US based company is
Transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency are translated into the funct
currency at the exchange rates premngilat the dates of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilitie
denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date
monetary assets and liabilities are translated using the historicalrrdite date of the transaction. All exchange

gains or losses arising from translation of these foreign currency transactions are included in net income (los:
the year. I n translating the financi al m thdrdunaiona nt
currency into the Companydés reporting currency o
using the closing exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date and income and expense accounts are tr:
using an agrage exchange rate prevailing during the reporting period. Adjustments resulting from the translat
i f any, are included in cumulative other compreh

not, to the date of these consolidatedficial statements, entered into derivative instruments to offset the impa
of foreign currency fluctuations.

Equipment

Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and depreciated over their estimated useful lives
following rate @ad method.

Furniture and fixtures 3 year straight line
Computer equipment 3 year straight line

Routine repairs and maintenance are expensed as incumprbvements, that are betterments, are capitalized at
cost. The Company applies dfagear rule in the year of acquisition.
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Impairment of Lond.ived Assets

In accordance with ASC 3610, the Company, on a regular basis, reviews the carrying amount diMed@ssets

for the existence of facts or circumstances, both intgriagdl externally, that suggest impairment. The Company
determines if the carrying amount of a ldhged asset is impaired based on anticipated undiscounted cash flow
before interest, from the use of the asset. In the event of impairment, a loss szextdgsed on the amount by
which the carrying amount exceeds the fair value of the asset. Fair value is determined based on appraised v:
the assets or the anticipated cash flows from the use of the asset or asset group, discounted at a ratieatemme
with the risk involved.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

ASC 820 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands required disclc
about fair value measurements of assets and liabili&C 82010 definedair value as the exchange price that
would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantage
market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on theemeatsudiate.
ASC 82010 also establishes a fair value hierarchy, which requires an entity to maximize the use of observ
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The standard describes three
of inputs that maype used to measure fair value:

0 Level 11 Valuation based on quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
o] Level 21 Valuation based on quoted market prices for similar assets and liabilities in actiketsnar
o Level 371 Valuation based on unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity, therefore r¢

management 6s best estimate of what mar ket participe

In instances where the determinatiof the fair value measurement is based on inputs from different levels of tr
fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the entire fair value measurement falls
based on the lowest level input that is significant toftrei r val ue measur ement i n
assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgt
and considers factors specific to the asset or liability.

Fair value estimates aigssed herein are based upon certain market assumptions and pertinent informa
available to management. The respective carrying value of certalmalancesheet financial instruments
approximated their fair values due to the slierin nature of thesastruments or interest rates that are comparable
to market ratesThese financial instruments include cash, convertible promissory notes, derivative liabilities a
accounts payable. The Company's cash and derivative liabilities, which are carriedralutgiare classified as
Level 1 financi al i nstruments. The Companyé6s bank
credit, therefore, bear minimal credit risk.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordante ABC 740. The Company provides for federal and
provincial income taxes payable, as well as for those deferred because of the timing differences between rep
income and expenses for financial statement purposes versus tax purposes. Deferrets tamdababilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the carrying amount of asse
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Deferred tax asset
liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
temporary differences are expected to be recoverable or settled. The effect of a change in tax rates is recogni
income or expense in theegod of the change. A valuation allowance is established, when necessary, to redi
deferred income tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized.
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Research and Development

Research and development costs, which relate pryn@rilproduct and software development, are charged to
operations as incurretlinder certain research and development arrangements with third parties, the Company |
be required to make payments that are contingent on the achievement of specific develppegeatatory and/or
commercial milestones. Before a product receives regulatory approval, milestone payments made to third p
are expensed when the milestone is achieMédstone payments made to third parties after regulatory approval i
receivel are capitalized and amortized over the estimated useful life of the approved product.

Stock Based Compensation

The Company accounts for shdrased payments in accordance with the provision of ASC 718, which require
that all shardased payments i$8d to acquire goods or services, including grants of employee stock options,

recognized in the statement of operations based on their fair values, net of estimated forfeitures. ASC 718 rec
forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and edyig necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures
differ from those estimates. Compensation expense related tobstsm® awards is recognized over the requisite
service period, which is generally the vesting period.

The Company accountsrfgtock based compensation awards issued teengrioyees for services, as prescribed
by ASC 71810, at either the fair value of the services rendered or the instruments issued in exchange for .
services, whichever is more readily determinable, usieggiidelines in ASC 50650. The Company issues
compensatory shares for services including, but not limited to, executive, management, accounting, opera
corporate communication, financial and administrative consulting services.

Operating Leases

The Company leases office space and certain office equipment under operating lease agreements. The leas
begins on the date of initial possession of the leased property for purposes of recognizing lease expense
straightline basis over the term ofdHease. Lease renewal periods are considered on eblebessse basis and are
generally not included in the initial lease term.

Convertible Notes Payable and Derivative Instruments

The Company accounts for conversion options embedded in convertibein@accordance with ASC 815. ASC
815 generally requires companies to bifurcate conversion options embedded in convertible notes from their
instruments and to account for them as free standing derivative financial instruments. ASC 815 provides fc
exception to this rule when convertible notes, as host instruments, are deemed to be conventional, as defin
ASC 81540.

The Company accounts for convertible notes deemed conventional and conversion options embedded in
conventional convertiblaotes which qualify as equity under ASC 815, in accordance with the provisions of AS
47020, which provides guidance on accounting for convertible securities with beneficial conversion featul
Accordingly, the Company records, as a discount to conlertibtes, the intrinsic value of such conversion
options based upon the differences between the fair value of the underlying common stock at the commitmen
of the note transaction and the effective conversion price embedded in the note. Debt distdenthese
arrangements are amortized over the term of the related debt.
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

On January 1, 2015, the Company adopted the accounting pronouncement issued by the FASB updating e>
guidance on discontindeoperations. This guidance raises the threshold for a disposal to qualify as a discontin
operation and requires new disclosures of both discontinued operations and certain other disposals that do na
the definition of a discontinued operation. §lgronouncement is aimed at reducing the frequency of disposal
reported as discontinued operations by focusing on strategic shifts that have or will have a major effect o
entitydés operations and financi al caie sonjunttisn. withTfituge C
disposals, if any.

In April 2015, an accounting pronouncement was issued by the FASB to update the guidance related tc
presentation of debt issuance costs. This guidance requires debt issuance costs, related to ed rdebgniz
liability, be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of the related
liability rather than being presented as an asset. This pronouncement is effective retrospectively for fiscal
beginning after Degmber 15, 2015, with early adoption permitted. The Company intend to adopt th
pronouncement on January 1, 2016, and the adoption will not have a material impact on its financial pos
and/or results of operations.

In September 2015, an accounting femcement was issued by the FASB which eliminates the requirement th
an acquirer in a business combination account for measurgment adjustments retrospectively. Instead, an
acquirer will recognize a measuremgetiod adjustment during the periadwhich it determines the amount of
the adjustment. This pronouncement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015, with ¢
adoption permitted. The Company intend to adopt this pronouncement on January 1, 2016, and the adoptiol
not have a material impact on its financial position and/or results of operations.

In November 2015, an accounting pronouncement was issued by the FASB to simplify the presentation of def
income taxes within the balance sheet. This pronouncemenbha&ien the requirement that deferred tax assets anc
liabilities are presented as current or noncurrent based on the nature of the underlying assets and liabilities. In
the pronouncement requires all deferred tax assets and liabilities, includiagoralallowances, be classified as
noncurrent. This pronouncement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016, with e
adoption permitted. The Company intend to adopt this pronouncement on January 1, 2017, and the adoptiol
not have a material impact on its financial position and/or results of operations.

In January 2016, the Company adopted the accounting pronouncement issued by the FASB which eliminate
requirement that an acquirer in a business combination account forurer@asiperiod adjustments
retrospectively. Instead, an acquirer will recognize a measurgyeantl adjustment during the period in which it
determines the amount of the adjustment. The adoption of this pronouncement did not have a material impe
theCompanyds consolidated financi al position and/ o
the accounting pronouncement issued by the FASB to update the guidance related to the presentation o
issuance costs. This guidance requdeist issuance costs, related to a recognized debt liability, be presented in 1
consolidated balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of the related debt liability rather
being presented as an asset. The Company adopted thisipcenent on a retrospective basis, and the adoptior
did not have a materi al i mpact on the Companyods ¢

In February 2016, an accounting pronouncement was issued by the FASB to replace existiagdeasting

guidance. This pronouncement is intended to provide enhanced transparency and comparability by reqt
lessees to record riglof-use assets and corresponding lease liabilities on the balance sheet for most lea
Expenses associated wittakes will continue to be recognized in a manner similar to current accounting guidan
This pronouncement is effective for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2018, with €
adoption permitted. The adoption is required to be appheda modified retrospective basis for each prior
reporting period presented. The Company has not yet determined the effect that the adoption of
pronouncement may have on the Company6s consolida

F-11



In March 2016, the Company adopted the accounting pronouncement issued by the Financial Accour
Standards Board ("FASB") to update guidance on how companies account for certain aspectshafsetiare

payments to employees. This pronouncement is aféetdr fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016, and
interim periods within those years, with early adoption permitted. This guidance requires all income tax effect
awards to be recognized in the consolidated income statement when the awtandsiresettled and changes the

presentation of excess tax benefits on the consolidated statement of cash flows. The Company adopted
provisions on a prospective basis. In addition, this pronouncement changes guidance on: (a) accountin

forfeitures of shardb ased awards and (b) employersdé accounti

empl oyerbés statutory income tax withholding obli
materi al I mpact on t haacialpositignamd/raesultcobapesadidns. d at ed f i
5. EQUIPMENT
As at As at
December December
31, 31,
2015 2014
$ $
Furniture 41,272 41,272
Computer equipment 27,826 27,826
Total cost 69,098 69,098
Less: Accumulded depreciation (69,098) (69,098)

6. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

As at December  As at December

31, 31,

2015 2014

$ $

Trade accounts payable 274,055 130,913
Accrued liabilities 139,218 45,126
413,273 176,039

F-12



7. CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTES

Pursuant to a term sheet offering of $2,000,000, the Company during the year ended December 31, 2015 i
convertible promissory notes to various accredited investors amounting to $1,36883&8 nbtes have a maturity
date of 24 months and carry annual interest rate of 11%. The note holders have the right until any time unti
note is fully paid, to convert any outstanding and unpaid principal portion of the note, and accrued interest,
fully paid and norassessable shares of Common Stock. The note has a conversion price initially set at $1.78.
any future financings completed by the Company, the conversion price will reset to 75% of the future financ
pricing. These notes do natrttain prepayment penalties upon redemptidbhese debentures are secured by all of
the present and after acquired property of the CompaHpwever, the Company can force conversion of these
notes, if during the term of the agreement, the Company ebtespa public listing and the Common Share price
exceeds the conversion price for at least 20 consecutive trading days. At the closing of the Notes, the Con
issued cash (7%) and warrants (7% of the number of Common Shares into which the Notes mesrtezirto a
brokers. The brokers receive 3% in cash and warrants for those investors introduced by the Cdingany.
warrants have a term of 24 months and a similar reset provision based on future financings.

The embedded conversion features and rfesg¢tire in the notes and broker warrants have been accounted for as
derivative liability based on FASB guidance (refer Note 8).

The details of the outstanding convertible promissory notes are as follows:

$
Face value of convertible promisgaotes issued during the year 1,368,978
Discount recognised at issuance due to embedded derivatives (479,479)
Cash issuance costs (79,829)
Fair value of broker warrants at issuance (85,767)
Accretion expense fothe year 59,875
Accreted value ofconvertible promissory notes as at December 31, 2015 783,778

The Company incurred $79,829 in cash as issuance costs and issued 51,664 (4&kehdPige Agreement)
broker warrants.The cash issuance costs and fair value of these warrants at iseasadeeen adjusted against
the liability and accreted over the term of these notes using an effective interest rate ranging from 20.5¢
30.5%.

As explained in detail in Note 9, all outstanding convertible promissory notes were exchanged/adjusaed toursu
Share Exchange Agreement dated February 2, 2016.

8. DERIVATIVE LIABILITIES

In connection with the sale of debt or equity instruments, the Company may sell options or warrants to purc
our common stock. In certain circumstances, these optionswants may be classified as derivative liabilities,
rather than as equity. Additionally, the debt or equity instruments may contain embedded derivative instrum
such as embedded derivative features which in certain circumstances may be requeréifucéted from the
associated host instrument and accounted for separately as a derivative instrument liability.
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The Company's derivative instrument liabilities areakied at the end of each reporting period, with changes in
the fair vale of the derivative liability recorded as charges or credits to income in the period in which the chan
occur. For options, warrants and bifurcated embedded derivative features that are accounted for as deri
instrument liabilities, the Company estites fair value using either quoted market prices of financial instrument
with similar characteristics or other valuation techniques. The valuation techniques require assumptions relat
the remaining term of the instruments and-fige rates of refrn, our current common stock price and expected
dividend yield, and the expected volatility of our common stock price over the life of the option.

The derivative liabilities arising from convertible promissory notes and related issuance of broketsveaieras
follows:

Convertible Broker Total

notes warrants
$ $ $
Derivative fair value at issuance 479,479 85,767 565,246
Change in fair value of derivatives during the year 1,473 (5,499) (4,026)
Derivative liabilities as at December 31, 2015 480,952 80,268 561,220

The lattice methodology was used to value the convertible notes issued and the related broker warrants, with t
following assumptions:

December 31

Assumptions 2015
Dividend yield 0.00%
Risk-free rate for term 0.33%0.72%
Volatility 98%-100%
Remaining terms (years) 1.722
Stock price ($ per share) 2

9. STOCKHOLDERSGS® (DEFI CI ENCY) EQUITY

Exchange Agreement

As explained in detail in Note 1 to the consolidated finansiatements, with the closing of the Acquisition
Transaction on February 2, 2016:

1

Biotricityé s sole existing director resigned an
appointed to fill the vacancy;

1

Bi otri city6 cusive ©fficerand €dfeiofeicer, wbx beneficially owned 6,500,000 shares of outstandir
common stock, resigned from all positions and transferred all of his shares back for cancellation;

1
The existing management of the Company were appointed as exexdfitiges; and

1
The existing shareholders of the Company entered into a transaction whereby their existing common shares
Company were exchanged for either (a) a new cl ascs
common stock, orhl) s hares of Biotricitydéds common stock,
shares) woul d equal in the aggregate a number of
Bi ot r issoed &ing 6usstanding shares.
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In addifon, effective on the closing date of the acquisition transaction:

1
Biotricity issued approximately 1.197 shares of its common stock in exchange for each common share of

Company held by the Company shareholders who in general terms, are not residents of Canada (for the purpc
the Income Tax Act (Canadafccordngly the Company issued 13,376,947 shares;

1

Shareholders of the Company who in general terms, are Canadian residents (for the purposes of the Incom
Act (Canada)) received approximately 1.197 Exchangeable Shares in the capital of Exchangeco ge éachan
each common share of the Company héldcordingly the Company issued 9,123,031 exchangeable shares;

1
Each outstanding option to purchase common shares in the Company (whether vested or unvested) was exch

without any further action or comgration on the part of the holder of such option, for approximately 1.19:
economically equivalent replacement options with an inverse adjustment to the exercise price of the replace
option to reflect the exchange ratio of approximately 1.197:1;

1

Eachoutstanding warranto purchase common shares in the Company was adjusted, in accordance with the te
thereof, such that it entitles the holder to receive approximately 1.197 shares of the common stock of Biotricit
each Warrant, with an inversejastment to the exercise price of the Warrants to reflect the exchange ratio
approximately 1.197:1

1

Each outstanding advisor/broker warrant to purchase common shares in the Company was adjusted, in accol
with the terms thereof, such that it entitles the holder to receive approximately 1.197 shares of the common
of Biotricity for each advisdbroker warrant, with an inverse adjustment to the exercise price of the advisor/brok
warrants to reflect the exchange ratio of approximately 1.197:1; and

1
The outstanding 11% secured convertible promissory notes of the Company were adjusted, incacaatttahe

adjustment provisions thereof, as and from closing, so as to permit the holders to convert (and in s
circumstances permit the Company to force the conversion of) the Convertible Debentures into shares o
common stock of Biotricity at a5% discount to purchase price per share in Biotricity's next offering

Issuance of preferred stock, common stock, exchangeable shares and cancellation of shares in connection w
reverse takeover transaction as explained above represents recépitabtacapital retroactively adjusting the
accounting acquireros | egal capital to reflect th

The following equity movement include the retroactive adjustments of above transaction.

Authorized stock

As at December 31, 2015, the Company is authorized to issue 100,000,000 (2014: 100,000,000) shares of co
stock ($0.001 par value) and 1,000,000 (2014:00,000) shares of preferred stock ($0.001 par value).

Issued and outstanding stock

During April 2014, Sensor entered into agreements for issuance of warrants against services with two of its
stockholders and two thixparty consultants issued 568,575 (475,000Bxehange Agreement) warrants entitling
those stockholders to purchasee common share against each warrant at an exercise price of $0.38 ($0.46 |
Exchange Agreement) per warrant to be exercised within one year from the issuancehddtar value of the
warrants on the issuance date was $400,335, which is includedsdting charges in general and administrative
expenses during the year ended December 31, 2014 with corresponding credit to additienatggaidl. The

fair value has been estimated using a rmuinial lattice model with an expected life of 36%sladividend yield



of 0%, stock price of $0.46, a risk free rate of 0.06% and expected volatility of 105%, determined basec
comparable companies historical volatilities.

Pursuant to roll over agreements dated August 11, 2014, as described in Nateelalabve warrants which were
issued by Sensor were cancelled and were reissued by Biotricity Inc.
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During June and July 2014, Sensor issued 1,400,490 (1,170,0é®Exdéhange Agreement) common shares
through various subscription agreements issuprice of $ 0.39 ($0.47 Riexchange Agreement) for aggregate
cash proceeds of $545,278.

During July 2014, Sensor issued 169,974 (142,000ERchange Agreement) common shares for consulting
services at fair value of $0.39 ($0.47 ¥rechange Agreemenper share, determined based on recent private
placements.Accordingly, the Company recognized $66,179 as consulting expenses, which are included in ger
and administrative expenses during the year ended December 31, 2014 with correspondingcoradioto stock
and additional paid in capital.

As described in Note 1, On August 11, 2014, all the stockholders of Sensor entered into a series of roll
agreements for the sale of their shares to iMedical Inc. in accordance with section 85 (1) obriee Tax Act
(Canada).Pursuant to these agreements, all the stockholders of Sensor received twice the number of shat
iMedical in exchange for their shares in SensAccordingly, iMedical issued 14,159,911 (11,829,500- Pre
Exchange Agreement) sharesexchange for 7,079,955 (5,914,750 -Erechange Agreement) shares of Sensor,
which were subsequently cancelled as a result of amalgamalioa. amalgamation became effective from
November 21, 2014, pursuant to approval by Canada Revenue Agknmedately prior to Amalgamation,
iMedical had net liabilities of $237,348 and 3,950,100 (3,300,00&Recbange Agreement) outstanding shares of
common stock, which are presented in the consolidated financial statements.

During November 2014, iMedical issu&®40,092 (1,036,000 Riexchange Agreement) units at an exercise price
of $0.92 ($1.10 Pr&Exchange Agreement) and received gross cash proceeds of $1,142,837 (net proceec
$1,104,229). Each unit comprised of 1,240,092 (1,036,000-FPxehange Agreementcommon shares and
1,860,138 (1,554,000 REexchange Agreement) warrants to be exercised at $ 0.92 ($1.iBx&hange
Agreement) within 120 to 270 days from the date of issuahteconnection with the proceeds received, the
Company paid in cash $38,6@s f i nder 6s f ees an dExchangeuAgrdemedit] hraker 2
warrants to be exercised at $0($2.10 PreExchange Agreement) within 365 days from the date of issudriee.

fair value of these warrants amounting to $246,671 has been estinsatg a multnomial lattice model with an
expected life of 365 days, dividend yield of 0%, stock price of $1.10, a risk free rate ranging from 0.02% to 0.(
and expected volatility of 89%, determined based on comparable companies historical \&l&thiédair value

of these warrants were allocated to cash with corresponding credit to additioral-gagital. During May 2015,
962,388 (804,000 P+#exchange Agreement) warrants expired out of total issuance of 1,860,138 (1,554;000 F
Exchange Agrement).

In addition during November 2014, 179,550 (150,000Behange Agreement) warrants were exercised at a price
of $0.37 ($0.44 Pr&xchange Agreement) per share and the Company received cash proceeds of $66,188, v
has been credited to additidmeid in capital.

During March and May 2015, 598,500 (500,000-Bxehange Agreement) warrants were exercised at a price o
$0.84 ($1.01 Pr&Exchange Agreement) per share and the Company received gross cash proceeds of $500,58
proceeds of $470,8%. I n connection with the proceeds recei Ve
fees and issued 41,895 (35,000-Erehange Agreement) broker warrants which were fair valued at $5,594 ar
were allocated to cash with corresponding credit totimhdil paidin-capital. The fair value has been estimated
using a multinomial lattice model with an expected life of 365 days, dividend yield of 0%, stock price of $0.¢
($1.01 PreExchange Agreement), a risk free rate ranging from 0.04% to 1.07% aedtexolatility of 94%,
determined based on comparable companies historical volatilities.

During May 2015, the Company repurchased 1,316,700 (1,100,0aBxBPhange Agreement) of its outstanding
common shares at cost from a related party, by virtiggoificant influence.These shares were cancelled upon
their repurchase.
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During August and September 2015, 299,250 (250,00ERcbange Agreement) warrants were exercised at &
price of $0.88 ($1.05 P+#Exchange Agreement) per share and the Compaceived gross cash proceeds of
$253,800 (net proceeds of $236,438) connection with the proceeds received, the Company paid in cas
$17,362 as finder 6s f e e-Exchangal Agreesnsnt) drdker 2varrarsawhich(weré faib
valued at$14,627 and were allocated to cash with corresponding credit to additionah4oaigital. The fair value

has been estimated using a mualbmial lattice model with an expected life of 24 months, a risk free rate rangin
from 0.04% to 1.07%, stock pricé $2 and expected volatility in the range of 98% to 100%, determined based
comparable companies historical volatilities.

During September and October 2015, the Company entered into agreements for the issuance for a total of 7-
(605,000 PreExchange Agreement) warrants against services entitling to purchase one common share against
warrant at an exercise price of $0.84 ($1-Bxehange Agreement) per warrant to be exercised within 180 to 73!
days from the issuance dat€he fair value of thevarrants on the issuance date was $672,749, which is include
as consulting charges in general and administrative expenses during the year ended December 31, 201!
corresponding credit to additional paidcapital. The fair value has been estimateging a multinomial lattice
model with an expected life ranging from 180 to 730 days, a risk free rate ranging from 0.04% to 1.07%, s
price of $2, annual attrition rate of 5% and expected volatility in the range of 98% to 100%, determined base
comparable companies historical volatilities.

Issuance of preferred stock, common stock, exchangeable shares and cancellation of shares in connection w
reverse takeover transaction as explained above represents recapitalization of capital ritradpisteng the
accounting acquireros | egal capital to reflect th

At December 31, 2015 there were 15,876,947 (December 31, 2014: 12,905,394) shares of common stock i
and outstanding, respectively, and exadeable shares of 9,123,031 as at December 31, 2015 and December
2014. There is currently one share of the Special Voting Preferred Stock issued and outstanding held by
holder of record, which is the Trustee in accordance with the terms ofubeAgreement

Out of outstanding common stock as at December 31, 2015, 750,000 are held in escrow and subje
forfeiture. Of the shares of Common Stock and exchangeable shares issued and outstanding approxin
22,500,000 of such shares are or widu restricted shares under the Securities Act.

Stockbased compensation

On March 30, 2015, the Company approved Directors, Officers and Employees Stock Option Plan, under whi
authorized and issued 3,591,000 (3,000,000Bx@hange Agreement) optis. This plan was established to
enable the Company to attract and retain the services of highly qualified and experience directors, oOffic
employees and consultants and to give such person an interest in the success of the Company.

F-17



The far value of each option granted is estimated at the time of grant usingnowiial lattice model using the
following assumptions:

2015
Exercise price ($) 0.0001
Risk free interest rate 0.04% to 1.07%
Expected term (Years) 10
Expected volatility 94%
Expected dividend yield 0%
Fair value of option ($) 0.74
Expected forfeiture (attrition) rate 5% to 20%

50% of the grants will either vest immediately or at the time of FDA (Food and Drug Administration) filing da
ard 50% will vest upon Liquidity TriggerLiquidity Trigger means the day on which the board of directors resolve
in favour of i) the Company is able to raise a certain level of finanaijg reverse takeover transaction that
results in the Company bgra reporting issuer, and iii) initial public offering that results in the Company being .
reporting issuer.

These grants will expire on the tenth anniversary of the grant @aeerisk free interest rate is based on the yield
of U.S. Treasury secuigts that correspond to the expected holding period of the options. The volatility wz
determined based on comparable companiesd histor
based on the position of the employee receiving th@wgtiThe dividend yield was based on an expected future
dividend rate for the period at the time of grant.

The following table summarizes the stock option activities of the Company:

Number of Weighted average
options  exercise price ($)

Granted 3,591,000 0.0001
Exercised (3,390,503) 0.0001
Outstanding as of December 31, 2015 200,497 0.0001

The fair value of options at the issuance date were determined at $2,257,953 which were fully expensed durir
year ended December 31, 2015 basedesting period and were included in general and administrative expens
with corresponding credit to additional paidcapital.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, 3,390,503 (2,832,56Bx&trange Agreement) options were
exercised by those engylees who met the vesting conditions as described above.
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10. INCOME TAXES
Income taxes

The provision for income taxes differs from that computed at Canadian corporate tax rate of approximately 15.
(2014- 15.50%) as follows:

Year ended Year ended

December 31, December
2015 31, 2014

$ $

Net loss for the year before income taxes (5,185,852) (1,706,202)
Expected income tax recovery from net loss (803,807) (264,461)
Non-deductible expenses 462,915 72,310
Other temprary differences (2,859) (116)
Change in valuation allowance 343,751 192,267

Deferred tax assets

As at December As at

31, December 31,

2015 2014

$ $

Non-capital loss carry forwards 756,534 404,127
Other tempaary differences 23,565 5,870
Change in valuation allowance (780,099) (409,997)

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company determined that a valuation allowance relating to above de
tax asset of the Company was necessary. This detation was based largely on the negative evidence
represented by the losses incurrddthe Company decided not to recognize any deferred tax asset, as it is not mi
likely than not to be realizedTherefore, a valuation allowance of $780,099 and $409 f@®7he years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, was recorded to offset deferred tax assets.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company has approximately $4,880,865 and $2,607,270, respective
noncapital losses available to offfature taxable income. These losses will expire between 2032 to 2034.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company is not subject to any uncertain tax positions.
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11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Companyds transactre camied ow bnt normal eommadrcaldterngs amdtin tees
course of the Companyds business.

Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the related party transactions are as follows:
General and administrative expenses for the yearsdeDdeember 31, 2015 and 203Aclude consulting
charges of $Nil, and $66,179, respectively in connection with issuance of shares/warrants to cel
stockholders of the Company for their consulting services as explained in Note 9.

In addition, the Companpaid consulting charges in cash to its stockholders amounting to $249,145 a
$198,611 for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

12. COMMITMENTS

a) On September 14, 2014, the Company finalized an agreement with CardioComm Solutions |
(ACardi oCommé) for the devel op meThdaternodfthigageamentis i
later of 5 years or completion of all services from the effective date of agreement, which is September
2014. Pursuant to this agreement, Bioity paid CardioComm a nerefundable royalty advance of
$224,775 (CAD 250,000), which was fully expensed during year ended December 31, 2014 as
Company is still under research and development phase. In addition, the Company has committed tc
$584,415 for design of a Windows Operating System ECG Management Software in accordance with
estimated payment schedules for the work perfornigdring the years ended December 31, 2015 and
2014, Company paid $281,520 and $87,662, which were expensed dndedhdn research and
development expenses.

b) On July 4, 2014, the Company entered into an operating lease contract for its office premises
Mississauga, Ontario for a one year term. The monthly lease payment was $3,910 which was increas
$7,931. Tle lease agreement also include provisions of Cloud Hosting services at $2,737 per month
telephone and internet services at $1,173 per month.

13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Companyd6s management has evaluat ed eghe bnaneigl u e
statements were issued, pursuant to the requirements of ASC 855 and has determined the following me
subsequent event:

I n contempl ation of the acquisition of i Medi ca
approved théncrease in authorized capital stock from 100,000,000 shares of common stock to 125,000,
shares of common stock, with a par value of $0.001 per share, and from 1,000,000 shares of preferred st
10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, with a parevafi$0.001 per share.

On May 3, 2016, the Company appointed Mr. David A. Rosa as director to fill the remaining vacancy on
Board of Directors of the Companyn connection with the appointment of Mr. Rosa, the Company authorize
the issuance of weants to purchase 40,000 shares of its common stock, at an exercise price per share of $
with such other terms and conditions as the officers of the Company deem reasonable and acceptable.

On April 27, 2016, the Company appointed Dr. Norman M. Bedtdirector to fill one of two vacancies on the
Board of Directors.In connection with the appointment of Dr. Betts, the Company authorized the issuance
warrants to purchase 40,000 shares of its common stock, at an exercise price per share oft$auad, ether
terms and conditions as the officers of the Company deem reasonable and acceptable.
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From March to June 2016, the Company commenced a bridge offering of up to an aggregate of $1,000,0(
convertible promissory notes to various ineestamounting to $825,000. These notes have a maturity date of 1
months and carry an annual interest rate of 10%. The Bridge Notes principal is paid in cash and interest at .
average 3 trading days (ATDOo) \owi thelkwst 10WER plug At eenbeddadv
warrant at maturity. Al l of the outstanding princ
units/securities upon the consummation of a Qualified Financing, based upon the lesser of: (i) $1.65
unitskecurities and (ii) the quotient obtained by dividing (x) the balance on the Forced Conversion date multip
by 1.20 by the actual price per unit/security in the Qualified Financing. Upon the Forced Conversion Date,
Holder shall further be issued Wants exercisable into a number of shares of Common Stock equal to the num|
of Conversion Shares (but, in the case of units of securities, the primary equity security or the number of shar
Common Stock underlying the primary security if the prinsegurity is not Common Stock).

During July and August 2016, the Company issued a total of 125,000 common shares to consultants in conne
with the services provided by therithe value of the services will be determined based on the market price on tl
date of issuance.

During July 2016, 110,742 warrants were exercised at an exercise price of $0.835.

On August 1, 2016, the Company entered into a subscription agreement by and among the Company ar
lending parties for the issuance of an aggregatecipal amount of $425,000 unsecured convertible promissory
notes pursuant to an offering to accredited investors for up to $2,500,000 (increased from the original amou
$1,000,000), of which $875,000 have previously been sold (also refer Note 7).

On August 8, 2016 and August 12, 2016, the Company entered into a subscription agreement by and amor
Company and the lending parties for the issuance of an aggregate principal amount of $300,000 unse
convertible promissory notes pursuant to derarig to accredited investors for up to $2,500,000 (increased fron
the original $1,000,000) of which $1,150,000 have previously been sold.

On August 12, 2016, the Company instituted a claim again a former employee involving a contract dispute, u
which the Company is seeking damages of $777,800 (CAD 1,000,000) and declaration that all the shares for v
the former employee has exercised an option are null and void. At present, neither the possible outcome ne
amount of possible settlement canfbeeseen. Therefore, no amount relating to this claim has been recognized
the consolidated financial statements.
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BIOTRICITY, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As at September 30, 2016 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2015 (Audjted
(Expressed in US dollars)

September 30, 2016

December 31, 2015

$ $

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash 23,783 410,601
Harmonized sales tax recoverable 14,866 36,291
Deposits and other receivables 45,407 72,2@

84,056 519,094
TOTAL ASSETS 84,056 519,094
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIENCY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Convertible promissory notgklote 6] 723,710
Derivative liabilities[Note 7] 1,113,290
Accounts payable and accrued liabilitjdkte 5] 760,373 413,273
Total current liabilities 2,597,373 413,273
Convertible promissory notghlote 6] - 783,778
Derivative liabilities|[Note 7] - 561,220
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,597,373 1,758,271
STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIENCY
Preferred Stock, $0.001 par value, 10,000,000 authorized as Septe
30, 2016
(December 31, 2015: 1,000,000), 1 shares issued and outstanding
September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively (Note 8) 1 1
Common Stock, $0.001 par value, 125,000,000 authorized as at
September
30, 2016 (December 31, 2015: 100,000,000) 17,045,964 outstandir
shares at September
30, 2016 and 15,876,947 at December 31, 2848 9,123,031
outstanding
exchangeable shares as at September 30, 2016 and December 31,
(Note 8) 26,169 25,000
Common stock issued (Note 8)
Additional paid in capital 11,634,660 7,982,598
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (289,212) (18,002)
Accumulated deficit (13,884,935) (9,228,774)
Total stockholders' deficiency (2,513,317) (1,239,177)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIENCY 84,056 519,094

Commitments (Note 10)
Subsequent events (Note 11)
Going Concern (Note 3)

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidatadcial statements
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BIOTRICITY, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

FOR THE THREE AND NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 AND 2015 (Unaudited)
(Expressed in US dollars)

Three months Three months Nine months Nine months
ended ended ended ended
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2016 2015 2016 2015
$ $ $ $

REVENUE - - - -
EXPENSES
General and administrative
expenses(Notes 8 and 9) 1,155,016 900,358 2,024,540 2,801,868
Research and development
expenses 248,048 326,206 755,907 891,719
TOTAL OPERATING
EXPENSES 1,403,064 1,226,564 2,780,447 3,693,587
Accretion expensgNote 6) 473,552 3,014 667,655 3,014
Change in fair value of derivative
liabilities (Note 7) 465,832 (2,679) 1,208,059 (2,679)
NET LOSS BEFORE
INCOME TAXES (2,342,448) (1,226,899) (4,6%,161) (3,693,922)
Income taxes - -
NET LOSS (2,342,448) (1,226,899) (4,656,161) (3,693,922)
Translation adjustment (80,101) (31,388) (271,210) 28,257
NET LOSS AND
COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (2,422,549) (1,258,287) (4,927,371) (3,665,665)
LOSS PER SHARE, BASIC
AND DILUTED (0.09) (0.08) (0.20) (0.23)
WEIGHTED AVERAGE
NUMBER OF
OF COMMON SHARES
OUTSTANDING 25,542,107 16,268,679 25,180,688 15,989,099

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidatadcial statements
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BIOTRICITY, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH

FLOWS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 AND 2015 (Unaudited)

(Expressed in US dollars)

Nine months ended

Nine months ended

September 30, 2016

September 30, 2015

$ $
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss (4,656,161) (3,693,922)
Stock based compensation 196,142 1,849,916
Shares and warrants issued for services 443,677 366,528
Accretion expense 667,655 3,014
Change in fair value of derivative liabilities 1,208059 (2,679)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Harmonized sales tax recoverable 23,381 37,289
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 327,519 15,506
Deposits and other receivables 30,453
Net cash wsed in operating activities (1,759,275) (1,424,348)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from exercise of warrants 105,500 707,196
Proceeds from issuance of convertible promissory notes 1,524,200 565,350
Net cash provided by financing activities 1,629,700 1,272,546
Net decrease in cash during the period (129,575) (151,802)
Effect of foreign currency translation (257,243) 11,340
Cash, beginning of period 410,601 448,89
Cash, end of period 23,783 308,137

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidatadcial statements

F-24




BIOTRICITY, INC.

NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 (Unaudited)

(Expressed in US dollars)

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Biotricity, Il nc. (formerly MetaSolutions, | nc.)
Nevada on August 29, 2012.

i Medi cal l nnovations | nc. ( ,RO1Mender ticedalwsof theviPeogince oh @ntanio p
Canada.

Both the Company and iMedical are engaged in research and development activities within the remote monit
segment of preventative care. They are focused on a realizable healthcare busimtghandads an existing
market and commercialization pathway. As such, its efforts to date have been devoted in building technology
enables access to this market through the development of a tangible product.

On February 2, 2016, the Company enteredt 0 an exchange agreement wi t
British Columbia corporation and wholly owned subsidiary (incorporated on February 2, 2016), 1062024 E
LTD., a company existing under the | aws)pfi Mbdi €
for mer sharehol ders of i Medi cal (the HAExchange
outstanding common shares of iMedical, taking into account certain shares pursuant to the Exchange Agreem
further explained ifNote 9 to the condensed consolidated financial statements. These subsidiaries were solely
for the issuance of exchangeable shares in the reverse takeover transaction and have no other transact
balances.After giving effect to this transactioh,h e Company acquired all of i
commenced operations through iMedical.

As a result of the Share Exchange, iMedical is now a wimliged subsidiary of the Company. This transaction
has been accounted for as reverse srerGonsequently, the assets and liabilities and the historical operation
reflected in the consolidated financial statements for the periods prior to February 2, 2016 are those of iMe
and are recorded at the historical cost basis. After FebruaepBt he Companyds conde
financial statements include the assets and liabilities of both iMedical and the Company and the histo
operations of both after that date as one entity.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND MEASUREMENT

The accompnying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
accounting principles generally accepted in the |
the Securities ExchastgaionsCto Form HPsand Articld & & BECORegulation S

X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by generally accept
accounting principles for complete financial statements and should be read in conjundtionBvit ot r i ci t
financial statements for the four months ended December 31, 2015 and year ended August 31, 2015 and
thereto included in the Form 0T fi |l ed with the SEC on April 13
statements for the yesaended December 31, 2015 and 2014 and notes thereto included in the- k@ rfil&d

with the SEC on April 13, 2016. In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurt
accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentatianasfcial position and results of operations for the interim
periods presented have been reflected hei@perating results for the nine months ended September 30, 2016, a
not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the yeag &etiember 31, 2016The
Company 0 s -ehdiisDecarhberyBk a r
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3. GOING CONCERN

The condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contet
the realization of assets and satisfaction ailities in the normal course of business. The Company has incurre
recurring losses from operations and as at September 30, 2016 has a working capital deficiency of $2,51.
(December 31, 2015: $105,821 working capital surplus) and an accumulatédodiéfi,884,935 (December 31,
2015: $9,228,774). Management anticipates the Company will attain profitable status and improve its liqui
through continued business development and additional debt or equity investment in the Company. Managem
puraiing various sources of financing.

On October 31, 2015, the Company engaged an agent to act as exclusive financial advisor to the Company
respect to assisting the Company in its capital raising efforts as well as assisting the Company in the revie
potential financing alternatives available to it and to provide recommendations with respect to the options avalil
to it for meeting its capital needs. Under the engagement agreement, the agent will represent the Company
sole or lead placemenagent, underwriter, boekunner or similar representation in its efforts to obtain financing of
up to $12 million in the form of a private placement, public offering, whether in one or a series of transactions,
private or public offering of equity,onivertible debt or equity, equity linked securities or any other securities (a
explained in Notes 6 and 11).

The Companyds continued existence is dependent uj
obtain additional debt or equifinancing. There can be no assurance that the necessary debt or equity financ
will be available, or will be available on terms acceptable to the Company, in which case the Company ma
unable to meet its obligations. Should the Company be unal#alipe its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business, the net realizable value of its assets may be materially less than the amounts reco
the condensed consolidated financial statements. The condensed consolidatél §teiaments do not include
any adjustments relating to the recoverability of recorded asset amounts that might be necessary shoul
Company be unable to continue in existence.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Use of Estimates

The peparation of the condensed consolidated financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requi
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities ¢
disclosure of contingent assets and liab#dita the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Areas involving significant estimates and assumptions ini
deferred income tax assets and related valuation allowance, accrualslaation of derivatives, convertible
promissory notes and stock options. Actual results could differ from those estimates. These estimates are rev
periodically, and, as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in earnings in the perid tewhi
become known.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share

The Company has adopted t he Financi al Accountir
Codification (-IASWKhi)cHhH opi @vi2dbeds f or cal cul ati e@n
Basic earnings per share includes no dilution and is computed by dividing net income or loss available to corn
stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earning
share reflect the potentialldgiion of securities that could share in the earnings of an entity. Diluted earnings p
share exclude all potentially dilutive shares if their effect is-dihitive. There were no potentially dilutive shares
outstanding as at September 30, 2016.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

ASC 820 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands required disclc
about fair value measurements of assets and liabili&C 82010 defines fair value as the exchange etitat
would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantage
market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement
ASC 82010 also estblishes a fair value hierarchy, which requires an entity to maximize the use of observa
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The standard describes three
of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

0 Level 17 Valuation based on quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
0 Level 21 Valuation based on quoted market prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets.
o] Level 37 Valuation based on unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity, therefore requir

management 6s best estimate of what mar ket participe

In instances where the determination of the falu@aneasurement is based on inputs from different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the entire fair value measurement fall
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value neeasarn t in its entir
assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judg
and considers factors specific to the asset or liability.

Fair value estimates discussed herein la@sed upon certain market assumptions and pertinent informatio
available to management. The respective carrying value of certalmalamcesheet financial instruments
approximated their fair values due to the stierin nature of these instruments denest rates that are comparable
to market rates . These financial instruments include cash, due to stockholders, deposits and other receiv
convertible promissory notes, derivative liabilities, and accounts payable. The Company's cash and deriv
l'iabilities, which are carried at fair value, ar
accounts are maintained with financial institutions of reputable credit, therefore, bear minimal credit risk.

Recently Issued Accountingddouncements

In March 2016, the Company adopted the accounting pronouncement issued by the Financial Accour
Standards Board ("FASB") to update guidance on how companies account for certain aspectshaisetare
payments to employees. This pronouneat is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016, an
interim periods within those years, with early adoption permitted. This guidance requires all income tax effect
awards to be recognized in the income statement when the awatds aee settled and changes the presentation
of excess tax benefits on the statement of cash flows. The Company adopted these provisions on a prosg
basis. In addition, this pronouncement changes guidance on: (a) accounting for forfeitures-bdstdh@vards
and (b) empl oyersodé6 accounting for an employeeobs
withholding obligation. The adoption of this ©pro
financial position and/oressults of operations.

In February 2016, an accounting pronouncement was issued by the FASB to replace existing lease accol
guidance. This pronouncement is intended to provide enhanced transparency and comparability by reqt
lessees to record htrof-use assets and corresponding lease liabilities on the balance sheet for most lea
Expenses associated with leases will continue to be recognized in a manner similar to current accounting guic
This pronouncement is effective for annual anérnm periods beginning after December 15, 2018, with early
adoption permitted. The adoption is required to be applied on a modified retrospective basis for each |
reporting period presentedThe Company has not yet determined the effect that the iadopf this
pronouncement may have on our financial position and/or results of operations.
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On January 1, 2016, the Company adopted the accounting pronouncement issued by the FASB which elimi
the requirement that an acquirer in a business catibm account for measuremgrgriod adjustments
retrospectively. Instead, an acquirer will recognize a measurgyeantl adjustment during the period in which it
determines the amount of the adjustment. The adoption of this pronouncement did not lséeeah impact on
the Companyds financi al position and/ or results o

On January 1, 2016, the Company adopted the accounting pronouncement issued by the FASB to upda
guidance related to the presentation of debt issuance costs. Thisogurdguires debt issuance costs, related to a
recognized debt liability, be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount ¢
related debt liability rather than being presented as an asset. The Company adopted threcgmuerd on a
retrospective basis, and the adoption did not have a material impact on the Company financial position al
results of operations.

In November 2015, an accounting pronouncement was issued by the FASB to simplify the presentatioeaf def
income taxes within the balance sheet. This pronouncement eliminates the requirement that deferred tax asse
liabilities are presented as current or noncurrent based on the nature of the underlying assets and liabilities. In
the pronouncemenequires all deferred tax assets and liabilities, including valuation allowances, be classified
noncurrent. This pronouncement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016, with e
adoption permitted. The Company intend to adb® pronouncement on January 1, 2017, and the adoption is nc
expected to have a material i mpact on the Company

In May 2014, an accounting pronouncement was issued by the FASB to clarify existing guitianevenue
recognition. This guidance includes the required steps to achieve the core principle that a company st
recognize revenue when it transfers promised goods or services to customers in an amount that refleci
consideration to which the pgpany expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Tt
pronouncement is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2017, with €
adoption permitted. The guidance permits the use of one of two rattiwgpeansition methods. The Company has
not yet selected a transition method nor has the Company determined the effect that the adoption o
pronouncement may have on its financial position and/or results of operations.

5. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

As at As at December 31,

September 30,
2016 2015
$ $
Trade accounts payable 629,047 274,055
Accrued liabilities 131,326 139,218
760,373 413,273

Accounts payable include $116,075 (2015: $14,113) due to an entity owned by a shareholder of the Compa
connection with consulting charges, which is unsecuredjmterest bearing and dua demand.
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6. CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTES

Pursuant to a term sheet offering of $2,000,000, the Company during the year ended December 31, 2015 |
convertible promissory notes to various accredited investors amounting to $1,368,978 indacdhese notes
have a maturity date of 24 months and carry annual interest rate of 11%. The note holders have the right unt
time until the note is fully paid, to convert any outstanding and unpaid principal portion of the note, and accr
interest into fully paid and norassessable shares of Common Stock. The note has a conversion price initially se
$1.78. Upon any future financings completed by the Company, the conversion price will reset to 75% of the fu
financing pricing. These notes dot contain prepayment penalties upon redemptidrese notes are secured by
all of the present and after acquired property of the Compkiayvever, the Company can force conversion of
these notes, if during the term of the agreement, the Company ¢esnaleublic listing and the Common Share
price exceeds the conversion price for at least 20 consecutive trading days. At the closing of the Notes
Company issued cash (7%) and warrants (7% of the number of Common Shares into which the Notes m:
converted) to a broker. The broker received 3% in cash and warrants for those investors introduced by
Company. The warrants have a term of 24 months and a similar reset provision based on future financings.

Pursuant to the conversion provisions, in Asig2016, the Company converted the promissory notes, in the
aggregate face value of $1,368,978, into 912,652 shares of common shares as detailed below. The fair value
common shares was $2,907,912 and $1,538,934 was allocated to the relatedeldidbdiiies (see note 7) and
the balance to the carrying value of the notes.

Accreted value of convertible promissory notes as of December 31, 2015 $783,778
Accretion expense 585,200
Conversim of the notes transferred to equity (1,368,978
Face value of convertible promissory notes of September 30, 2016 $ -

During the nine months ended September 2016, Biotricity commenced a bridgegofffeup to an aggregate of

$2,500,000 of convertible promissory notes and issued to various investors note in the aggregate face val
amounting to $1,655,000. These notes have a maturity date of 12 months and carry an annual interest rate o
The Bridge Notes principal is paid in cash and all outstanding accrued interest is converted into common S

based on the average of the | owest 3 trading day
trading days plus an embedded warrant atunity. All of the outstanding principal and accrued interest shall
convert (AForced Conversiono) into units/securit.i

the lesser of: (i) $1.65 per units/securities and (ii) the quotient obthindividing (x) the balance on the Forced
Conversion date multiplied by 1.20 by (y) the actual price per unit/security in the qualified financing.

Upon the maturity date of the notes, the Company will also issue warrants exercisable into a numbes of sha
the Company securities equal to (i) in the case of a Qualified Financing, the number of shares issued
conversion of the Note and (ii) in all other cases, the number of shares of the Company's common stock eq
the quotient obtained by divith the outstanding balance by 2.00.

In connection with the bridge offering, the Company incurred a brokerage commission expense of $130,800.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2016:

Face value of convertible promissory notes issued $ 1,655,000
Discount recognized at issuance due to embedded derivatives $ (882,945)
Financing costs $ (130,800)
Accretion expense $ 82,455
Accreted value of convertible promissory notes of September 32016 $ 723,710

The embedded conversion features and reset feature in the notes and broker warrants have been accounted
derivative liability based on FASB guidance (refer Note 7).
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7. DERIVATIVE LIABILITIES

In connection wit the sale of debt or equity instruments, the Company may sell options or warrants to purchas
common stock. In certain circumstances, these options or warrants are classified as derivative liabilities, rathel
as equity. Additionally, the debt aquity instruments may contain embedded derivative instruments, such
embedded derivative features which in certain circumstances may be required to be bifurcated from the asso
host instrument and accounted for separately as a derivative instiiabgity.

The Company's derivative instrument liabilities areakied at the end of each reporting period, with changes in
the fair value of the derivative liability recorded as charges or credits to income in the period in which the chat
occur. For options, warrants and bifurcated embedded derivative features that are accounted for as deriv
instrument liabilities, the Company estimates fair value using either quoted market prices of financial instrum
with similar characteristics or othgaluation techniques. The valuation techniques require assumptions related
the remaining term of the instruments and-fige rates of return, our current common stock price and expecte
dividend yield, and the expected volatility of our common staatepver the life of the option.

The derivative liabilities arising from convertible promissory notes/warrants and related issuance of brc
warrants are as follows:

Convertible Broker
notes warrants Total

Derivative liabilities as at December 31, 2015 $ 480,952 $80,268 $ 561,220
Derivative fair value at issuance 882,945 - 882,945
Transferred to equity

upon conversion of notes (Notes 6 and 8) (1,538,934) - (1,538934)
Change in fair value of derivatives 1,209,097 (1,038) 1,208,059
Derivative liabilities as at September 30, 2016 $ 1,034,060 $ 79,230 $ 1,113,290

The lattice methodology was used to value the derivative comgnesing the following assumptions at issuance
and during the nine months ended September 30, 2016:

Assumptions

Dividend yield 0.00%
Risk-free rate for term 0.29%- 0.49%
Volatility 102%105%
Remaining terms (years) 0.46-1.0
Stockprice ($ per share) $1.49 and $3.00

The projected annual volatility curve for valuation at issuance and period end was based on the compa
companyo6s an hhe @mpanyuked marketitradg stock prices at issuance and period end date.

8. STOCKHOLDERSG® DEFI CI ENCY

Authorized stock

As at September 30, 2016, the Company is authorized to issue 125,000,000 (December B1,02000,000)
shares of common stock ($0.001 par value) and 10,000,000 (December 31,22008,000) shares of gferred
stock ($0.001 par value).

In contemplation of the acquisition of i Medi cal
shareholders approved timerease in authorized capital stock from 100,000,000 shares of common stock
125,000000 shares of common stock, with a par value of $0.001 per share, and from 1,000,000 shares of pref
stock to 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, with a par value of $0.001 per share.
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Issued and outstanding stock

a) Acquisition transaction

As explained in detail in Note 1 to the condensed consolidated financial statements, with the closing of
Acquisition Transaction on February 2, 2016:

1

Biotricitydés sole existing director resi gnpany wasn d
appointed to fill the vacancy;

1

Biotricityés sole Chief Executive Officer and sol
common stock, resigned from all positions and transferred all of his shares back for cancellation

1

The existing management of the Company were appointed as executive officers; and

1

The existing shareholders of the Company entered into a transaction whereby their existing common shares
Company were exchanged for either (a) a new classlofar es t hat are exchangea

common stock, or (b) shares of Biotricityés comm
shares) woul d equal in the aggregate a nstituelde% of of
Biotricitydés issued and outstanding shares.

In addition, effective on the closing date of the acquisition transaction:

1

Biotricity issued approximately 1.1%hares of its common stock in exchange for each common share of tt
Company held by the Company shareholders who in general terms, are not residents of Canada (for the purpc
thelncome Tax Ac{Canada).Accordingly the Company issued 13,376,947 shares;

1

Shareholders of the Company who in general terms, are Canadian residents (for the purposes of the Incom
Act (Canada)) received approximately 1.197 Exchangeable Shares in the capital of Exchangecanigeetor
each common share of the Company héldcordingly the Company issued 9,123,031 exchangeable shares;

1

Each outstanding option to purchase common shares in the Company (whether vested or unvested) was exch
without any further action oromsideration on the part of the holder of such option, for approximately
1.197economically equivalent replacement options with an inverse adjustment to the exercise price of
replacement option to reflect the exchange ratio of approximately 1.197:1;

1

Each outstanding warrant to purchase common shares in the Company was adjusted, in accordance with the
thereof, such that it entitles the holder to receive approximately HEd@és of the common stock of Biotricity for
each Warrant, with an inve® adjustment to the exercise price of the Warrants to reflect the exchange ratio
approximately 1.197:1

1

Each outstanding advisor warrant to purchase common shares in the Company was adjusted, in accordance w
terms thereof, such that it enéitl the holder to receive approximately 1.197 shares of the common stock
Biotricity for each Advisor Warrant, with an inverse adjustment to the exercise price of the Advisor Warrants
reflect the exchange ratio of approximately 1.197:1; and

1

The oustanding 11% secured convertible promissory notes of the Company were adjusted, in accordance wit
adjustment provisions thereof, as and from closing, so as to permit the holders to convert (and in s



circumstances permit the Company to force thevemion of) the Convertible Promissory Notes into shares of the
common stock of Biotricity at a 25% discount to p

Issuance of preferred stock, common stock, exchangeable shares and cancellati@s af sloanection with the

reverse takeover transaction as explained above represents recapitalization of capital retroactively adjustin
accounting acquirerodos | egal capital to reflect th
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At Septembe30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 there were 17,045,964 and 15,876,947, respectively, shar
common stock issued and outstanding. Additionally, as of September 30, 2016, there were 9,123,031 outsta
exchangeable shares. There is currently one shatee dpecial Voting Preferred Stock issued and outstanding
held by one holder of record, which is the Trustee in accordance with the terms of the Trust Agreement.

Out of outstanding common stock of 17,045,964 as at September 30, 2016, 750,000 arescetaviand subject
to forfeiture (also refer to Note 11) in the event the Company does not raise at least $6 million by May 2, 2017
provisions for pro rata adjustments for the financing raised so far.

b) Share issuances
During the quarter ended Sepmiieer 30, 2016, as explained in Note 6, the Company issued 912,652 common st
in connection with the conversion of notes.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2016, the Company issued an aggregate of 125,000 shares of cc
stock to five consultant$375,000 representing the fair value of the shares issued were charged to operations.

The Company issued an aggregate of 131,365 shares of its common stock upon exercise of warrants and re
$105,500 of exercise cash proceeds.

c) Warrant issuances
During the quarter ended September 30, 2016, the Company issued 65,000 warrants in connection with cons
services. These warrants were fair valued amounting to approximately $68,677 and were charged to the stat
of operations.

d) Stockbased comperdion

On March 30, 2015, iMedical approved Directors, Officers and Employees Stock Option Plan, under whic
authorized and issued 3,000,000 optiomkis plan was established to enable the Company to attract and retain t
services of highly qualifiednd experience directors, officers, employees and consultants and to give such per
an interest in the success of the Compahyy.of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, there were 200,5(
outstanding options at an exercise price of $.0001. Thetsens now represent the right to purchase shares of the
Companybds common stock using the same exchange r &
under this plan.

In addition, on February 2, 2016, the Board of Directors of the Comggaprypved 2016 Equity Incentive Plan (the
APl ano). The purpose of the Plan is to advance th
by providing an incentive to attract, retain and reward persons performing services for tipapiagi company
group and by motivating such persons to contribute to the growth and profitability of the participating comp:
group. The Plan seeks to achieve this purpose by providing for awards in the form of options, stock appreci
rights, restricted stock purchase rights, restricted stock bonuses, restricted stock units, performance sh
performance units and other stdeksed awards.

The Plan shall continue in effect until its termination by the Committee; provided, however, that allshadirde
granted, if at all, on or before the day immediately preceding the tenth (10th) anniversary of the effectiVeedate.
maximum number of shares of stock that may be issued under the Plan pursuant to awards shall be eq
3,750,000 shares; praled that the maximum number of shares of stock that may be issued under the P
pursuant to awards shall automatically and without any further Company or shareholder approval, increas
January 1 of each year for not more than 10 years from the iizfdaate, so the number of shares that may be
i ssued 1s an amount no greater than 15% of t he
underlying any outstanding exchangeable shares as of such January 1; provided further that no seckhatirea
be effective if it would violate any applicable law or stock exchange rule or regulation, or result in adverse
consequences to the Company or any participant that would not otherwise result but for the increase.
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During the quarter endesleptember 30, 2016, the Company granted an officer options to purchase an aggrega
2,499,998 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $2.20. The options have a three year vesting and t
value of the options are expensed over a three ya@dy During the nine months ended September 30, 2016
$196,142 was charged to operations as stock based compensation costs for the options.

The following assumptions were used to value the options:

Exercise price ($) 0.00
Risk free interestate 0.69%
Expected term (Years) 3.0
Expected volatility 103%
Expected dividend yield 0%
Expected forfeiture (attrition) rate 0.00%

At September 30, 2016 the Company had the following warrant securities outstanding:

Warrants with

Broker Consultant convertible notes

warrants warrants (Note 6) Total
December 31, 2015 271,742 380,000 - 651,742
RTO adjustment* 53,503 74,860 - 128,363
After RTO 325,245 454,860 - 780,105
Less: Exercised (131,365) - (131,365)
Less: Expired (245,695) - (245,695)
Add: Issued 65,000 827,500 892,500
As at September 30,
2016 325,245 142,800 827,500 1,295,545

$ $ $

Exercise price 1.00 0.81-$2.00 2.00

September

2017 to May October 2016 March 2021 to
Expiration date 2018 August 2019 September 2021

*As explained above, on February 2, 2016 all outstanding warrants have been increased by a factor of 1.197.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2016, 245,695 warrants expkedisad and 77,800 of the
warrants issued prior to the RTO had expired unexercised subsequent to this quarter end.
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9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

The Companyods transactions with rel at ¢dns and mtthe e s
course of the Companyds business.

Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the related party transactions are as follows:

The Company paid consulting charges in cash to its stockholders amounting to $60,806188602 for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2016 (X716 and $166,677), respectively.

10. COMMITMENTS

c)

d)

11.

On July 4, 2014, the Company entered into an operating lease contract for its office premises in Mississ:
Ontario fora one year term. The monthly lease payment was $3,910 which was increased to $7,931. The
agreement also include provisions of Cloud Hosting services at $2,737 per month and telephone and int
services at $1,173 per month.

On January 8, 2@l the Company entered into a-#®nth lease agreement for its office premises in California,
USA. The monthly rent from the date of commencement to the 12th month is $16,530, from the 13th to
24th month is $17,026, from the 25th to the 36th monti 75586, and the final 3 months is $18,062.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Companyo6s management has evaluated subseque
statements were issued, pursuant to the requirements of ASC 855 and has detaerfioiémiving material
subsequent events:

During October and November 2016, the Company issued an aggregate of 85,625 common share
consultants in connection with the services provided by th€he value of the services will be determined
based onlte market price on the date of issuance.

Subsequent to quartend through October 31, 2016, the Company entered into subscription agreements
and among the Company and the lending parties for the issuance of an aggregate principal amount of $57
unsecured convertible promissory notes pursuant to an offering to accredited investors for up to $2,500
(also refer Note 6).

On October 31, 2016, the Company amended the escrow agreement relating to the 750,000 shares descr
Note 8 above to reade the number of shares held in escrow and subject to forfeiture from 750,000 to 458,
shares of common stock, and to extend the forfeiture date from November 2, 2016 to May 2, 2017.
458,750 shares are subject to a pro rata release to the holdexs the May 2, 2017 to the extent the
Company raises less than the $6,000,000, based on the aggregate amount raised through the bridg
offering or otherwise.
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Through and including (the 90th day after the date of this pospectus), all dealers effecting
transactions in the registered securities offered hereby, whether or not participating in this offering, may be
required to deliver a prospectus. This delivery requirement is in addition to the obligation of dealers to
deliver a prospectus when acting as an underwriter and with respect to an unsold allotment or subscription.

22,989,515 Shares

BIOTRICITY INC.

PROSPECTUS

The Date of This Prospectus is , 2016



PART Il
INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS
Item 13. Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution
The following table sets forth the costs and expen

connection with this offering described in this regigon statement. All amounts shown are estimates, except the SEC
registration fee.

SEC registration fee $ 4,420.85
Accounting fees and expenses $ 2,500.00
Legal fees and expenses $ 7,500.00
Miscellaneous $ 55P.15
Total $ 20,000.00

Item 14. Indemnification of Directors and Officers
The Registrant is incorporated under the laws of the State of Nevada.

Nevada ReviNRSHD) SSedtuiteen (M8. 7502 provi des treatartofficer, ¢ C
employee or agent of a corporation against expenses, including attorneys' fees, actually and reasonably incurred by
connection with any the defense to the extent that a director, officer, employee or agent of a corporationshasdsséul
on the merits or otherwise in defense of any action, suit or proceeding referred to Section 78.7502(1) or 78.7502(2),
defense of any claim, issue or matter therein.

NRS 78.7502(1) provides that a corporation may indemnify any personmvahor is a party or is threatened to be
made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administratiy
investigative, except an action by or in the right of the corporation, by reason ofttligataee is or was a director, officer,
employee or agent of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officeroemplo
agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other entergaisest &xpenses, including attorneys' fees,
judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with the action
or proceeding if he: (a) is not liable pursuant to NRS 78.138; or (b) acted in gdodrfditn a manner which he reasonably
believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation, and, with respect to any criminal actic
proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his conduct was unlawful.
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NRS Section 78.18(2) provides that a corporation may indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threater
to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action or suit by or in the right of the corporation to proc
judgment in its favor by reasori the fact that he is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation, or is
was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, gartrershir
venture, trust or other empgise against expenses, including amounts paid in settlement and attorneys' fees actually
reasonably incurred by him in connection with the defense or settlement of the action or suit if he: (@) is not liabletgursuc
NRS 78.138; or (b) acted in gd faith and in a manner which he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the b
interests of the corporation. Indemnification may not be made for any claim, issue or matter as to which such a perso
been adjudged by a court of competent gigson, after exhaustion of all appeals there from, to be liable to the corporatiol
or for amounts paid in settlement to the corporation, unless and only to the extent that the court in which the adtion o
was brought or other court of competentgdiction determines upon application that in view of all the circumstances of the
case, the person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for such expenses as the court deems proper.

NRS Section 78.747 provides that except as otherwise providegpdmjfic statute, no director or officer of a
corporation is individually liable for a debt or liability of the corporation, unless the director or officer acts asrtbgaf
the corporation. The court as a matter of law must determine the quafstibiether a director or officer acts as the alter ego
of a corporation.

The Registrantds Articles of Il ncorporation and B
employees and agents to the full extent permitted by NRS, includicigciimstances in which indemnification is otherwise
discretionary under such law.

These indemnification provisions may be sufficien
directors and other corporate agents for liabilitieslisiag reimbursement of expenses incurred) arising under the Securitie
Act of 1933.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directo
officers and controlling persons of the company purst@mithe foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the Registrant has beer
informed that in the opinion of the SEC such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities A
1933 and is, therefore, unenforceable.

The Registrant has thgower to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was one of

Registrantdéds directors or of ficer s, or i s or was tefer v
another corporation, partnershipjnjpventure, trust or other business against any liability asserted against the person
incurred by the person in any of these capacitiesatd or

expenses, whether or not the Registrwould have the power to indemnify the person against the claim under the provisio
of the NRS. The Registrant does not currently maintain director and officer liability insurance on behalf of its director
officers; however, it intends to so purekaand maintain such insurance when economically feasible.
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Item 15. Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities.

The Registrant or its predecessors have sold the following securities within the last three fiscal years or
unregistered basis:

In Jn e and December

2 Sensor Mobility issued 6
preferred shares and 20

3,
, 000 Class fAiB0O common shares)

In December 2013, Sensor Mobility issued 99000 c o mmon shares (previously 4
at prices ranging from $0.20 to $0.47 for aggregate cash proceeds of $439,031.

In April 2014, Sensor Mobility entered into agreements for issuance of warrants against services withstiteof it
stockholders and two third party consultants and issued 475,000 warrants (previously 237,500 warrants) entitling 1
stockholders to purchase one common share (previously preferred class A share) against each warrant at an exercise
$0.46 per warrant to be exercised within one year from the issuance date. All of such warrants were cancelled and
reissued by iMedical in its reverse merger with Sensor Mobility.

In June and July 2014, Sensor Mobility issued 1,170,000 common sharesymseviy 585, 000 CIl a!
shares) through at a price per share of $0.47 for aggregate cash proceeds of $545,278.

In July 2014, Sensor Mobility issued 142,000 comm
consulting services at 3/ per share.

On August 11, 2014, all the stockholders of Sensor Mobility entered into a series of roll over agreements for the
of their shares to iMedical. Pursuant to these agreements, iMedical issued 11,829,500 shares in exchange for a@k4,75(
of Sensor Mobility, which were subsequently cancelled.

In November 2014, iMedical issued 1,036,000 units at an exercise price of $1.10 and received gross cash proce
$1,142,837. Each unit was comprised of 1,036,000 common shares and 1,554ra@@swa be exercised at $1.10 within
120 to 270 days from the date of issuance. In connection with the proceeds received, iMedical, among other things, i
51,080 broker warrants to be exercised at $1.10 within 365 days from the date of issuance.

In November 2014, 150,000 common stock purchase warrants were exercised at a price of $0.44 per share.
In March and May 2015, 500,000 common stock purchase warrants were exercised at a price of $1.01 per she
connection with the proceeds received, iMedliamong other things, issued 35,000 broker warrants to be exercised at $1.

within 3 years from the date of issuance.

In August and September 2015, 250,000 warrants were exercised at a price of $1.05 per share. In connection w
proceeds receivedMedical, among other things, issued 17,500 broker warrants.



In September, October and November 2015, iMedical sold $1,368,978 aggregate principal amount of conver
promissory notes to accredited investors. These notes have a maturity 2&tmanths from the date of issuance and carry
annual interest rate of 11%. The note holders have the right until any time until the note is fully paid, to convert
outstanding and unpaid principal portion of the note, and accrued interest, int@digdlyand norassessable shares of
Common Stock. The note has a conversion price initially set at $1.78. As part of this offering, iMedical issued 43,161 br
warrants.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, 2,832,500 shares of iMedical common @nareswed upon the
exercise of outstanding options by iMedical employees, at a weighted average exercise price per share of $0.0001.

None of the above issuances were offered or sold by a U.S. entity or sold in the U.S., or were offered and sold i
U.S. pursuant to an exemption from registration under Section 4{a)@ansactions not involving a public offering .

On February 2, 2016, the Registrant issued an aggregate of 13,376,947 shares of its common stock to iMe
stockholders in the Acqui#n Transaction. Such shares were offered and sold in the U.S. pursuant to an exemption fi
registration under Section 4(a)(f)r transactions not involving a public offeriremd/or the rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder, as a result of then@any having a substantive, preexisting relationship to the limited number o
iMedical stockholders.

From March 31, 2016 through November 29, 2016, the Registrant issued unsecured convertible promissory not
the aggregate principal amount of $2,230,00he issuance of such notes were not registered under the Securities Act. T
Registrant relied upon the exemption from securities registration provided by Section 4(a)(2) under the Securities A
1933, as amended, for transactions not involving dipuiffering, and the safe harbor under Regulation D, Rule 506(b)
promul gated thereunder, to purchasers who are fAaccred

In June and July 2016, the Registrant issued an aggregate of 126,311 shares of its cockmporsthe exercise of
outstanding warrants. The issuance of such shares was not registered under the Securities Act. The Registrant relied u
exemption from securities registration provided by Section 4(a)(2) under the Securities Act of 198%&ndsda for
transactions not involving a public offering, as a result of the Company having a substantive, preexisting relatiortbkip witl
warrantholders.

On or about August 4, 2016, the Registrant issued an aggregate of 125,000 shares of its carthrasrpatonent
for services rendered by consultants and other service providers. The issuance of such shares was not registered ur
Securities Act. The Registrant relied upon the exemption from securities registration provided by Section 4(a){&¢ unde
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, for transactions not involving a public offering, as the issuance thereof was mad
limited number of persons or entities as compensation for services rendered.

During October and November 2016, the Registissiied an aggregate of 85,625 shares of its common stock a
payment for services rendered by consultants and other service providers. The issuance of such shares was not re
under the Securities Act. The Registrant relied upon the exemption framitisscregistration provided by Section 4(a)(2)
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, for transactions not involving a public offering, as the issuance therec
made to a limited number of persons or entities as compensation for servicesdender
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Item 16. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

(a)
The following exhibits are filed as a part of, or incorporated by reference into, this Registration Statement.

Exhibit Description

3.1 Amended and Restated Articlesof Incorpat i on (fil ed as Exhibit 3
Form 8K filed with the SEC on February 3, 2016 and incorporated herein by reference).

3.2 Amended and RestatedBaws( f i | ed as Exhibit 3(ii) tmn8Kfiled
with the SEC on February 3, 2016 and incorporated herein by reference).

4.1 Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Special Voting Preferred St
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Iltem 17. Undertakings
The undersigned Registrant hereby undertakes:

(a)(1) To file, during any period in which it offers or sales are being made,-affexdtve amendment to this
registration @atement:

0] To include any prospectus required by Section 10(a) (3) of the Securities Act;

(i)  To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events which, individually or together, represent a fundamente
in the information set forth in thRegistration Statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increas
decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exce
which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end d@ddtrdated maximum offering rang
may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) if,
aggregate, the changes in volume and price represent no more than a 20 percent change in the
aggregate offeringp r i ce set forth in the ACalcul ation o
Statement; and

(i)  To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed
Registration Statement or amaterial change to such information in the Registration Statement.

(2) For determining liability under the Securities Act, to treat eachgdtesttive amendment as a new registration statement
relating to the securities then being offered, and theinffeof such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initia
bona fideoffering of such securities.

(3) To file a poseffective amendment to remove from registration any of the securities that remain unsold at the end of
offering.

(4) That for the purpose of determining liability under the Securities Act to any purchaser:

If the undersigned Registrant is subject to Rule 430C, each prospectus filed pursuant to Rule 424(b) as part o
Registration Statement, other than registratiorestants relying on Rule 430B or other than prospectuses filed in reliance o
Rule 430A, shall be deemed to be part of and included in the Registration Statement as of the date it is first used
effectivenessprovided, however, that no statement made a registration statement or prospectus that is part of the
registration statement or made in a document incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference into the registration sta
or prospectus that is part of the Registration Statement wilh, aptirchaser with a time of contract of sale prior to such first
use, supersede or modify any statement that was made in the registration statement or prospectus that was part
Registration Statement or made in any such document immediately miarttaate of first use.

(6) That, for the purpose of determining liability of the registrant under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser in
initial distribution of the securities:
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The undersigned registrant undertakes that in a priwffeying of securities of the undersigned registrant pursuant to this
registration statement, regardless of the underwriting method used to sell the securities to the purchaser, if theusecurit
offered or sold to such purchaser by means of anyefdhowing communications, the undersigned registrant will be a
seller to the purchaser and will be considered to offer or sell such securities to such purchaser:

(i)
Any preliminary prospectus or prospectus of the undersigned registrant relatingtietimg required to be filed pursuant to
Rule 424 (8 230.424 of this chapter);

(ii)
Any free writing prospectus relating to the offering prepared by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant or useedor ref
to by the undersigned registrant;

(iii)
Theportion of any other free writing prospectus relating to the offering containing material information about the undersig
registrant or its securities provided by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant; and

(iv)

Any other communication that is arf@fin the offering made by the undersigned registrant to the purchaser.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to directors, officers &
controlling persons of Registrant pursuant to Item 14 ofRhi$ Il to the registration statement, or otherwise, Registrant has
been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public poli
expressed in the Securities Act, and is, therefore, unenfoecdalthe event that a claim for indemnification against such
liabilities (other than the payment by Registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controllingfperso
Registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or pinggeasl asserted by such director, officer or controlling

person in connection with the securities being registered, Registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel thasmatte
been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of app®juiaddiction the question whether such indemnification

by it is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and will be governed by the final adjudication ofesuch issu
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the SecuritiesoA&B33, the registrant has duly caused this registration statement t

be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Redwood City, State of Californic
December 13, 2016.

BIOTRICITY INC.

By:  /s/ waoaas aL-sibbig
Wagaas AlSiddiq

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this registration statement inlHoas&en signed by
the following persos in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

Chairman, President
and Chief Executive

Officer (principal

executive, financial and
IS/ waQaas AL-SIDDIQ accounting officer) December 13, 2016
Wagaas AlSiddiq
* Director December 13, 2016
Norman M. Betts
* Director December 13, 2016

David A. Rosa

*Wagaas AISiddiq, pursuant to Powers of Attorney, executed by the officers and directorsalisieel and indicated by
signing above, and filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, by signing his name hereto does hereby sig
executed this Amendment to the Registration Statement on behalf of each of the persons referenced above.

/s/ waoaas AL-SIDDIO

Wagaas AlSiddiq




Confidential Treatment

SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT AND SERVICES AGREEMENT

This agreement is made as of September 15 2014 Effextive Date'), by and between iMedical Innovation Inc.
having offices at 75 International BlydSuite 300, Toronto, ON, M9%WL9, CANADA ("IMed") and
CardioComm Solutions, Inc., having offices at 259 Yorkland Road, Suite 200, North York, OntariOBBl2J
CANADA ("CCS").

WHEREAS:

A.

CCS is a publichtraded company that specializes in softwamethe reading of electro cardiograms (or ECGSs).
CCS's software solution is currently utilized by Canadian and United States based ECG reading services
healthcare organizations.

B.
IMed is a company presently engaged in developing and commerciatizimgarable, drglectrode, wireless
GSM-enabled ECG Monitor (theDevicé').

C.

The parties entered into a Memorandum of Understanding on M8y 314 (the MOU") confirming the parties'
intent to close a series of transactions prior to the end oé®bpt, 2014, related to acquiring access to certain
CCS software as an essential component of a joint venture between the parties.

D.
This Software Development and Services Agreement was contemplated in the MOU.

THEREFORE, in consideration of the pres@s and the mutual agreements herein, and of other consideration (t
receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged by each party), the parties agree as follows:

1.
TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR DELIVERY OF SERVICES.

1.1

This Software Development and Sees Agreement which, together with all Exhibits, Addenda, the attache
Statement of Work (theSOW" a summary of which is attached as Exhibit A), any Purchase Orders as defin
below and other attachments and documents referenced and expressly inedipengin, are collectively referred
to herein as theSDA") provides the terms and conditions under which CCS agrees to provide services (
"Services) to IMed. Nothing in this SDA shall be construed as requiring IMed to purchase any additional serv
from CCS. The only commitments to purchase shall be as set forth in this SDA or one or more purchase order
flow from the SOW as may be executed by an authorized representative of each party from time to time (ec
"Purchase Order").
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1.2

During the term of this SDA, CCS will issue invoices to IMed for the Services completed as specified in the SC
A more detailed Statement of Work shall be completed within three (3) months of the Effective Date, both s
acting cooperatively angtasonably to meet this time line, and shall include:

(a)

scope of Services to be provided by CCS;

(b)

responsibilities of IMed,;

(©)

deliverables (Deliverables’) included in such Services;
(d)

time frames by which the Services are to be provided;
(e)

acceptance criteria, if any;

()

price to be paid by IMed for the Services;

(9

payment schedule; and

(h)

identification of the account manager nominated by each party for this project.

If the three (3) month time line to finalize the detail€dV® is not met, then so long as the parties are working
diligently to complete said SOW the three (3) month period shall be expanded to enable completion of the
SOW and any time lines provided for in the SDA shall be extended, day for day, pendirigticongd the said
SOW.

1.3

Either party may issue change orders for modifications that are materially scbpe from what is contained in
the detailed SOW (each, €Hange Order"). All Change Orders shall become binding when signed by authorizec
representatives of both parties, or when CCS begins performance of the Services specified in a Change ¢
approved by an authorized representative of IMed. In the event any such Change Order causes any increase
cost of, or the time required for, pemioance of the Services, or otherwise affects the SOW, IMed and CCS shz
mutually agree, as particularized in the Change Order, to an equitable adjustment based upon CCS's cos
resources incurred or committed, if possible. IMed reserves the rigtéptaor reject any CCS Change Order
guotes. CCS is not obligated to perform any Change Order to the Statement of Work where IMed has not app
the associated Change Order cost adjustment.

1.4

The Services to be provided to IMed shall be under timstand conditions in this SDA. If any terms in the SOW
or a Change Order conflicts with or are inconsistent with the terms in this SDA, the Change Order or SOW ¢
prevail. IMed shall cooperate with CCS in the performance of the Services, includindipga@asonable access
to IMed's employees, technologies and adequate ingress and egress to IMed's facilities as may be neces:

perform the Services. When CCS personnel are at the IMed
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facilities, they shall behave in an appropriate bodinesdike manner and shall be cognizant and obey all IMed
rules and regulations.

1.5
Intentionally deleted.

1.6
Performance of the Services shall not be assigned or delegated by CCS except as may be agreed to in advat
in writing by IMed.

1.7

The following Authorized Affiliate Users, asspecified herein below, shall be third party beneficiaries hereunder
and shall be permitted to enjoy any and all such benefits accruing to IMed by virtue of this SDA, which sl
include full use of any soitare licensed hereunder, as if such Affiliate were the named licensee of such software

(a)
Sensor Mobility LLC; and

(b)

Sensor Mobility Inc.

2.
PAYMENT .

2.1

In consideration of the Services rendered by CCS pursuant to any Purchase Order isswged puthis SDA,
IMed shall, unless otherwise specified in the Purchase Order, pay CCS in accordance with the SOW, includii
may be equitably adjusted by Change Order pursuant to 1.3 above.

2.2
No travel by CCS is anticipated in this SDA. If traierequired, CCS and IMed will mutually agree to the terms
required in writing under a specific Purchase Order.

2.3

CCS shall invoice IMed in accordance with the SOW (Exhibit A) and unless otherwise specified therein or in
relevant Purchase Order C®#ling shall be monthly with invoices submitted within ten (10) business days afte
end of the month and with all invoices being payable within thirty (30) days after month end of the month of ac
receipt of the invoice. All payments shall be madehgck payable to CCS or by wire transfer to a bank account
designated in writing by CCS. CCS will reflect any applicable IMed Purchase Order number on each invoice
services. CCS shall be responsible for all local, provincial and federal taxes.

2.4

The payments referred to above shall constitute the sole remuneration in connection with the Services. CCS
not accept or claim from third parties, directly or indirectly any trade commission, discount, allowance, indir
payment or other consideration benefit in whatever form in connection with or in relation to this SDA or to the
performance of the Services hereunder.
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3.
DOCUMENTATION & RIGHT TO AUDIT.

3.1
CCS agrees that during the Term hereof (see Section 6), CCS will kegpdiiWised on a regular basis and as
reasonably requested by IMed, as to CCS's progress in performing the Services hereunder.

3.2

CCS shall preserve and maintain Service and, payment records for a period of two (2) years beyond the expi
or terminaton of this SDA. At any time during the term of this SDA and for a period of two (2) years afte
expiration or termination of this SDA, IMed shall have the right, upon not less than ten (1@otiagsand within
usual and customary business hours, tataD@S records relating to this SDA, including costs, expenses, ant
disbursements, made or incurred in connection herewith. The costs of any audit shall be borne by IMed, u
such audit determines that CCS has inaccurately used such data when cglanjabillable expenses or services
and the total error is in excess of five percent (5%) of the total billings for the period audited, in which case (
shall pay all related costs for such audit including but not be limited to all expenses incurreedbgniidloyees
directly related to such audit and the cost of their time. CCS shall also reimburse to IMed any amounts found
invoiced in error, such reimbursements to take place forthwith and in any event within 10 days of s
determination, togethevith a 25% premium on such reimbursed amounts.

4.
CONFIDENTIALITY AND CERTAIN PROPRIETARY RIGHTS.

4.1

During the course of performance under this SDA, CCS and IMed will be exposed to and otherwise become |
to a variety of information and materi@lating to each other's business, financial data, plans, technical operatio
or activities, all of which are considered to be confidential. For the purpose of this Sbwfidential
Information " means all information which by its nature a reasonable pevsaold consider to be of a confidential
and/or proprietary nature, provided by or on behalf of a party or any of its affiliates directly or indirectly,
whatever form (including on paper, electronically, on magnetic media, orally or otherwise). CABlezhd
acknowledge that such information and material will be received, preserved, and protected as confidential
represent and warrant that they will not use or disclose such Confidential Information other than:

(a)
for the purpose of furthering andrgmg the interests of IMed in connection with performance of Services unde
this SDA; and

(b)
to individuals responsible to the undersigned who have a need to know such information in order to pursue
assigned responsibilities. CCS shall notify iMi@ advance of any disclosure of IMed's Confidential Information
to individuals external to the CCS organization, and such individuals shall, at IMed's request, be require
execute IMed's standard form of nondisclosure agreement prior to their mdcgiph Confidential Information.
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The parties agree to hold the other's Confidential Information in confidence, both during and after the term of
SDA, using the same degree (but no less than a reasonable degree) of care amahphateittexercises with its
own Confidential Information of a similar nature.

4.2

The obligation of confidentiality shall not apply to any information or materials which:

(a)

can be documented as already known to the receiving party at the timelatule;

(b)

are received on a naronfidential basis from an independent source entitled to disclose such information;
(c)

the providing party authorizes in writing to be disclosed;

(d)

are or become generally available to the public other tharresult of the disclosure by the receiving party;
(e)

are ascertainable from a commercially available product without violation of this SDA by any other obligation
confidentiality; or

()
are required to be disclosed by law, provided howevertlieadisclosing party shall provide the other party timely
prior written notice of any such legal requirement of disclosure.

4.3
Upon termination or expiration of this SDA:

(a)
CCS shall promptly return to IMed any Confidential Information and magergdeived from IMed and any
materials embodying or containing such Confidential Information.

(b)
IMed shall promptly return to CCS any Confidential Information and materials received from CCS IMed and ¢
materials embodying or containing such Confid@ninformation, other than to the extent such Confidential
Information is imbedded in or is a constituent element of the Custom Software.

4.4

CCS acknowledges that it may have to date and will in the future be doing work and performing tasks, inclu
providing the Services, for or on behalf of IMed (including in respect of the Device and the Custom Software,
"Body of Work"). CCS acknowledges it has no and shall not acquire any proprietary interest, right or title in or
any patent, design, copght, source code, software, hardware, schematics, documentation or other intellectua
industrial property rights in the Body of Work (including enhancements and modifications thereto) developec
whole or in part by CCS specifically for IMed from anitea the Effective Date (collectively, théP' Rights").

The Body of Work and IP Rights are and shall be the property of IMed and CCS specifically disclaims, on its ¢
behalf and on behalf of its employees, personnel
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and agents, any moraghts in whole or in part in the Body of Work and the IP Rights. CCS will use its reasonab
commercial efforts to ensure that any work done as it relates to the Body of Work will be original and will r
infringe on or interfere with the rights of otlser

4.5

CCS, notwithstanding the foregoing, shall remain titled to its owrepisgting intellectual or industrial property,
whether or not patented, including to the extent it is incorporated into the Body of Work provided that CCS s
use its reasonédcommercial efforts to advise IMed in advance of any time CCS believes it will use such prope
in providing its Services, and IMed shall be entitled to decline the use or incorporation of such property into
Body of Work. In any event, IMed is herefranted a perpetual, n@xclusive, royalty and costee license to use
such property as a part of the Body of Work for any aspect of its business.

4.6

Nothing in this SDA shall be construed to restrict CCS from developing or distributing produymsfaming
services that do not infringe upon the intellectual property rights of IMed, using intangible residugidwaw
concepts retained in the mind of its personnel, provided that CCS or its personnel shall not directly refere
incorporate or dterwise use in such products or services any Confidential Information of IMed, it bein
understood that any use by CCS or its personnel of ideas;kowwtechnical information, processes, practices or
systems that are in the public domain, including gegenerally known in the information technology industry,
shall not constitute such infringement.

5.
INTANGIBLES .

5.1

Subject to IMed's rights as set out in Sections 4.4, 4.5 and 4.6 each party agrees not to use the other |
trademarks, logo, conamy name, copyrights and other intellectual and industrial property rights and oth
materials (collectively, thelfitangibles") without the prior written approval of the other party. Subject to IMed's
rights as set out in Sections 4.4, 4.5 and 4.6 amgsrighall be term limited for duration of this SDA and shall be
limited for use in the design and development of marketing materials for the sole purpose of promoting
marketing the Device, derivative products and associated Custom Software.

5.2

Subject to IMed's rights as set out in Sections 4.4, 4.5 and 4.6 all rights to use Intangibles shall cease |
termination of this SDA, and all signs, advertising and promotional material bearing any of the Intangibles sha
removed from public display ardkstroyed, or, if requested by the licensing party, returned to it within thirty (30
days after any such termination or expiration.

5.3

Subject to IMed's rights as set out in Sections 4.4, 4.5 and 4.6 Intangible licensing by a party under this EDA i
intended, and shall not be deemed, to confer upon or create in any property rights to the other party with resp
any of the Intangibles.

Page6 of 20



5.4
IMed agrees not to remove any CCS word marks, branding or other CCS references fraAtfe IGDK.

6.
TERM.

6.1
The term of this SDA shall begin as of the Effective Date and, unless sooner terminated in accordance wi
provisions, shall remain in effect until the later to occur of:

(a)

five (5) years; or

(b)

completion of all Seriees under all SOWs hereunder.
The Term of this SDA may be extended or renewed by mutual agreement of the parties.

6.2

Neither party may terminate this SDA or any SOW hereunder at any time, for convenience and without ca
provided, however, that ithe event that IMed determines, pursuant to the financing condition contained in ;
exclusivity and royalty agreement entered into between the parties and dated the date hereof, to not procee
the development project, then upon written notice of testion or withdrawal from IMed to CCS under this
Agreement contemporaneous with the notice provided by IMed to CCS under the said exclusivity and roy
agreement, this Agreement shall terminate and in such circumstances neither party shall haveraryagaiost
the other party as a result of such termination.

6.3
Either party may terminate this SDA for breach as defined as:

(a)

the other party breaches any material term or condition of this SDA and fails to cure such breach within thirty
daysafter receipt of written notice of the same; provided, however, that if such breach is capable of cure, bui
reasonably within such thirty (30) day period, the-bosaching party shall not be entitled to rely on such breach
to terminate this SDA if sth breach is reasonably capable of cure within one hundred (100) days and |
breaching party is taking reasonable and ongoing steps during such period to cure the complained of breach;

(b)
the other party becomes the subject of a voluntary petitiommkroptcy or any voluntary proceeding relating to
insolvency, receivership, liquidation, or composition for the benefit of creditors; or

(c)

the other party becomes the subject of an involuntary petition in bankruptcy or any involuntary proceedigg rele
to insolvency, receivership, liquidation, or composition for the benefit of creditors, if such petition or proceeding
not dismissed within sixty (60) days of filing, unless, if after such sixty (60) day period, the other party is taking
reasonald measures to defend or challenge such petition or proceeding.
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6.4
Terms and Consequences of Termination: See Exhibit A, PART B.

7.
WARRANTIES & COVENANTS.

CCS represents and warrants and covenants that:

7.1
It shall commence worlpromptly and all Services shall be performed in a timely and professional manner,
accordance with reasonable standards of the industry.

7.2
It has and shall retain the required personnel, skills and knowledge to render the Services.

7.3

It has no otstanding agreement or obligation that is in conflict with any of the provisions of this SDA, or th.
would preclude CCS from complying with the provisions hereof, and further warrants that it will not enter into &
such agreement or obligation during teem of this SDA.

7.4

All Services performed pursuant to this SDA shall be in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.
illegal, improper, or unethical payment or other activities shall be made or undertaken by CCS in connection
services to be performed for IMed.

7.5

The Custom Software (as defined in the SOW) to be delivered under this SDA does not and shall not infri
misappropriate or otherwise violate any third party patents, utility certificates, utility models, industitgad de
rights, copyrights, database rights, trade secrets, any protection offered by law to Information, semiconducitc
topography rights and all registrations, applications, renewals, extensions, combinations, divisions, continua
or reissues of anyfahe foregoing or which otherwise arises or is enforceable under the laws of any jurisdiction
any btlateral or multilateral treaty regime (collectivelylPR").

7.6

Any and all IPR associated with the Custom Software (whether owned by CCS orroneedhird parties) have
been or will be secured by CCS to the extent necessary to enable CCS to fully comply with all terms
conditions of this SDA including, but not limited, to IMed's right to enjoy all benefits for all purposes associat
with the Custom Software.

7.7

Neither the Custom Software nor the CCS existing software that is or may be a part of the Custom Softy
(including GUAVA, Global Cardio and GEMS) is currently the subject of any threatened or actual litigatic
related to the intellgual property rights of a third party.

7.8
The Custom Software does not and shall not contain any viruses or disabling code.

7.9
Open Source Software Warranty.
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Any materials to be provided to IMed for use by IMed, do not include artiopaf any Open Source Software.
CCS agrees that it will defend, indemnify and hold harmless IMed, its affiliates and their customers against
and all losses, damages, costs and expenses arising from a breach by CCS of any of its obligationsticmeser
or warranties hereunder, including, without limitation, any third party claims in connection with any such brea
provided however, in the event any materials or Deliverables provided to IMed contain any Open Source Softv
CCS shall immediatelyotify IMed. For purposes of this SDAaffiliates" means legal entities controlling, in
common control with, and/or controlled by, directly or indirectly, a party to the SDA, through ownership or cont
of more than fifty percent (50%) of the voting pawvof the shares or other means of ownership or control of sucl
entity.

For the purpose of this Section 7.9, the term Open Source Software means:

(@)
any software that requires as a condition of use, modification and/or distribution of such softa&as)ch
software:

(i)

be disclosed or distributed in source code form;

(ii)

be licensed for the purpose of making derivative works; and/or

(i)

can be redistributed only free of enforceable Intellectual property rights (e.g., patents); and/or

(b)
any software that contains, is derived in any manner (in whole or in part) from, or statically or dynamically lir
against any software specified under (a).

For exemplary purposes only, and without limitation, any software modules or packages lmedstdbuted
under any of the following licenses or distribution models shall qualify as Open Source Software:

(a)

[Subject to a request for confidential treatment; Separately filed with the Commission]
(b)

[Subject to a request for confidential treatment; Separately filed with the Commission|]
(c)

[Subject to a request for confidential treatment; Separately filed with the Commission]
(d)

[Subject to a request for confidential treatment; Separately filed with the Commission]
(e)

[Subject to arequest for confidential treatment; Separately filed with the Commission]and
(f)

[Subject to a request for confidential treatment; Separately filed with the Commission]

7.10 Post Release Warranty.



For a period of forty five (45) days from the Give Date (defined in the SOW), the Custom Software will operate
substantially in accordance with its specifications. CCS will promptly repair, at is sole cost and expense,
Custom Software to resolve any failure of this warranty that is broughtattetstion during the warranty period.
CCS shall also correct, at its sole cost and expense, all severity defect levels (as defined in Schedule B h
which are identified by IMed to CCS in writing during this forty five (45) day period.

8. INDEMNITY, LIMITATION OF LIABILITY AND INSURANCE.

8.1 The parties shall indemnify, defend and hold each other, their affiliates and their resp#iers, directors
and employees, harmless from and against any and all liability or expense in connectiory witlssn of
action or claims of third parties arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct or related to ac
omissions, or performance hereunder, of the indemnifying party, its employees, agents and subcontracto
the breach of any representes or warranties provided herein. The indemnifying party's obligations
hereunder are conditioned upon the party seeking indemnification (i) providing the other with timely notice
any claim or cause of action for which such party seeks indemnity, ptbtowever, any failure or delay in
providing such notice shall not relieve the indemnifying party of its indemnity obligation except to the exte
that defense of the claim or cause of action is materially prejudiced, (i) granting the indemnifyinfylparty
and complete information and reasonable assistance necessary for the indemnifying party to defend, set
avoid the cause of action or claim, and (iii) giving the indemnifying party sole control of the defense
settlement of the cause of actionclaim, provided that the indemnified party may patrticipate in such defens
or settlement with counsel of its own selection and at its own expense. Neither party shall, without the
written consent of the other party, effect any settlement of anglipg or threatened action in respect of
which other party is or could have been a party and Indemnity could have been sought hereunder by the
party unless such settlement:

(a)
Includes an unconditional release of the other party from all lialufityany claims that are the subject matter of
such action;

(b)
does not include a statement as to, or an admission of, fault, culpability or a failure to act by or on the other pi:
behalf; and

(©)

does not exceed the limitation of liability settfom section 8.3.

If the Indemnifying Party does not proceed with the settlement or defense of any claim, the Indemnified Party
be entitled to assume such control. In such case, the Indemnifying Party shyadirate where necessary with the
Indemnified Party and its counsel in connection with such claim and the Indemnifying Party shall be bound by
results obtained by the Indemnified Party with respect to such claim.

8.2 CCS shall indemnify, defend and hold IMed, its affiliates and respeatiicers, directors and employees,
harmless from and against any and all liability or expense (including attorneys' fees) in connection with
cause of action, claims, or assertions of third parties arising out of Intellectual property infringeradrdrbas
IMed use of the Deliverables, Services, or any other work product provided by the CCS hereunder.

IMed shall Indemnify, defend and hold CCS, its affiliates and respective officers, directors and employe
harmless from and against any and all ligbor expense (including attorneys' fees) in connection with any cause
of action, claims, or assertions of third parties arising out of intellectual property infringement based on CCS u
the IMed Confidential Information, support or any other workdpict provided by IMed in support of the
completion of the Scope of Work by CCS hereunder.



8.3 IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE FOR INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL,
CONSEQUENTIAL OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES OR DAMAGES FOR LOST PROFITS OR REVENUES
FOR ANY CLAIM RELATING TO THE PERFORMANCE OR NONPERFORMANCE OF THEIR
RESPECTIVE OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT or FOR ANY BREACH, REPUDIATION OR
TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT.

8.4 During the Term of the SDA, CCS and any subcontractor that provides or perforioiste Services shall
maintain and keep in force, at its own expense, the following minimum insurance coverage and minimn
limits where relevant:

(a)

Workers' compensation insurance. with statutory limits as required by the various laws and regpatioakle

to the employees of CCS and any subcontractor that provides or performs any of the Services;

(b)
Employer's liability insurance, for employee bodily injuries and deaths, with a limit of one million dollar
($1,000,000) each accident;

(c)

Commercial general liability insurance, covering claims for bodily injury, death and property damage, includi
premises and operations, independent contractors, products, services and completed operations (as applicabl
Services), personal injury, cwactual, and broatbrm property damage liability coverage, with limits as follows:
occurrence limit of one million dollars ($1,000,000) for bodily injury, death and property damage, one milli
dollars ($1,000,000) for products and completed operatios tao million dollars ($2,000,000) combined
aggregate;

(d)
Commercial automobile liability with a minimum limit of one million ($1,000,000) combined single limit insuring
all owned, normwned, hired and leased vehicles;

(e)
Excess or umbrella liabijit with a minimum limit of liability of not less than one million ($1,000,000) per
occurrence.

Upon request, CCS will provide IMed with a certificate of insurance evidencing the above policies. IMed will
named as an additional insured with respedhé¢oGommercial General Liability policy. There shall be no material
changes or cancellation of such insurance without thirty (30) days prior written notice to IMed. CCS shall
responsible for payment of any and all deductibles and coinsurance provisionsnsured claims under its
policies of insurance. The coverage afforded under any insurance policy obtained by CCS pursuant to the
shall be primary coverage regardless of whether or not IMed has similar coverage. In addition, all polic
including the workers compensation shall contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of IMed. CCS and
subcontractors shall not perform under the SDA without the prerequisite insurance. Upon IMed's request,
shall provide IMed with certificates of such insuramu&uding renewals thereof. Insurance policy limits shall not
affect the limit of liability of CCS or its subcontractors.

9. MISCELLANEOQOUS.
9.1 Use of Name.

IMed acknowledges that CCS, as a Canadian pukliatjed company, is required to disclosdgaia aspects of its

material business transactions through regulatory filing and press releases. This SDA will meet the criteria of t
a material business transaction. CCS shall not use IMed's name or logo or any adaptation thereof, for
advertising trade or other purpose without IMed' prior written consent, which consent may be granted or withh
at IMed sole and reasonable discretion. CCS shall not give interviews to the media or publish in any mediu



connection with the Services performed éherder or in connection with activities of IMed, unless CCS has
obtained the prior written approval for such interview and/or publication from IMed, such approval not to
reasonably withheld. IMed will assist CCS in preparation of press releases toncer@cution of this SDA,
receipt of funding as contemplated under this SAL and the start and completion of any major phases assot
with the Services as outlined in Exhibit A, PART A, Section 2.

9.2 Assignment.

Neither party may assign this SDA delegate any of its rights or duties hereunder without the prior writter
approval of the other party, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld. Any attempted assignment or tral
whether voluntary or by operation of law, made in contraventioneofaims hereof shall be void and of no force
and effect. Except as otherwise provided herein, this SDA shall inure to the benefit of, and shall be binding u
the parties and permitted successors and assigns. Any sale, transfer or other dispositevation ap law or
otherwise of a controlling interest in CCS's assets, capital stock or business to any person, group or entity
constitute an assignment and breach of this SDA and shall entitle IMed to terminate this SDA effec
immediately in accalance with Exhibit A, PART B, unless it has given prior written approval for such
assignment.

9.3 Independent Contractor.

Nothing in this SDA shall in any way be construed to constitute CCS the agent, employee or representati\
IMed. CCS acknowledss that in performing its obligations under this SDA it is an independent contractor, witho
any authority or right to act in the name of IMed except as expressly provided herein. CCS shall have no autt
to conclude contracts for, on behalf of, othe name of IMed, or otherwise to bind IMed to any legal obligation or
undertaking, or to represent to any third parties that it has such authority, or purport to attempt to exercise any
authority in violation of this SDA. Neither CCS nor employeesl(iding third parties) of CCS shall be entitled to
any benefits provided by IMed to its employees.

9.4 Notices.

All notices provided in connection with this SDA shall be in writing and shall be delivered by Federal Express
other reputable courieesvice or by mail, postage prepaid, certified or registered, return receipt requested. E:
notice shall be addressed to the party at the address set forth below or at such other address as a party shall
by notice to the other party. Notice shadl tleemed effective upon receipt.

If to IMed:

iMedical Innovations Inc.

75 International Blvd., Suite 300
Toronto, ON,

MOW-6L9, CANADA

Attention: Waqgaas Siddiqui, CEO

If to CCS:

CardioComm Solutions, Inc.
259 Yorkland Road, Suite 200
North York,Ontario

M2J 0B5

Attention: Etienne Grima, CEO

9.5 Governing Law.

This Agreement is a contract made under and shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the |z
the Province of Ontario, and the federal laws of Canada applicable therein



9.6 Counterparts.

This SDA may be executed in counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original, but all of which \
constitute one and the same instrument. Any facsimile copy of a signed counterpart shall be treated the sam
signed orignal.

9.7 CCS acknowledges that time is of the essence in performance of services under this SDA.
9.8 Waivers.

No waiver shall be effective unless it is in writing, signed by the party against which the waiver is claimed. -
failure of either partyd require performance under any provision of this SDA shall in no way affect the right «
such party to require full performance at any subsequent time, nor shall the waiver by either party of a brea
any provision of this SDA constitute a waiver ofya@ucceeding breach of the same or any other provision.

9.9 Entire Agreement.

This SDA constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof
supersedes all prior representations, negotiations, writingspraada and agreements, either oral or written, with
respect thereto.

9.10 Amendment/Modification.

No modification, variation, supplement or amendment of this SDA shall be of any force unless it is in writing ¢
has been signed by both of the parties.

9.11 Further Assurances.

The parties shall execute such documents and take such further actions as may be reasonably necessary or d
from time to time to fully implement the purposes and intents of this SDA.

9.12 Headings.

Titles of sectios and subsections are for convenience only and neither limits nor amplify the provisions of t
SDA.

9.13 Severable.

If anyone or more provisions of the SDA shall be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, the valid
legality and enforcdality of the remaining provisions contained herein shall not in any way be affected c
impaired thereby. The parties agree to negotiate in good faith, in order to replace the invalid provisions with \
provisions that conform as closely as possiblié¢éoeconomic and commercial intent of the invalid provisions.

9.14 Force Majeure.

Neither party shall be liable to the other for delays or failures in performance under this SDA due to acts of (
governmental authority or public enemy, fire, floodikst, labor disturbance, epidemic, war, riot, civil disturbance,
power failure, embargo, shortages in materials, components or services, boycotts, transportation delays o
other cause beyond the control of the party claiming force majeure and ocamithogt such party's fault or
negligence.

9.15 No Third Party Rights.



Subject to Section 1.7, nothing in this SDA shall give rise to any rights in any person or entity that is not a par
this SDA.

9.16 Survival.

Any provisions of this SDA andny Statements of Work attached hereto, which by their nature are intended
survive expiration or termination hereof, shall survive expiration or termination of this SDA or the applicat
Statement of Work.

9.17 TSX Venture Exchange Approval.

This Ageement and the obligations of the parties hereunder shall be subject to receipt and approval of
Agreement by the TSX Venture Exchange.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this SDA as of the date first above written.

iMedical Innovation Inc.
CardioComm Solutions, Inc.

By: /s/ Wagaas Siddiqui

By: /s/ Etienne Grima

Name: Wagaas Siddiqui
Name: Mr. Etienne Grima
Title: Chief Executive Officer
Title: Chief Executive Officer

September 18, 2014
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EXHIBIT A

STATEMENT OF WORK SUMMARY

This Statement of Work summarySOW") summary incorporates the terms and conditions of the Software
License and Services Agreement (tiA"), dated September 15 2014, by and between CardioComm Solution
Inc. ("CCS") and iMedical Innovation Inc. [Med"). To the extent this SOW conflicts with or is inconsistent with
the terms of the SDA, this SOW shall govern.

This SDA shall encompass developmh by CCS of a software solution (th€ustom Software’) for the
management and review of ECGs recorded and transmitted by a wearalgdkecthgde, wireless GSinabled
ECG Monitoring device (theDevicé') to be developed by IMed. CardioComm will deyekhe Custom Software
on a global, exclusive basis for this Device and any derivative products as dowbnle whereby any work
product produced by CardioComm specifically for the Device shall be the sole property and for the exclu:
benefit of IMed.For greater certainty, nothing herein shall be construed as transferring ownership of either
"GEMSE'' or "Globalcardi oE" platforms, which are
for the Custom Software subject to the terms herein.

PART A: OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES.

1)
Customized Software Development and Associated Fees.

(i)

CCS and IMed confirm that CCS has been working with Sensor Mobility since March 2013, to develop a De
and Custom Software offering with the aim totezninto the MCT ECG monitoring service in the USA and
wireless ECG monitoring service globally.

(ii)

It is acknowledged that CCS will be using its currently available technologies to fulfill this requirement in multir
phases over the 2014 and 201%ndhar years. It is understood that CCS will be developing the Custom Softwa
under an anticipated Global Cardi oE" and GUAVA EC
requirements of this integration. The Custom Software shall not requiseplaeate licensing of any other CCS
software by IMed.

(iii)

Within Sixty (60) days of the Effective Date, but in any event forthwith after receipt of-eefiamdable initiation
payment CCS equivalent to fifteen percent (15%) of the proposed SOW bo@geshall begin development of a
detailed SOW for the Custom Software which will enable an IMed Device, where the Device and Custom Softv
will meet the requirements for mobile cardiac telemetGT ") billing services in the United States of America.

For the purposes of this SDA "MCT" means a service eligible to be reimbursed under the USA CPT and Med.
billing codes noted below, or as same may be amended, enlarged or modified in the future including for bil
codes that offer the same serviessare noted below:

Code 93228 defined as: External mobile cardiovascular telemetry with electrocardiographic recording, concu
computerized real time data analysis and greater than 24 hours of accessible ECG data storage (retrievabl
query) wih ECG triggered and patient selected events transmitted to a remote attended surveillance center f
to 30 days; physician review and interpretation with report; and,



Code 93229 defined as: External mobile cardiovascular telemetry with electrocaptiogiecording, concurrent
computerized real time data analysis and greater than 24 hours of accessible ECG data storage (retrievabl

query).
(iv)

IMed will be responsible for the development of the Device and providing CCS with a working prototyg
administration tools to remotely to monitor and communicate with the Device and provision of a server solu
that will receive GSM transmitted ECG recordings from the Device. IMed shall be responsible for the efforts
costs associated with applyirfigr and securing regulatory clearances for the sale of the Device and Custc
Software.

(V)

CCS will work to complete the Custom Software such that it is in compliance with the requirements for inclus
in a Food and Drug Administration (thEDA") 510K medical device clearance application (tiAgplication™).
CCS may assist IMed in the Application under separate agreement or under a mutually executed Purchase Or

(Vi)

CCS agrees that the preferred date for completion of the Custom Software shalbbé&ejore December 31,
2015. IMed shall be provided a copy of the Custom Software source code and associated documentation (fre
clear of any encumbrances) at completion of the sow.

(vii)

IMed shall be responsible for maintaining ISO 13485 stasdardlevelopment of the Device and for regulatory
preparations and submission cost associated with securing market clearances for the Device and Custom So
such as a 510K clearance application with the FDA for sale of the medical device in thertahtid8A, and for

the potential for securing other regional clearances as may required to access additional markets internationall

(viii)
CCS will be responsible for performing its responsibilities under the SOW in compliance with 1ISO 134
requiremets. CCS is an ISO certified organization.

(ix)

The work performed within the SOW, or any approved Change Order. shall be consideredf@rvivek Upon
delivery to IMed and receipt of payment, in full, by CCS for development of the Custom Softwaightditle
and Interest in the Custom Software Solution shall be the sole property of IMed.

(x)
Following completion of the SOW, IMed shall not compete with CCS through tbaleeof the Custom Software
or derivative products without prior written appal of CCS.

(xi)

CCS confirms that a portion of its proprietary software utilizefSabject to a request for confidential
treatment; Separately filed with the Commission] The framework and its source code are licensed under al
[Subject to a request br confidential treatment; Separately filed with the Commission] CCS is not of the
opinion that this software is classified as open source but has disclosed this for the certainty of compliance.

2)
Estimated Payment Schedule.

It is estimated that IMedvill pay CCS six hundred and fifty thousand US dollars ($650,000) for design of
Windows Operating System ECG management software that will allow an ECGs recorder from the IMed Devic



be viewed and analyzed with the option for an ECG report, with teacthe being payable only upon completion
of the corresponding items in accordance with the following schedule (which is intended to be sequential:

(i)
Initiation Fee- Fifteen percent (15%) or ninety seven thousand, five hundred US dollars ($97.B90 US

(i)
[Subject to a request for confidential treatment; Separately filed with the Commissio] Five percent (5%) or
thirty two thousand five hundred US dollars ($32,500 USD).

(iii)
[Subject to a request for confidential treatment; Separately filedwith the Commission] - twenty percent
(20%) or one hundred and thirty thousand US dollars ($130,000 USD).

(iv)
[Subject to a request for confidential treatment; Separately filed with the Commissionlfifteen percent (15%)
or ninety seven thousand, fivardred US dollars ($97,500 USD).

(V)
[Subject to a request for confidential treatment; Separately filed with the Commissionltwenty percent (20%)
or one hundred and thirty thousand US dollars ($130,000 USD).

(Vi)
[Subject to a request for confidentialtreatment; Separately filed with the Commission] Ten percent (10%) or
sixty five thousand US dollars ($65,000 USD)

(vii)
[Subject to a request for confidential treatment; Separately filed with the Commissior]Ten percent (10%) or
sixty five thousand 8 dollars ($65,000 USD)

3)
Service and Support.

Forty-five days following the first commercial use of the Custom Software by IMed for the benefit of a third pal
(the "Go-Live Date"), a two (2) year renewable, service and support fee 88¢") shal be activated. Under the
SSF CCS shall provide IMefSubject to a request for confidential treatment; Separately filed with the
Commission]([Subject to a request for confidential treatment; Separately filed with the Commission]hours

of support at a co®f [Subject to a request for confidential treatment; Separately filed with the Commission]
dollars ($Subject to a request for confidential treatment; Separately filed with the Commission]per year
representing, a rate fubject to a request for confdential treatment; Separately filed with the Commission]
($[Subject to a request for confidential treatment; Separately filed with the Commission]per hour. Should
the aggregate amount of service and support time requested by IMed exceed th§Sabpecilto a request for
confidential treatment; Separately filed with the Commission] ([Subject to a request for confidential
treatment; Separately filed with the Commission] hours of service and support time, IMed agrees to purchast
additional service and pport time in[Subject to a request for confidential treatment; Separately filed with

the Commission]([Subject to a request for confidential treatment; Separately filed with the Commission]
hour minimum blocks at the prevailing CCS service and suppantyhoate (subject to any other restrictions
provided for herein). There shall be no carry forward credit for unused service and support hours to a subse
two (2) year renewals. The first service and support paymg8ubject to a request for confidatial treatment;
Separately filed with the Commission]dollars ($Subject to a request for confidential treatment; Separately
filed with the Commission] shall be due fortyive days following the Gd.ive Date. The subsequent three (3)
SSF payments and dhde due every six (6) months thereafter. The percentage increase in cost for st
maintenance/support in any subsequent year from the rate in effect for the immediately preceding year sha



exceed[Subject to a request for confidential treatment; Seprately filed with the Commission] percent
([Subject to a request for confidential treatment; Separately filed with the Commissiofip). Service and
support provided hereunder shall be provided in accordance with Exhibit B. Service and support shalliée pro\
by qualified personnel, knowledgeable in the tiarrent release of the Custom Software. (The initial fovty

day period following the Gaive Date is covered by the pasilease warranty described in Section 7.10 of the
SDA.)

PART B:
CONSEQUENCES OF TERMINATION

1)

Upon termination or expiration of this SDA, each party shall promptly return to the other party any confiden
information and materials received from such other party and any materials embodying or containing s
confidential iformation.

2)

Upon termination of this SDA where IMed undergoes a voluntary petition in bankruptcy or any volunts
proceeding relating to insolvency, receivership, liquidation, or composition for the benefit of creditors, IM
warrants that it shall:

(a)
Provide payment of any funds due to CCS within thirty (30) days.

(b)

Where the Custom Software has been completed, provide CCS a perpetuakfregatyd norexclusive license
for use of the IMed Custom Software and derivative products, the Ci&bftmuare source code and associated
documents and technologies.

(c)

Offer to sell to CCS ownership of the completed Custom software and/or the IMed Device at a price determine
be reasonable by a receiver, liquidator, debtguossession or other mdhistrator of the estate, to the extent
allowed by applicable law; provided; however that, in the event such rights are foreclosed or required to be sc
a third party, CCS shall prior to such sale, to the extent allowed by applicable law, haveoh firghtefusal to
meet the price established by the third party offer.

(d)

Where the Custom Software has not been completed, provide CCS a perpetualfnesyaltyl exclusive license to
the IMed Custom Software and any derivative products, the Qusimitware source code and associated
documents and technologies such that CCS may comp

(€)

Provide CCS a right of first refusal to assume any IMed service contracts.

3)

Upon termination of this SDAvhere CCS is the sole party responsible for termination, CCS shall grant IMed
worldwide perpetual, royalty and cost free exclusive license to utilize the Custom Software and associated st
code and documentation as contemplated by this SDA and eneardie to the Custom Software use restrictions of
Section 5.5 of the main section of the SDA and Exhibit A Section A(l)(x) of this SDA.
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EXHIBIT B

SERVICE AND SUPPORT

1.
DEFINITIONS

In addition to the terms defined in the SDA, the following terms used in this Exhibit shall have the followil
respective meanings:

AEnd User"™ means any employee or agent of | Mehis w
SDA.

"Initial Response” means the time interval measured from a Support Call made by IMed to the CCS emerg
support number to the time of the response.

"Relief* means the CCS resources assigned to handle an issue raised in a IMed's Support Call.

"Resolution” means the completion of all action items associated with a Support Call, or may involve, by mu
agreement between IMed and CCS, scheduled completion at a later date or development of a pla
monitoring/resolving the Support Call.

"Support Call" means any communication by IMed to CCS that alleges deficiencies related to the identity, qua
durability, reliability, safety, effectiveness, or performance of a device after it is released for distridutisn.
includes assistance reatied by IMed in usage of the Software Product.

ATemporary Fix0 means providing a workaround that

1.
SUPPORT INFORMATION

Service and Support will apply to the primary installation of the Custom Software.s@&tti®n provides the
information for notifying CCS of any Support issue.

CCS support can be accessed as follows:

General Support Number:877-977-9425 or 416977-9425, Ext. 1
Emergency Support Number8r7-977-9425 or 41877-9425, Ext. 3
SupportEmail: support@cardiocommsolutions.com

Fax: £866-576-4493

The core business hours for CCS are 8:30 am to 4:30 pm EST.

1
CCS support will be available/reachable 24 Hours/Day, 365 Days/Year through the Emergency Support Numbi

1
Support will be preided by telephone, remote access Or if necessary, on site.



2.
SEVERITY CLASSIFICATION

Severity classification provides the guideline for both IMed and CCS to evaluate the severity of a Support Call
to determine the level of response in respontirfpe Support Call.

IMed may set the severity of the Support Call, acting reasonably, using the classifications in Table 1 below
guideline. The severity classification may be adjusted by CCS, if appropriate, after initial problem diagnosis.

CCS will use the severity classification in Table 1 for Support Call definition and response.

Table 1. Severity Classification for Support Calls

Severity Classification Criteria

Production system down, whereby an End
User is unable to uske production system
and a workaround is either not available, of
CRITICAL available, is not acceptable.

Examples:

1 Cannot open or start Software Produc
{ Cannot enter data
A major function or component is
HIGH unusable/degraded and no wanound is
available, but the End User is still able to dg
primary production.
The loss of a function or compamehat does
not seriously affect the End User's operatio
or schedules. Any problem that was
MEDIUM originally reported as CRITICAL or HIGH,
but has been temporarily resolved with a
workaround, shall be reduced to MEDIUM
severity classification by mutual agreent.

Examples:

Acannot access help pages
Problems that cause minimal operational
impact. Problems that do not fall within the
CRITICAL, HIGH or MEDIUM severity
classifications listed in Table 1.

LOW

Examples:

AGeneral End User questions

3.
RESPONSE PROTOCOL

3.1
The section outlines the response time obligation of CCS in handling Support Calls made by IMed under this S



3.2
Pursuant to section 3 above, the severity classification must be established before Relief, Temporary Fix

Resolution of a Support Call.

3.3
All Support calls received will be handled in accordance with the response protocol in Table 2.

3.4
Table 2. Response Protocol for Complaint/Support calls

Severity Initial Temporary

Classification Response Relief Solution Resolution

CRITICAL 15 minutes Work continuously | Within 4 hours Within 30 days

HIGH 15 minutes As soon as possibld Within 24 hours Within 30 days

MEDIUM 15 minutes As soon as possibld Workaround within | Within 30 days
3 business days

LOW 15 minutes Reasonable effort | Not required Within 60 days
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SRCO Professional Corporation
g Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

Park Place Corporate Centre

15 Wertheim Court, Suite 409
Richmond Hill, ON L4B 3H7

Tel: 905 882 9500 & 416 671 72492
Fax: 505 862 9580

Email: sohail razai@srco.ca
WWW.ST00.CA

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the use in this Registration Statement on Amendment No. 4 telFofnouBreport dated Awugt 22,
2016 relating to the consolidated financial statements of Biotricity, Inc. comprising the balance sheets as of Decembe
2015 and 2014 and the related consolidated statement
equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the-year period ended December 31, 2015.

We also consent to the reference to our Firm under the caption "Experts" in the Registration Statement.
/s SRCO Professional Corporation

CHARTERED PROFESSIONAIACCOUNTANTS
Authorized to practise public accounting by the

Chartered Professional Accountants of Ontario

Richmond Hill, Canada
December 13, 2016



'
R/F
RUSKINMOSCOUFAITISCHEK pc.

Counselors at Laww
December 13, 2016

Biotricity Inc.
275 Shoreline Drive, Suite 150
Redwood City, CA 94065

Re:
Registration Statement on Form S1
Registration No.: 333210933

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have acted as c¢ounCompangf) ori nBicmotnrniecittiyo nl nvad .t h( tt thee
certain Registration Statement on Forni,SRegistration No 3332 1 0 9 3 3 Reg(idtrétien Statemeint) filed
Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, with respect to the registration
aggregate of 22SKRkd) 460 shar €empabi@d 0t ommon vatComnomper
Stoclo ) , and Common Stock issuable upon the exchange of
C o mp a n yExchandeable Bhateg , whi ch Exchangeabl e ShianrStatemeatr e r ef e

The Shares are being registered on behalf of certain stockholders of the Company identified in the Registr
Statement.The offering of the Shares will be as set forth in the prospectus contained in the Registration Statement, at
suppl emented by one or mor eProspeggl3) ements t o the prospe

As counsel to the Company, we have examined the originals or copies of such documents, corporate record
other instruments and undertaken such further inquiry as we haweedenecessary or appropriate for purposes of this
opinion, including, but not limited to, the Registration Statement, corporate resolutions authorizing the issuance refsthe S
and the Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws of the Company, includimmdments thereto. In such examination, we
have assumed the following: (e authenticity of original documents and the genuineness of all signaturde (Byal
capacity of all natural persons, the accuracy and completeness of all documents stbmite@d) the conformity to the
originals of all documents submitted to us as copies; (d) genuineness of all signatures contained in the records, docu
instruments and certificates we have reviewed; andhée)truth, accuracy and completeness of thfermation,
representations and warranties contained in the records, documents, instruments and certificates we have reviewet
opinion letter is given, and all statements herein are made, in the context of the foregoing.

Based on and subject to thmegoing, we are of the opinion thétet Shareswhen issued, including if applicable
upon exchange of the Exchangeable Shares in accordance with the terntSxchtregeable Shares, will be duly and validly
authorized validly issued, fully paid and meassessable.

The information set forth herein is as of the date hereof. We assume no obligation to advise you of changes tha
hereafter be brought to our attention. We are members of the Bar of the State of New York. We do not express any of
corcerning the laws of any jurisdiction other than (i) the State of New York, (ii) the Federal laws of the United States,
(iii) the Delaware General Corporation Law. Our opinion is based on statutory laws and judicial decisions that arein effe
the date hereof, and we do not opine with respect to any law, regulation, rule or governmental policy that may be enact
adopted after the date hereof, nor do we assume any responsibility to advise you of future changes in our opinion. We
express apinion on any matters other than those expressly set forth in this letter.



We hereby consent to the use and filing of this opinion as an exhibit to the Registration Statement as filed witk
Securities and Exchange Commission and to the referereaito  f i rm under the heading ¥
and the Registration Statement.

Very truly yours,

S/ RUSKIN MOSCOU FALTISCHEK, P.C

RUSKIN MOSCOU FALTISCHEK, P.C.



Document and Entity Information - shares‘

| 9 Months Ended

Sep. 30, 204 l9un. 30, 201{
IDocument and Entity Information: [ | |
[Entity Registrant Name IBIOTRICITY INC. |
IDocument Type IS1 I
IDocument Period End Date |Sep. 30, 2016 [
[Trading Symbol Ibtcy [
/Amendment Flag false [
[Entity Central Index Key |0001630113 |
ICurrent Fiscal Year End Date |--12-31
[Entity Common Stock, Shares Outstandir] 117,045,964

[Entity Filer Category

|Smaller Reporting Compal|

[Entity Current Reporting Status [Yes [
[Entity Voluntary Filers INo [
[Entity Well-known Seasoned Issuer INo [
IDocument Fiscal Year Focus 2016 [
IDocument Fiscal Period Focus IFY [

|
|
|
|
|
|
| |
%
|
|
|
|
|




| Biotricity, Inc. - Balance Sheets USD ($) | Sep. 30,2016 | Dec. 31, 2015| Dec. 31, 2014/
[CURRENT ASSETS [ I I |
[Cash L $ 23,78]| $ 410,60]| $ 448,59
IHarmonized sales tax recoverable L 14,864 36,29]| 71,336
IDeposits and other receivables | 45,401 72,20]| |
[Total Current Assets | I 84,05( 519,09/ 519,931
[Equipment ™ | | |
[TOTAL ASSETS | 84,054 519,094 519,93¢
ICurrent Liabilities: | | | | |
[Convertible promissory notes & 723,71( | |
[Derivative liabilities S 1,113,29( | |
|Accounts payable anderued liabilities " 760,37] 413,277 176,034
[Total current liabilities ] 2,597,37] 413,27 176,03¢
IConvertible promissory note I I 783,774 |
[Derivative liabilities B | 561,22 |
[TOTAL LIABILITIES ] 2,597,37] 1,758,27]| 176,03¢
Stockholders' Deficiency (Equity): | I I I |
[Prekrred stock I 1 1 1]
|Common stock I 26,164 25,00( 22,02¢
|Common stock to be issued " I I |
|Additional paidin capital ] 11,634,66|| 7,98259¢| 4,347 47}
|Accumulated other comprehensive loss | I (289,212 (18,002]| 17,311
|Accumulated deficit | I (13,884,935 (9,228,774 (4,042,922
[TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIENCY ] (2,513,317 (1,239,177 343,894]
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'

DEFICIENCY 84,056 519,094 519,93

|Commitments IS I I |
ISubsequent events I | | |
|Going Concern o | | |

[1]
[2]
[3]
[4]
[5]

[6]

[7]
[8]
[9]

[10] See Going Concern Note

See Equitpment Note

See Convertible Promissory Note

See Derivative Liabilities Note

See Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities Note

$0.001 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized at September 30, 2016 (December 31, 2015 and December
1,000,000), 1 share issued and outstanding as at September 30, 2016, December 31, 2015, and December 3
respectively. See StockholdeBeficiency Note

$0.001 par value; 125,000,000 authorized as at September 30, 2016 (December 31, 2015 and December 31,
100,000,000), 17,045,964 outstanding shares at September 30, 2016, 15,876,947 outstanding common share
December 31, 25, 12,905,394 issued and outstanding as at December 31, 2014 and exchangeable shares o
as at September 30, 2016, December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. See Stockholders' Defl

See Stockholders' Deficiency Note
See Commitments Note
See Subsequent Events Note







Statement of Financial Position- Parenthetical - $ / shareg/Sep. 30, 201 Dec. 31, 201/ Dec. 31, 201

|Statement of Financial Podion

Preferred Stock, Par Value

| $000]  $000f  $0.00]

IPreferred Stock, Shares Authorized

| 10,000,00{ 1,000,00{ 1,000,00(

IPreferrei Stock, Shares Issued

| | il 1

Preferred Stock, Shares Outstanding

| ll 1| 1

ICommon Stock, Par Value

[ $0.00] $0.00] $0.00]

|Common Stock, Shias Authorized

| 125,000,00] 100,000,00] 100,000,00]|

|Common Stock, Shares Issued

| 17,045,96| 15,876,94] 12,905,39

ICommon Stock, Shares Outstanding

| 17,045,96l 15,876,94| 12,905394




Biotricity, Inc. - Statements of ‘

3 Months Ended ||

9 Months Ended || 12 Months Ended |

Operations and Comprehensive Loss| Sep. 30,| Sep. 30,| Sep. 30,| Sep. 30,| Dec.31,| Dec. 31,
USD ($) 2016 2015 2016 2015 2015 2014

lIncome Statement ]| | | | | | |
Revenue O H H u n n |
[Expenses: | ] | | | | | |
[General and administrative expenses |[?]  1,15501(  900,35{ 2,02454d] 2,801,86{ 3,986,55( 873,54
[Research and development expenses |[?][  24804{  326,20{  75590] 891,71y 1,14345]  832,66]
[Total Operating Expenses [ ][ 140306] 1.22656| 278,447 3,69358] 513000 1,706,20]
/Accretion expense [FT][ 473,55] 3,014 667,65 3,014 59,874 |
Change in fair value of derivative g 465,83 (2,679)] 1,208,05 (2,679 (4,026

liabilities

INet loss before income taxes

[ ][ (2,342,448 (1,226,899 (4,656,161 (3,693,922 (5,185,852 (1,706,202

L]

lIncome taxes

INet loss

[ ][ (2,342,448 (1,226,899 (4,656,161 (3,693,922 (5,185,852 (1,706,202

L]

[Translation adjustment

(80,101]|

(31,388

(271,210|

28,25

(35,313]|

3,05(

INet loss andomprehensive loss

[ 13 2,422,543 (1,258,287[$ (4,927,371$ (3,665,669$ (5,221,169$ (1,703,153

|Loss per share, basic and diluted [ ] $009] (.08 $(0.2000] $(0.2300] $0.24]  $(0.09]
Weighted average number of common 25,542,101 16,268,67 25.180,68{ 15,989,009 2185283l 19,747,94
shares outstanding

[2] See Commitments Note
[3] See Convertible Promissory Note
[4] See Derivative Liabilities Note

[1] See Stockholders' Deficiency and Related Party Transaction Note




o e Accumulated
Stodkhalders (Definey) Eauty- | Toal | Preferied | Common | “LEERE | other | Accumuiate
USD (%) Capital (|OSF;) neame
[Balance, Value at Dec. 31,2013 || $102,18]| $1  $1508] $2,409,55] $14,26]  $ (2,336,720
[Balance, Shares at Dec. 31,2013 || I 1| 15,088,21| I I |
llssuance of shares for cash, Value || 545,274 | $ 1,40(| 543,87 | |
lIssuance of shares for cash, Shares || | | 1,400,49( I I |
llssuance of shas for services, Value || 66,174 | $ 17( 66,009 | |
lIssuance of shares for services, Share| | I 169,97/ I I |
llssuance of warrants for services || 400,33Y| | | 400,33Y| | |
Acquisition of net liabilities and shares (237,348 $ 3.95( (241,298
outstandingreverse merger, Value
Acquisition of net liabilities and shares 3.950.10
outstandingreverse rarger, Shares T
mnce of shares and warrants for ci 1,104,224 $ 1,24( 1,102,98
Issuance of shares and warrants for cg 1 240.09]
Shares -
[Exercise of warrants for cash, Value | 66,18¢ | $ 18(| 66,004| I |
[Exercise of warrants for cash, Shares | [ | 179,55(| I I |
[Translation adjustment | 3,05(| | | | 3,05(| |
INet loss | (1,706,202 | | I | (1,706,202
[Balance, Value at Dec. 31, 2014 | 343,89¢ $ 1 $22,02{  4,347,47{ 17,31]] (4,042,922
[Balance, Shares at Dec. 31, 2014 | [ 1| 22,028,42| I I |
llssuance of warrants for services || 672,74 | | 672,74 | |
[Exercise ofwarrants for cash, Value | 707,19( | $ 894 706,299 I |
[Exercise of warrants for cash, Shares | [ | 897,75(| I I |
[Translation adjustment | (35,313)| | | | (35,313| |
INet loss | (5,185,852 | | I | (5,185,852
|Cancellation of shares, Value | (89)| | $@1,317 1,224 | |
Stock based compensation | 2,257,95] | | 2,257,95] I |
[Exercise of stock option plan, Value | 283 | $ 3,39]| (3,208]| I |
[Exercise of stock option plan, Shares || | | 3,390,50] | | |
[Balance, Value at Dec. 31, 2015 || (1,239,177 $1  $2500] $7,982,59  $(18,002] $ (9,228,774
IBalance, Shares at Dec. 31, 2015 || | 1 24,999,97| | | |
ITransIation adjstment || (271,210|| || || || || |
[Netloss [ (4.656.161] | | [ [ |
IStock based compensation || 196,14:|| || || || || |
|

[Balance, Value at Sep. 39016

| $ (2,513,317

[

[

[




3 Months Ended

9 Months Ended | 12 Months Ended |

Biotricity, Inc. - Statements of Cash

Flows - USD ($)

Sep. 30,
2016

Sep. 30,
2015

Sep. 30,
2016

Sep. 30,
2015

Dec. 31,
2015

Dec. 31,
2014

ICash flow from operating activities: ‘D‘

INet loss

[ 13 (2,342,44d[$ (1,226,899 $ (4,656,161 $ (3,693,924 $ (5,185,857 $ (1,706,203

Adjustments to recortile net loss to
net cash used in operations

|

Stock based compensation ] | | 196,24] 1,849,91 2,257,95] |
[Shares and warrants issued for servi[ || | | 443p77] 366,524 | |
[Depreciation ] | | | | | 9051
Issugnce of shares for consulting 66,17¢
services L

Accretion expense M 47355] 3014 667,65 3,014 59,874 |
Change in fair value of derivative [z 55 g3 (2,679 1,208,05 (2,679 (4,026

liabilities L]

lssuance of warrants for services || || | | I | 672,74  400,33]
Changes in operating assets and || |

liabilities: ||

[Harmonized sales tax recoverable | || | | 23,38] 37,284 25431 (73578
Accounts payable and accrued u 327,51 15,506 287,62{ (77,570
liabilities L]

[Deposits and other receivables || || | I 30,454 | (77,740] |
[Net Cash used in opsting activities || || | | (1,759,275 (1,424,348 (1,963,975 (1,381,785
[Cash flows from financing activities: || || | | | | | |
[Proceeds from issuance of shares, n| || | I I I | 1,649,50]
[Proceeds from exercise of warrants || || | | 10s50(  707,19{  707,19( 66,184
Proceeds from issuance of convertib ] 1.524.20 565.35(  1.289149

promissory notes B

[Proceeds from exercise of stock opti| || | I I I 28 |
Net Cash provided by financing || 162970 1,272,54( 1,996.62i 1,715,609
[Net (decrease) increase incash | || | | (129575| (151,802 32,65 333,91
[Effect of foreign currency translation|| || | | (257,243 11,34(  (70,651] (1,067]
|Cash beginning of period L] | | 41060] 448,59 448594  115,75(
[Cash, end of period [ s2378] $30813] 2378 $30813] $410,60] $ 448,59

[1] See Convertible Promissory Note
[2] See Derivative Liabilitis Note




Nature of \ 9 Months Ended H 12 Months Ended |
Operations| Sep. 30, 2016 [ Dec. 31, 2015 |
Notes | | |
Nature of (NATURE OF OPERATIONS NATURE OF OPERATIONS
Operations

Biotricity, Inc. (formerly MetaSolutions, Inc.) (t
ACompanyod) was 1incor
the State of Nevada on August 29, 2012.

i Medi cal l nnovations
incorporated on July 3, 2014 under the laws 0
Province of Ontario, Canada.

Both the Company and iMedical are engage
research and development activities within
remote monitoring segment of preventative ¢
They are focused on a realizable health
business model that has an existing market
commercialization pathay. As such, its efforts
date have been devoted in building techno
that enables access to this market through
development of a tangible product.

On February 2, 2016, the Company entered
an exchange agreement with 1061806 BC |
( A Ca), b 8ritish Columbia corporation a
wholly owned subsidiary (incorporated

February 2, 2016), 1062024 B.C. LTD.,
company existing under the laws of the Prov
of British Columbia
and the former shareholders of iMedical e
AExchange Agreement o
acquired 100% of the outstanding common st
of iMedical, taking into account certain shg
pursuant to the Exchange Agreement as fu
explained in Note 9 to the condensed consolic
financial statements.These subsidiaries we
solely used for the issuance of exchange
shares in the reverse takeover transaction
have no other transactions or balancester
giving effect to this transaction, the Comp
acquired all of i NKeséng
commenced operations through iMedical.

As a result of the Share Exchange, iMedic:
now a whollyowned subsidiary of the Compa
This transaction has been accounted for as re
merger. Consequently, the assets and liabil
and the higirical operations reflected in t
consolidated financial statements for the pel

prior to February 2, 2016 are those of iMed

Biotricity, Inc. (formerly MetaSolutions, Inc.) (t
i Co mp a nsyincyrporated under the laws
the State of Nevada on August 29, 2012.

i Medi cal l nnovations
incorporated on July 3, 2014 under the laws 0
Province of Ontario, Canada.

Sensor Mobility Inc.
on duly 22, 2009 under the laws of the Provinc
Ontario, CanadaSensor was engaged in rese
and development activities within the rem
monitoring segment of preventative care.

On August 11, 2014, all the stockholders
Sensor entered into a seriesf roll ovel
agreements for the sale of their shares to iMe
in accordance with section 85 (1) of the Incq
Tax Act (Canada).Pursuant to these agreeme
all the stockholders of Sensor received twice
number of shares of iMedical in exchange
their shares in SensorAccordingly, iMedicg
issued 14,159,911 (11,829,500 +Erechang
Agreement as defined below under paragrap
shares in exchange for 7,079,955 (5,914,750
Exchange Agreement) shares of Sensor, v
were subsequently cantm as a result

amalgamation. The amalgamation bec
effective from November 21, 2014, pursuan
approval by Canada Rever
Agency. Immediately prior to the Amalgamatic
Biotricity had net liabilities of $237,348 4
3,950,100 (3,300,000 Ptexchame Agreemen
outstanding shares of common stock, which
presented in the consolidated financial statem

As the former stockholders of Sensor becam
majority  stockholders of iMedical afl
amalgamation, this transaction has [
accounted foas a reverse merger and was tre
as an acquisition of iMedical (legal acquirer)
a recapitalization of Sensor (accounting acqu
As Sensor was the accounting acquirer, the rg
of its operations carried ovelConsequently, tH
assets and lmlities and the historical operatic




and are recorded at the historical cost basis.
February 2, 201, h e Company
consolidated financial statents include th
assets and liabilities of both iMedical and
Company and the historical operations of

after that date as one entity.

reflected in the consolidated financial statem
for the periods prior to November 21, 2014,
those of Sensor and are recorded at historical
basis. Effective from November 21, 2014, {
Companyo6s sthtemestan encluae t
assets, liabilities and operations of iMedical.

Both the Company and iMedical are engage
research and development activities within
remote monitoring segment of preventative ¢
They are focused on a realizable health
business model that has an existing market
commercialization pathway. As such, its effort
date have been devoted in building techno
that enables access to this market through
development of a tangible product.

On February 2, 2016, the @pany entered in
an Exchange Agr ee me
Agreement 0) with 106
a British Columbia corporation and wholly owr
subsidiary (incorporated on February 2, 20
1062024 B.C. LTD., a company existing ur
the laws of theProvince of British Columb
(AExchangecoo), i Med
company existing under the laws of Canada,
the former shareholders of iMedical, wher
Exchangeco acquired 100% of the outstan
common shares of iMedical, taking into accq
certain shares pursuant to the Exchi
Agreement as further explained in Note 9 to
consolidated financial  statements.  TH
subsidiaries were solely used for the issuan(
exchangeable shares in the reverse m
transaction and have no other tract®ons o
balances.After giving effect to this transactic
the Company acquired
liabilities and commenced operations thro
iIMedical.

As a result of the Share Exchange, iMedic:
now a whollyowned subsidiary of the @gpany
This transaction has been accounted for as re
merger. As the former stockholders of iMedi
became the majority stockholders of the Com
after amalgamation, this transaction has

accounted for as a reverse merger and was ti
as anacquisition of the Company (legal acqui
and a recapitalization of iMedical (account
acquirer). As iMedical was the accourg
acquirer, the results of its operations were ¢

over. Consequently, the assets and liabilities




the historical opetions reflected in th
consolidated financial statements are thos
iMedical and are recorded at historical cost ba

These consolidated financial statements have
prepared to reflect recapitalization of cay
retroactively adjusting the aceant i n g
(iMedical) legal capital to reflect the legal cap
of the accounting acquiree (Biotricity) pursuar]
Exchange Agreement dated February 2, 20]
explained in above paragraphs and Note 9 t
consolidated financial statements.




Basis of

9 Months Ended

12 Months Ended |

prepared in accordance with accounting princ

generally accepted i
GAAPO) for interim f
Securities  Exchange Comns s i o n

instructions to Form XD and Article 8 of SE
Regulation SX. Accordingly, they do not incluc
all of the information and footnotes required
generally accepted accounting principles

complete financial statements and should be re
conjunction wi t h Bi o
statements for the four months ended Decembg
2015 and year ended August 31, 2015 and

thereto included in the Form AQT filed with the
SEC on Apr il 13, 201
financial statenents for the years ended Decen
31, 2015 and 2014 and notes thereto included i
Form 8K/A filed with the SEC on April 13, 201
In the opinion of management, all adjustm
(consisting of normal recurring accruals) consid
necessary for a fapresentation of financial positi
and results of operations for the interim per
presented have been reflected herefdperating
results for the nine months ended Septembe
2016, are not necessarily indicative of the re
that may be expecteaif the year ending Decem
31, 2016. The Company 06 snd fis
December 31.

Presentation
and Sep. 30, 2016 Dec. 31, 2015
Measurement
Notes | | |
Basis of BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND|BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND
Presentation aniMEASUREMENT MEASUREMENT
Measurement
The accompanying unaudited conderThe consolidated financial statements
consolidated financial statements have |lthe Company have been prepared

accordance with accounting princip
generally accepteth the United States
America (AUS GAAP{
in United States

The consolidated financial stateme
include the accounts of the Company
its wholly-owned subsidiary. Significa
intercompany accounts and transact
have been eliminate




Going
Concern

9 Months Ended

12 Months Ended |

Sep. 30, 2016

Dec. 31, 2015 |

INotes

Going
Concern

GOING CONCERN

The condensed consolidated financialtestaents hay
been prepared on a going concern basis,
contemplates the realization of assets and satisfact
liabilites in the normal course of Dbusiness.
Company has incurred recurring losses from operg
and as at September 30, 2016 hawaking capita
deficiency of $2,513,317 (December 31, 2015: $105
working capital surplus) and an accumulated defig
$13,884,935 (December 31, 2015: $9,228,]
Management anticipates the Company will a
profitable status and improve its lidity through
continued business development and additional d¢
equity investment in the Company. Managemer
pursuing various sources of financing.

On October 31, 2015, the Company engaged an ag
act as exclusive financial advisor to the Camp with
respect to assisting the Company in its capital rg
efforts as well as assisting the Company in the revig
potential financing alternatives available to it ang
provide recommendations with respect to the op
available to it for meetig its capital needs. Under
engagement agreement, the agent will represer
Company as the sole or lead placement &
underwriter, bookunner or similar representation in
efforts to obtain financing of up to $12 million in
form of a private placement, public offering, whethe
one or a series of transactions, in a private or p
offering of equity, convertible debt or equity, eq
linked securities or any other securities (as explain
Notes 6 and 11).

The Company ésstencenis dependent
its ability to continue to execute its operating plan a
obtain additional debt or equity financing. There ca|
no assurance that the necessary debt or equity fina
will be available, or will be available on ter
acceptable to the Company, in which case the Com
may be unable to meet its obligations. Should
Company be unable to realize its assets and discha
liabilities in the normal course of business, the
realizable value of its assets may be mallgriass tha
the amounts recorded in the condensed consol
financial statements. The condensed consoli(
financial statements do not include any adjustn
relating to the recoverability of recorded asset amd
that might be necessary shoule tBompany be unak
to continue in existence.

GOING CONCERN

The consolidated financial statements have
prepared on a going concern basis, which contem
the realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilitie
the normal course of busines§he Company h
incurred recurring losses from operations and 4
December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014
accumulated deficit of $9,228,774 and $4,042
respectively. Management anticipates the Company
attain profitable status and improwus liquidity througk
continued business development and additional de
equity investment in the Company. Managemer
pursuing various sources of financing.

On October 31, 2015, the Company engaged an ag
act as exclusive financial advisor ttee Company wit
respect to assisting the Company in its capital rg
efforts as well as assisting the Company in the revi
potential financing alternatives available to it an
provide recommendations with respect to the op
available to itfor meeting its capital needs. Under
engagement agreement, the agent will represer
Company as the sole or lead placement a
underwriter, bookunner or similar representation in
efforts to obtain financing of up to $12 million in

form of a private placement, public offering, whetheg
one or a series of transactions, in a private or p
offering of equity, convertible debt or equity, eq
linked securities or any other securities.

The Companyds cont i nuupal
its ability to continue to execute its operating plan a
obtain additional debt or equity financing. There ca|
no assurance that the necessary debt or equity fine
will be available, or will be available on ter
acceptable to the Compang, which case the Comp

may be unable to meet its obligations. Should
Company be unable to realize its assets and discha
liabilities in the normal course of business, the
realizable value of its assets may be materially lesg
the amouts recorded in the financial statements.

financial statements do not include any adjust

relating to the recoverability of recorded asset am
that might be necessary should the Company be U
to continue in existence.




Summary of

Significant

Accounting
Policies

9 Months Ended

12 Months Ended |

Sep. 30, 2016

Dec. 31, 2015

|Notes

|

Summary of
Significant
Accounting
Policies

SUMMARY OF
ACCOUNTING POLICIE S

SIGNIFICANT

Cash

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the condensed consolig

SUMMARY OF
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

SIGNIFICANT

Cash

Cash includes cash on hand and balances wil
banks.

Use of Estimates

financial statements in conformity with
GAAP requires management to make estin
and assumptions that affect the repg
amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosue of contingent assets and liabilitie
the date of the financial statements and
reported amounts of revenues and expe
during the reporting period. Areas involv
significant estimates and assumptions incl
deferred income tax assets and tedavaluatio
allowance, accruals and valuation

derivatives, convertible promissory notes
stock options. Actual results could differ fr
those estimates. These estimates are rev
periodically, and, as adjustments bec
necessary, they are raped in earnings in th
period in which they become known.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share

The preparation of consolidated finan
statements in conformity with US GAAP requ
management to make estimates and assum
that affect the reported amounts afsats an
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent ag
and liabilities at the date of the consolidg
financial statements and the reported amour
revenues and expenses during the repd
period. Areas involving significant estimates
assumptions include: deferred income tax as
and related valuation allowance, accruals
valuation of warrants and stock options. Ac
results could differ from those estimates. Tl
estimates are reviewed periodically, and,
adjustments become nesasy, they are report
in earnings in the period in which they bec
known.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share

The Company has adopted the Finaf
Accounting Standard
Accounting Standard
Topic 26010 which provides for calculation
Afsico and Adil utedd
earnings per share includes no dilution an
computed by dividing net income or
available to common stockholders by
weighted average number of common sh
outstanding for the period. Diluted eargsnpe
share reflect the potential dilution of securi
that could share in the earnings of an er
Diluted earnings per share exclude
potentially dilutive shares if their effect is &
dilutive. There were no potentially diluti
shares outstamy as at September 30, 2016.

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company has adopted the Finat
Accounting Standard
Accounting Standar ds
Topic 26010 which provides fo calculation o
Abasico and Adiluted
earnings per share includes no dilution an
computed by dividing net income or |
available to common stockholders by

weighted average number of common sh
outstanding for the perd. Diluted earnings p
share reflect the potential dilution of securi
that could share in the earnings of an er
Diluted earnings per share exclude all potent
dilutive shares if their effect is ardilutive.
There were no potentially dilwe share
outstanding as at December 31, 2015 and 20




Equipment

Impairment of Lond.ived Assets

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

ASC 820 defines fair value, establishe
framework for measuring fair value
expands required disdare about fair valy
measurements of assets and liabilitie8SC
820-10 defines fair value as the exchange
that would be received for an asset or pa
transfer a liability (an exit price) in the princi
or most advantageous market for the bss|
liability in an orderly transaction betwe
market participants on the measurement
ASC 82010 also establishes a fair va
hierarchy, which requires an entity to maxin
the use of observable inputs and minimize
use of unobservable inpuaghen measuring fa
value. The standard describes three leve
inputs that may be used to measure fair valu

A

g

Level 11 Valuation based on quot
market prices in active markets
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 21 Valuation basedon quote
market prices for similar assets .
liabilities in active markets.

Level 3 1 Valuation based ¢
unobservable inputs that are suppc
by little or no market activity, therefc
requiring managen
what market partigants would use
fair value.

In instances where the determination of the
value measurement is based on inputs

different levels of the fair value hierarchy,

level in the fair value hierarchy within whi
the entire fair value measuremédalls is base
on the lowest level input that is significant
the fair value measurement in its entirety.

Companyods assessment
particular input to the fair value measureme
its entirety requires judgment, and consi

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of the Canadian bz
company is the Canadian dollar and US b
company is USD. Transactions denominate
currencies other than the fuimtal currency af
translated into the functional currency at
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transaction. Monetary assets and liabil
denominated in foreign currencies are trans
using the exchange rate prevailing at the ba
sheet date. Nemonetary assets and liabilities
translated using the historical rate on the dal
the transaction. All exchange gains or lo
arising from translation of these foreign curre
transactions are included in net income (loss
theyear. In translating the financial statement
the Companyds Canadi
functional currency
currency of United States dollars, balance s
accounts are translated using the clg
exchange rate in eftt at the balance sheet ¢
and income and expense accounts are tran
using an average exchange rate prevailing d
the reporting period. Adjustments resulting f
the translation, if any, are included in cumula

other comprehensive income ogk) ir
stockhol dersd equity
the date of these consolidated finan

statements, entered into derivative instrumen
offset the impact of foreign currency fluctuatio

Equipment

Equipment are stated at cost less accurad
depreciation and depreciated over their estin
useful lives at the following rate and method.

Furniture and fixtures
Computer equipment

3 year straight line
3 year straight lin

Routine repairs and maintenance are expens
incurred. Improvements, that are betterments,
capitalized at cost. The Company applies a
year rule in the year of acquisition.

Impairment of LondLived Assets

factors specific to the asset or liability.

In accordance with ASC 3600, the Compan
on a regular basis, reviews the carrying amouy
long-lived assets for the existence of factg
circumstances, both internally and externally,




Fair value estimates discussed herein are
upon certain market assumptions and pert
information available to management.
respective carrying value of certain-balance
sheet financial instrumentpproximated the
fair values due to the sherm nature of the
instruments or interest rates that are compa
to market rates. These financial instrum
include cash, due to stockholders, deposits
other receivables, convertible promissorya¥
derivative liabilities, and accounts payable.
Company's cash and derivative liabilities, wi
are carried at fair value, are classified as a ||
1 financi al i nstrum
accounts are maintained with finan
institutions of eputable credit, therefore, b
minimal credit risk.

Income Taxes

Research and Development

Stock Based Compensation

Operating Leases

Convertible Notes Payable and Derivative

Instruments

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncemen

In March 2016, the Company adopted

accounting pronouncement issued by
Financial Accounting  Standards Bo
("FASB") to update guidance on h

companies account for certain aspects of s
based payments to employees.
pronouncement is effége for fiscal year
beginning after December 15, 2016, and int
periods within those years, with early adop
permitted. This guidance requires all income
effects of awards to be recognized in the ing

lflows, before inteest, from the use of the asset

1In instances where the determination of the

statement when the awards vest or ardesl

suggest impairment. The Company determin
the carrying amount of a loAyed asset i
impaired based on anticipated undiscounted

the event of impairment, a loss is recogn
based on the amount by which the carr
amount exceeds the fair value of the asset.
value is determined based on appraised val
the assets or the anticipated caslw$ from th¢
use of the asset or asset group, discounted
rate commensurate with the risk involved.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

ASC 820 defines fair value, establishes
framework for measuring fair value and expe
required  disclosure bmut fair  valug
measurements of assets and liabilitidaSC 820
10 defines fair value as the exchange price
would be received for an asset or paid to tra
a liability (an exit price) in the principal or m
advantageous market for the assetiability in
an orderly transaction between ma
participants on the measurement date. ASG
10 also establishes a fair value hierarchy, w
requires an entity to maximize the use
observable inputs and minimize the use
unobservable inputs wheneasuring fair valu
The standard describes three levels of inputs
may be used to measure fair value:

Level 17 Valuation based on quoted mai
prices in active markets for identical asse
liabilities.

Level 27 Valuation based on qted marke
prices for similar assets and liabilities
active markets.

Level 37 Valuation based on unobserve
inputs that are supported by little or
market  activity, therefore  requiri
management 6s best
participantsvould use as fair value.

value measurement is based on inputs
different levels of the fair value hierarchy,
level in the fair value hierarchy within which
entire fair value measurement falisbased on tf
lowest level input that is significant to the

value measurement in its entirety.




and changes the presentation of excesg
benefits on the statement of cash flows.
Company adopted these provisions of
prospective  basis. In  addition, t
pronouncement changes guidance on:
accounting for forfeitures of shabased awarg
and ( b) empl oyer so
empl oyeeos use of
empl oyer 6s statutor
obligation. The adoption of this pronouncen
did not have a material impact on
Companyods financi al
opeaations.

In February 2016, an account
pronouncement was issued by the FASE
replace existing lease accounting guidance.
pronouncement is intended to provide enha
transparency and comparability by requi
lessees to record righf-use assts an
corresponding lease liabilities on the balg
sheet for most leases. Expenses associate
leases will continue to be recognized i
manner similar to current accounting guida
This pronouncement is effective for annual
interim periodsbeginning after December
2018, with early adoption permitted. T
adoption is required to be applied on a mod
retrospective basis for each prior repor
period presented.The Company has not
determined the effect that the adoption of
pronouncement may have on our finan
position and/or results of operations.

On January 1, 2016, the Company adopte
accounting pronouncement issued by the F
which eliminates the requirement that
acquirer in a business combination accoun
measuremerperiod adjustmen|
retrospectively. Instead, an acquirer
recognize a measuremgrgriod adjustme
during the period in which it determines
amount of the adjustment. The adoption of
pronouncement did not have a material im
ont he Companyods fin
results of operations.

On January 1, 2016, the Company adopte
accounting pronouncement issued by the F
to update the guidance related to
presentation of debt issuance costs.

llaccordance with ASC 740.The Compan

Companyod6s assessment
particular input to the fair value measuremer
its entirety requires judgment, and consi
factorsspecific to the asset or liability.

Fair value estimates discussed herein are |
upon certain market assumptions and pert
information available to management.

respective carrying value of certain-balance
sheet financial instruments approwted the
fair values due to the shedrm nature of the
instruments or interest rates that are compa
to market ratesThese financial instrumer
include cash, convertible promissory nag
derivative liabilities and accounts payable.
Compary's cash and derivative liabilities, wh
are carried at fair value, are classified as Le
financi al Il nstrument
accounts are maintained with finan
institutions of reputable credit, therefore, K
minimal credit risk.

IncomeTaxes
The Company accounts for income taxes

provides for federal and provincial income tg
payable, as well as for those deferred becau
the timing differences between reporting inc(
and expenses for finaial statement purpos
versus tax purposes. Deferred tax assets
liabilities are recognized for the future
consequences attributable to differences bet
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
financial reporting purposes and the amiswse
for income tax purposes. Deferred tax assets
liabilities are measured using the enacted tax
expected to apply to taxable income in the y
in which those temporary differences
expected to be recoverable or settled. The ¢
of achange in tax rates is recognized as inc
or expense in the period of the change
valuation allowance is established, w|
necessary, to reduce deferred income tax asg
the amount that is more likely than not to
realized.

Research and Develoent

guidance requires delsisuance costs, relateg

Research and development costs, which 1
primarily to product and software developm
are charged to operations as incurred. U




a recognized debt liability, be presented in
balance sheet as a direct deduction from
carrying amount of the related debt liabi
rather than being presented as an asset
Company adopted this pronouncement G
retrospective basis, and the adoption did
have a material impact on the Comp
financial position and/or results of operations

In November 2015, an  account
pronouncement was issued by the FASE
simplify the presentation of deferred incg
taxes wihin the balance sheet. T
pronouncement eliminates the requirement
deferred tax assets and liabilities are presg
as current or noncurrent based on the naty
the underlying assets and liabilities. Instead
pronouncement requires all defd tax asse
and liabilities, including valuation allowanc
be classified as noncurrent. This pronounce
is effective for fiscal years beginning a
December 15, 2016, with early adopf
permitted. The Company intend to adopt
pronouncementon January 1, 2017, and

adoption is not expected to have a mat
i mpact on the Compgeég
and/or results of operations.

In May 2014, an accounting pronouncen
was issued by the FASB to clarify exist
guidance on revenue regution. This guidang
includes the required steps to achieve the
principle that a company should recogt
revenue when it transfers promised good
services to customers in an amount that ref
the consideration to which the company exg
to be entitled in exchange for those good
services. This pronouncement is effective
fiscal years and interim periods beginning &
December 15, 2017, with early adopf
permitted. The guidance permits the use of
of two retrospective transition ethods. Th
Company has not yet selected a trans
method nor has the Company determined
effect that the adoption of the pronouncern
may have on its financial position and/or reg
of operations.

certain research and development arranger
with third parties, the Company may be requ
to make paymentshat are contingent on t
achievement of specific  developmer
regulatory and/or commercial milestones. Be
a product receives regulatory approval, miles
payments made to third parties are expe
when the milestone is achievedVilestong
paymens made to third parties after regulai
approval is received are capitalized and amor
over the estimated useful life of the apprg
product.

Stock Based Compensation

The Company accounts for shdrased paymen
in accordance with the provisioof ASC 718
which requires that all shalmsed paymen
issued to acquire goods or services, inclu
grants of employee stock options, be recogr
in the statement of operations based on thei
values, net of estimated forfeitures. ASC
requires forfeitures to be estimated at the tim
grant and revised, if necessary, in subsec
periods if actual forfeitures differ from thg
estimates. Compensation expense relate
sharebased awards is recognized over
requisite service period, wiicis generally th
vesting period.

The Company accounts for stock be
compensation awards issued to +snployee
for services, as prescribed by ASC 7R a
either the fair value of the services rendere
the instruments issued in exchange forcrj
services, whichever is more readily determin
using the gquidelines in ASC 5@&®. The
Company issues compensatory shares for se
including, but not Ilimited to, executi
management, accounting, operations, corp
communication, financial a@&h administrativ
consulting services.

Operating Leases

The Company leases office space and ce
office  equipment under operating le
agreements. The lease term begins on the d
initial possession of the leased property
purposes of recogring lease expense on
straightline basis over the term of the led
Lease renewal periods are considered on a-




by-lease basis and are generally not includg
the initial lease term.

Convertible Notes Payable and Derivative

Instruments

The Canmpany accounts for conversion opti
embedded in convertible notes in accordance
ASC 815. ASC 815 generally requires compa
to bifurcate conversion options embeddec
convertible notes from their host instruments
to account for them as freeaading derivativ
financial instruments. ASC 815 provides for
exception to this rule when convertible notes
host instruments, are deemed to be convent
as defined by ASC 8150.

The Company accounts for convertible n
deemed conventionahnd conversion optio
embedded in neononventional convertible not
which qualify as equity under ASC 815,
accordance with the provisions of ASC 420,
which provides guidance on accounting

convertible securities with beneficial convers
featues. Accordingly, the Company records,

discount to convertible notes, the intrinsic vi
of such conversion options based upon
differences between the fair value of

underlying common stock at the commitment
of the note transaction and theffective
conversion price embedded in the note. |
discounts under these arrangements are amg
over the term of the related debt.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

On January 1, 2015, the Company adopte(
accounting pronouncementsiged by the FAS
updating existing guidance on discontin
operations. This guidance raises the thresho
a disposal to qualify as a discontinued oper:
and requires new disclosures of both disconti
operations and certain other disposals tlah

meet the definition of a discontinued opera
This pronouncement is aimed at reducing
frequency of disposals reported as disconti
operations by focusing on strategic shifts
have or wi || have a

operations ath financial results. The Comp3g
will consider this guidance in conjunction W
future disposals, if any.




In April 2015, an accounting pronouncement
issued by the FASB to update the guidg
related to the presentation of debt issuance (
This quidance requires debt issuance c
related to a recognized debt liability, be prese
in the balance sheet as a direct deduction froi
carrying amount of the related debt liability raf
than being presented as an asset.
pronouncement is eftéive retrospectively fq
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2
with early adoption permitted. The Comp
intend to adopt this pronouncement on Janug
2016, and the adoption will not have a mat
impact on its financial position and/orstéts o
operations.

In September 2015, an accoun
pronouncement was issued by the FASB w
eliminates the requirement that an acquirer
business combination account for measurer
period adjustments retrospectively. Instead
acquirer will ecognize a measuremereriog
adjustment during the period in which
determines the amount of the adjustment.
pronouncement is effective for fiscal ye
beginning after December 15, 2015, with €
adoption permitted. The Company intend to a
this pronouncement on January 1, 2016, an
adoption will not have a material impact on
financial position and/or results of operations.

In November 2015, an accounting pronouncel
was issued by the FASB to simplify
presentation of deferreshdome taxes within tk
balance sheet. This pronouncement eliminate
requirement that deferred tax assets and liab
are presented as current or noncurrent bas
the nature of the underlying assets and liabil
Instead, the pronouncement vags all deferre
tax assets and liabilities, including valua
allowances, be classified as noncurrent.

pronouncement is effective for fiscal yeg
beginning after December 15, 2016, with €
adoption permitted. The Company intend to a
this pronouncement on January 1, 2017, anc
adoption will not have a material impact on
financial position and/or results of operations.

In January 2016, the Company adopted
accounting pronouncement issued by the F
which eliminates the requiremethat an acquir
in a business combination account




measuremenperiod adjustments retrospective
Instead, an acquirer will recognize

measuremenperiod adjustment during the per
in which it determines the amount of

adjustment. The adoptioof this pronounceme
did not have a mater

consolidated financial position and/or results
operations. In addition, the Company
adopted the accounting pronouncement issu
the FASB to update the guidance related

presentation of debt issuance costs. This guid
requires debt issuance costs, related {
recognized debt liability, be presented in
consolidated balance sheet as a direct dedt
from the carrying amount of the related c
liability rather tran being presented as an a
The Company adopted this pronouncement
retrospective basis, and the adoption did not
a materi al i mpact on
financial position and/or results of operations.

In February 2016, an accourgipronounceme
was issued by the FASB to replace existing |
accounting guidance. This pronouncemen
intended to provide enhanced transparency
comparability by requiring lessees to record
of-use assets and corresponding lease liab
on the balance sheet for most leases. Exp
associated with leases will continue to
recognized in a manner similar to cur
accounting guidance. This pronouncemen
effective for annual and interim periods begin
after December 15, 2018, withary adoptio
permitted. The adoption is required to be ap
on a modified retrospective basis for each

reporting period presented. The Company ha
yet determined the effect that the adoption of
pronouncement may h
corsolidated financial position and/or results
operations.

In March 2016, the Company adopted

accounting pronouncement issued by

Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FAS
to update guidance on how companies accou
certain aspects of slabased payments

employees. This pronouncement is effective
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2
and interim periods within those years, with €
adoption permitted. This guidance requires
income tax effects of awards to be recogdizn
the consolidated income statement when




awards vest or are settled and changes
presentation of excess tax benefits on
consolidated statement of cash flows.
Company adopted these provisions or
prospective basis. In addition, t
prorouncement changes guidance on:
accounting for forfeitures of shabmsed awar
and (b) employersodo a
use of shares to sat
income tax withholding obligation. The adop1
of this pronouncement didot have a materi
Il mpact on the Compan
position and/or results of operations.




, 9 Months 12 Months Ended
Equipment Ended
| Sep. 30, 2016 Dec. 31, 2015
INotes H H
Equipment EQUIPMENT
As at As a
December 31 Decembe
2015 31, 201
EQUIPMENT . $ 3
Furniture 41,272 41,272
Computer equipment 27,826 27,826
Total cost 69,08 69,098
Less: Accumulated depreciation (69,098 (69,098




Accounts

9 Months Ended

I 12 Months Ended

Payable and
Accrued Sep. 30, 2016 Dec. 31, 2015
Liabilities
INotes H H |
Accounts ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED
Payable and LIABILITIES
Accrued
Liabilities As at As at
December| December
31, 2015 31, 2014
$ $
Trade
accounts
payable 274,055 130,913
Accrued
liabilities 139,218 45,126
413,273 176,039
Accounts ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED
Payable and ||LIABILITIES
Accrued
Liabilities
As at As at
September 30|December 31
, 201€ 2015
$ $
Trade 629,04 274,055
accounts
payable
Accrued 131,32¢ 139,218
liabilities
760,374 413,273
Accounts payable include $116,075 (2(
$14,113) due to an entity owned by
shareholder of the Company in connection
consulting chargs, which is unsecured,
interest bearing and due on demand.




Convertible
Promissory
Notes

9 Months Ended [

12 Months Ended |

Sep. 30, 2016

Dec. 31, 2015

Notes

Convertible

Promissory
Notes

CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTES

Pursuant to a term sheet offering of $2,000,
the Company during the year ended Decel
31, 2015 issued convertible promissory note
various accredited investors amounting
$1,368,978 in face valueThese notes have
maturity date of 24 months and carry an
interest rate of 11%. The note holders have
right until any time until the note is fully paid,
convert any outstanding and unpaid pring
portion of the note, and accrued interestg
fully paid and norassessable shares of Comi
Stock. The note has a conversion price init
set at $1.78. Upon any future financi
completed by the Company, the conversion |
will reset to 75% of the future financing prici
These notes do h@ontain prepayment penalt
upon redemption.These notes are secured by
of the present and after acquired property o
Company. However, the Company can fo
conversion of these notes, if during the terr
the agreement, the Company completgsubliq
listing and the Common Share price exceed
conversion price for at least 20 consect
trading days. At the closing of the Notes,
Company issued cash (7%) and warrants (7,
the number of Common Shares into which
Notes may be convied) to a broker. The brok
received 3% in cash and warrants for tk
investors introduced by the Companylhe
warrants have a term of 24 months and a si
reset provision based on future financings.

Pursuant to the conversion provisions, in Au
2016, the Company converted the promis
notes, in the aggregate face value of $1,368
into 912,652 shares of common shareg
detailed below. The fair value of the comn
shares was $2,907,912 and $1,538,934
allocated to the related derivatiliabilities (se¢
note 7) and the balance to the carrying valu
the notes.

Accreted value of
convertible promissory

notes as of December 31 $783,778

CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTES

Pursuant to a term sheet offering of $2,000,
the Company during the year ended Decel
31, 2015 issued convertible promissory note
various accredited westors amounting
$1,368,978. These notes have a maturity da
24 months and carry annual interest rate of !
The note holders have the right until any {
until the note is fully paid, to convert g
outstanding and unpaid principal portion o€
note, and accrued interest, into fully paid
nonassessable shares of Common Stock.
note has a conversion price initially set at $1
Upon any future financings completed by
Company, the conversion price will reset
75% of the future finaring pricing. These not
do not contain prepayment penalties U
redemption. These debentures are secure(
all of the present and after acquired proper
the Company. However, the Company c
force conversion of these notes, if during
term d the agreement, the Company compl
a public listing and the Common Share p
exceeds the conversion price for at leas
consecutive trading days. At the closing of
Notes, the Company issued cash (7%)
warrants (7% of the number of Common
into which the Notes may be converted)
brokers. The brokers receive 3% in cash
warrants for those investors in the Presid
List. The warrants have a term of 24 moi
and a similar reset provision based on fu
financings.

The embeddd conversion features and r¢
feature in the notes and broker warrants
been accounted for as a derivative liab
based on FASB guidance (refer Note 8).

The details of the outstanding convert
promissory notes are as follows:

$
Face valuef convertible
promissory notes issued
during the year 1,368,978

Discount recognised at

iIssuance due to embedded (479,479)







